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REIER
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Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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Level 54, Hopewell Centre
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Hong Kong
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01170

WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/kingmaker

KEY DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting

23 August 2022 to 26 August 2022

Entitlement to the proposed special final dividend
1 September 2022 to 5 September 2022

Annual General Meeting

26 August 2022

Proposed payment date of special final dividend

On or about 26 September 2022
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Financial Highlights
B E

2022 2021 Change
ZEICH 2 —F b=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Revenue g 842,687 804,720 +4.7%
Gross profit E7 25,199 38,239 -34.1%
-1.8 points
Gross profit margin ESVIES 3.0% 4.8% -1.8EE D
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable ZxAFHEFIFE A
to equity holders of the Company Bt E R (B518) (18,035) 88,098 N/A 88
HK cents HK cents
Al Al
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SRELEH  (5H8) (2.69) 13.05 N/A 8
HK cents HK cents
Al Al
Proposed final and special final BURREA R A5 RI R HA AR B
dividends
Interim dividend per share SRPBERE - 1.5
Special interim dividend per share SRR FEER 2.0 0.7
Final dividend per share BRFPERE - 1.5
Special final dividend per share SRERERBEE 2.0 1.3
Total dividends per share for the year 2FSRKEEEE 4.0 5.0 -20%
. Net cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$290 million . H& REERESEEFEEA290,000,0005 7T
Revenue Profit/(loss) for the Year Attributable
U 25 to Equity Holders of the Company
T RFEGFE AEBGEEGEN, (B518)
(HK$ Mil B8 ET) (HK$ Mil BB &)
1,165
1,200 ’ 300
1,101 1,050 257
1,000
g5 843 200
800
600 100 88
36
400
0
200 i -18
-51
0 -100
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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Financial Highlights
M HaE

Net Asset Value Per Share Attributable Dividend Per Share

to Equity Holders of the Company sSBEBE
TREEEREAREEREESE
(HK$ 3T) (HK Cents 781ll)

0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
[ Special 4553  © Final REF M Interim SRR

Revenue (by geography)
Wz (bt & 2 53)

18.2% 13.2%
44.4%

13.1%

2022 2021
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

OUR VISION
H IR R

To become the leading lifestyle footwear company
trusted by premium brands for value creation and
innovation.

ABENETRAREREE  AXBEEREE
B HRERISEEMESAIF

OUR MISSION
HMAKRE

To partner with leading brands in making the best
lifestyle products to meet and create consumer
demand in footwear and related products.

HEE RS FREREEERRER MEHESE
HEBREMERNEE TEFRIEERK.

At Kingmaker, we are now much better prepared for the - EEEEEMEERTSN
headwinds ahead than a year ago. We are cautiously ZHE > BEHEANER - BMELFFOHE

optimistic for steady business growth as the sales EEEf#TRR RNILHXBEEIE REFE
pipeline remains robust during the first half. At the same BEABRZEZ-BR HMEERSERN®
time, we will maintain a selective business portfolio of MER  EEMEMERERES  TBBEE
branded customers with positive prospects, to be served MEEFE BARRATBEHEIFME
by a cross-location production platform and our proven BHNEm - AERKEETRRENMBE %
ability to bring innovative and high-quality products to o BEMBEEMUKNRBREHUEE

market. On the back of a strong financial position, the EHBEMUE NEREBEEZZ == ﬁ
Group is in a good position to deliver solid results in the = +—HUIEMBFEANRSRENEE-

financial year ending 31 March 2023 as we continue to
strengthen our market leadership and pursue operational

excellence.
Huang Hsiu Duan, Helen FE
Chairman =EHIH
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MACROECONOMIC DISCUSSION

Despite an overall recovery in 2021, the momentum of growth
in major economies has weakened towards the year end as the
boosting effects of monetary and fiscal stimuli began to recede,
and supply-chain challenges escalated.

As we enter 2022, geopolitical conflicts will likely set back the
global recovery. These events will also bring spillover impacts on
commodity prices and supply, which will elevate inflation amid
slower growth. Further supply-chain instability is expected due to
more recent lockdowns in the manufacturing and logistics hubs
of China.

Looking ahead, labor shortages, the rising prices of raw materials
and logistics costs will remain three of the key factors that can
erode efficiency and margins, and will create higher uncertainty
for manufacturers, including the Group.

From the current order pipeline, the first half of the coming year
will see strengthened growth momentum, but as we actively
work with our customers about production plans, we will remain
attentive to the operating risks ahead.

STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK

In spite of the uncertain business environment, the Group is
cautiously optimistic of achieving overall top-line growth in the
financial year 2023. In the coming year, we seek to achieve our
vision and purpose through the following six strategic action
areas: recovering and creating new avenues of income, active
capacity planning, promoting operational excellence, cost
control to mitigate inflationary pressures, product innovation and
workflow enhancement, as well as developing and retaining a
diverse and talented team of people, while continuing to drive
resilience and sustainability in our operations.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

6 STRATEGIC ACTION AREAS

Rekindle business growth and enhance revenue
profile

The Group’s first-quarter performance in the financial
year 2023 reaffirmed our positive outlook for the revival
of medium-term sales impetus. As our marketing teams
actively engage clients in business development and order
planning, we are focusing on serving customers whose
products are aligned to key underlying trends that can
drive long-term consumer demand. We are also redoubling
our research and development (“R&D”) efforts to support
clients’ introduction of new products to the market. At the
same time, we are carefully making advance workforce
planning and raw material procurements in preparation for
upcoming client requirements.

In line with our ongoing strategy of pursuing value growth,
we have actively managed our clientele portfolio with
a focus on products that deliver higher profit margins.
Through consistent efforts, we have achieved improvements
in the average selling price (“ASP”) over the past two years.
Initiatives to upgrade the product portfolio will continue.
Additionally, in light of the volatile operating environment,
we will cautiously recruit and retain customers with due
consideration given to their market performance, credit
quality and growth prospects.

Active capacity planning

The maintenance of a cross-location production platform
is crucial to our ability to serve varying client requirements
in terms of workers’ skills, origin of manufacture and
raw materials supply. In line with clients’ sales forecasts,
we proactively plan the capacities, production line
configurations and workforce deployments for each center.
In this connection, the capacity in Cambodia will be
expanded to meet medium-term demand growth. We will
also monitor the procurement plans of clients and adjust the
capacity in southern Vietnam accordingly.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Pursue operational excellence

As a production partner for leading footwear brands,
we place emphasis on innovation in R&D, the use of
materials through to the manufacturing process in order to
fulfill the ever-changing design needs of clients. We also
constantly enhance the work process to cope with new
requirements. An example was the design of the concept-
line configuration to cater to quick production cycles and
frequent line changes.

As part of our overall mission to increase competitiveness
through operational excellence, we aim to engage in
a thorough and in-depth revamp of our manufacturing
process in the financial year 2023. Through constant
enhancements, we seek to achieve further efficiency
gains, improve overall performance and output quality for
our production centers. Automation and digitalization of
production procedures will continue to be phased in where
appropriate.

In addition, in the face of disruptions from the pandemic,
our local management teams are looking into production
line realignments that can flexibly respond to ad hoc events.

Mitigate cost inflation

We will maintain stringent measures to mitigate inflationary
pressures. Driving cost control initiatives across our
operations, we are constantly advancing our lean
manufacturing and enterprise resource planning systems.
Today’s retail realities compel brand owners to often delay
and reduce the size of orders. We have worked closely
with our clients to meet the majority of their demand while
seeking more favorable terms for production. At the same
time, our local management teams have re-examined the
work flow to analyze and reduce inefficiencies caused by
shorter procurement cycles and smaller batch sizes. Strict
cost control also applies to the sales, administrative and
other corporate functions of the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

10

Talent development

Kingmaker nurtures and maintains a team which brings to
the Group a wide array of specialist skills. Our people are
committed to helping clients thrive as we build a world-
class company that can share in their success.

To acquire and retain talents, the Company offers
competitive compensation packages, with a share option
scheme and a share award scheme as further incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group.

| take pride in our highly capable management team,
which has consistently met unprecedented challenges with
dedication and resolve. With the team’s strong leadership
and crisis management capabilities, the Group has
navigated its way across very difficult operating terrain over
the past few years.

| am also encouraged by the success we have achieved
in building up local management teams in Vietnam and
Cambodia, as evident in the role they played in coping
with the COVID-19 induced disruptions during the year
ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year”). They have shown both
commitment and leadership ability to share management
responsibility in the face of challenging events. We believe
localization is important for the long-term development of
our manufacturing locations.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Resilience and sustainability

Major disruptive events over the past couple of years,
including the COVID-19 pandemic, trade conflicts and
geopolitical tensions, have called for new levels of
preparedness. Amid surging threats that add to business
risk, our first line of defense is to support continuity of
our operations and provision of services for clients. In the
context of our manufacturing activity, workforce resilience
is of utmost importance. We have therefore arranged on-
site vaccination for our employees at the plants in relatively
early stages of COVID-19 resurgence. We also strive to
assure production stability by making advance workforce
and raw materials procurement planning, enforcing strict
disease prevention measures in our facilities, and constantly
renewing our crisis mechanisms at different operating
levels.

In a broader and longer-term perspective, we face potential
shocks from more profound market and technological
changes. We therefore seek to build resilience by enhancing
our operations and updating our value proposition in order
to protect us against these disruptive forces.

In addition to business resilience, it is important that we
continue practicing sustainable manufacturing which
involves standard procedures and new initiatives to reduce
the carbon footprint of production, while following strict
guidelines to ensure employee, product and community
safety. Such efforts are overseen by a sustainability working
group which comprises our executive directors, senior
management and heads of our production centers.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

A FFE!

BAMEE BEBMNEASHEE 6
FECOVID-19%%8 15 ~ B Z B R M MK BUA &
REDRE bEFTEFHBNKRERSEMN
Ko EBR ARG R E R B > FIEF I
FERREREFEESE - ARPIEM
IRBNEN - EEEHMS > TAEKDN
MPENBEEE > ALLFHKFIECOVID-19
BEBELRENREHEABRENEESR
R E RN R NEBIRAREE
B NMRBREMMN S RETREEE RS
ERTEEN Uk RSN TEEERER
B ERIEES UBREEET

RBEENRENAERE EFRENT
BAMMREE §ARPERERNNER
HE-EIt AP EEBBICEENER
BEIR AEFRLIMN  BEBEBES
ENTiE-

EBHEZI EEEBRIRBEENSE
EMEh+0EE ERESRBEEENK
EHNRERFNNRE > RREKET
B URREE - ERfltERe 5L
FHBENTEFT SREBEABNEES
DBEFTAERBI R FFE TR/ NMEEE -

EEREE@MAMRAT Fik 2022 11



Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Importantly, Kingmaker includes key stakeholders in its
sustainability journey:

Planet ik
Manage and minimize carbon
footprint along the value chain

EEEERELRET B
RHRERE

T

Progress ¥4

Collaborate with clients to pursue
advancement through innovation,
application of technologies and
talent empowerment

BEFE1F BBAIR AR

MIBE AT FETRE
Profits Z2 7

ENE EEEENAFERE  HEARSH
EET:

-

People &%
Care about employee well-being
FAEEE TAEAL

N

p

Create long-term shareholder

<,,,,-/'— value

IRERAEREDR
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CONCLUDING REMARKS

The Group was motivated to witness revived market demand
during the Year, which led to branded customers adopting more
aggressive procurement strategies, benefitting our order book.
Sales recovery momentum has extended well into the April-to-
June quarter of the coming year, but we are conscious of the
fact that the pandemic is yet to be completely calmed down and
retains the potential to interrupt supply chains.

Other ongoing risk factors associated with COVID-19 include
rising logistics and material costs, as well as the added pressure
it puts on labor supply. The Group remains cautiously optimistic,
but will closely monitor and adjust our strategies according to the
prevailing market trends.

Given the worldwide inflation and increasing interest rates, and
with geopolitical tensions running high, the operating environment
will continue to be clouded by uncertainties. It is important that
the Group maintains a strong financial position as a safeguard.

Taking a long-term view in our development, our corporate
decisions are made with careful consideration to balance our
core competencies, carrying capacity, business development
needs, market demand, service to clients and stakeholder
interests. Kingmaker will continue to take measured and
steadfast steps to build a resilient and sustainable company that
serves the interests of clients, shareholders, employees and other
stakeholders in society.

APPRECIATION

| would like to thank my fellow directors, senior management
and staff members. Their dedication and diligence have placed
us closer to our long-term goals. To our business partners,
clients and shareholders, | deeply appreciate their support and
confidence in our Group.

By order of the Board
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B RN

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Board is delighted to announce the annual results of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2022 (the “Year”).

In line with the Group’s previous-year outlook, encouraging signs
of business recovery were spotted at the start of the Year, with
a satisfactory April-to-June quarter that delivered a double-digit
increase in revenue. This growth track was, however, interrupted
amid a resurgence of COVID-19 cases in the area where the
Group’s main factory is located. During the three months from
mid-July to mid-October 2021, production at the Group’s factory
in Thuan An, Binh Duong Province, southern Vietnam, was
compelled to halt temporarily.

14 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

While the temporary production halt in southern Vietnam has
inevitably weakened the Group’s performance in the first half of
the Year, production resumption in phases from 11 October 2021
onwards has enabled the Group to recover sales revenue and
regain growth momentum during the latter half.

The Group’s full-year performance reflected significant
improvement in the second-half operating results of the southern
Vietnam plant, while the Cambodia center has continued to
contribute steady organic sales growth throughout the Year.

Revenue

During the Year, revenue increased by 4.7% year on year to
approximately HK$843 million (2021: approximately HK$805
million) with a 0.3% decrease in footwear business volume
(pairs).

Revenue growth was achieved on the back of a solid order
pipeline, and also as a result of the Group’s ongoing strategy to
pursue higher-profit-margin business growth. With continuous
efforts to enhance its revenue profile, a 3.7% improvement in the
average selling price (“ASP”) was recorded for the Year.

B mA I
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEwm A

Gross Profit

The Group reversed the first-half gross loss position and

achieved a gross profit of approximately HK$25 million (2021:

approximately HK$38 million) for the full Year. The gross profit

margin decreased to approximately 3.0% (2021: approximately
4.8%), mainly attributable to:

(i)

(i

The temporary production halt in southern Vietnam from

July to October 2021, resulting in:

(@)

increased labor-to-revenue ratio owing to non-
recurring mandatory payment of wages (at the
minimum wage level) to the employees of the affected
factory during the period of the halt; and

additional one-off costs incurred for COVID-19
inspections of the employees, as well as disinfection
of the factory premises;

and an increase in materials and supply-chain costs,

including:

(@)

(o)

(©

higher upstream supply-chain costs owing to raw
material price hikes driven mainly by rising oil prices;

increased subcontracting charges for order fulfillment;
and

higher transportation costs for the delivery of
materials.

With the pandemic situation interrupting the Group’s workforce

planning and maintenance, labor costs remained a key factor of

the input cost inflation. During the Year, direct wages went up

to approximately HK$187 million (2021: approximately HK$169

million). Proportionate direct labor wages increased to 22.2% of
revenue (2021: 21.0%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Meanwhile, the increase in material costs was attributed to rising
prices of raw materials including leather and outsoles, as well
as the usage of more leather material for higher-value items and
increased research and development (“R&D”) in support of new
business development.

Net Profit/Loss

The Group recorded a net loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$18 million (2021: net profit of
HK$88 million) for the Year, mainly as a result of:

(i) the absence of the one-off fair value gain of approximately
HK$123 million arising from the revaluation of investment
properties (mainly the property at the Zhuhai plant) recorded
during the year ended 31 March 2021, against a fair value
loss of HK$20 million for the Year; and

(i) anincrease in provision for inventories;

which were partially offset by:

(

) increased share of profit of approximately HK$32.8 million
(2021: approximately HK$13.6 million) from the Group’s
associates operating in central Vietnam.

Loss per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the Year was approximately HK2.7 cents (2021: earnings of
approximately HK13.1 cents).
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Key Financial Ratios

The Group continued to maintain healthy financial ratios during
the Year:

Debtors’ turnover increased to 88 days (2021: 74 days) for
the Year;

. Creditors’ turnover increased to 100 days (2021: 92 days);

. Stock turnover was 141 days (2021: 132 days) on

temporary holding of stock at customers’ request;

. Strong liquidity with net cash in hand of approximately
HK$290 million as at 31 March 2022 (2021: approximately
HK$378 million);

° Gearing ratio (total bank borrowings to total equity) of
approximately 1.2% (2021: Nil) due to a temporary bank
loan granted to the southern Vietnam factory; and

. Current and quick ratios were 2.5 and 1.8 respectively
(2021: 2.9 and 2.3 respectively).

Final and Special Final Dividends

In light of the net loss incurred for the Year and in anticipation
of ongoing uncertainty surrounding the operating environment,
the Board has resolved not to pay a final dividend (2021: HK1.5
cents per ordinary share) for the Year, but a special final dividend
of HK2.0 cents (2021: HK1.3 cents) per ordinary share in respect
of the Year was recommended. Together with the special interim
dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share, this brings the total
dividends for the Year to HK4.0 cents (2021: HK5.0 cents) per
ordinary share.

The Board continues to pledge to share the Company’s results
with its shareholders. It will review its dividend policy from time to
time, with consideration given to the Group’s capital expenditure
plans, the operating environment, order book visibility and overall
business prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Macro Environment

As more countries began to relax the coronavirus pandemic-
related restrictions, the global economy has been on the recovery
track during the Year, benefiting from stronger consumer
sentiment and economic activity.

Across the markets that the Group’s customer brands serve,
footwear retail performed strongly in 2021, with product price
and sales growth seen in multiple product categories. However,
while major consumer markets offered reassuring retail data,
substantial challenges continued to emerge from the cost side of
the equation, both as a result of the rising raw material prices and
supply chain disruptions bringing additional logistics expenses. In
addition, lockdowns in different ports have caused a worldwide
slowdown in the flow of raw materials and finished goods. Port
congestion and other logistics bottlenecks are yet to be fully
eased.

Despite continuing global economic recovery, considerable
uncertainty still lies ahead. The Group will stay alert to the
challenges, take all necessary measures to control costs in view
of cost-side fluctuations, flexibly plan and manage capacity, and
maintain financial strength to support its provision of R&D and
production solutions for clients.
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Manufacturing Business

The Group currently operates two manufacturing bases in
southern Vietham and Cambodia, both of which are equipped
with R&D facilities. A supplementary R&D center is in operation in
Zhuhai, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). In addition,
the Group holds a 40% interest in a joint-venture factory in
central Vietnam.

As at the Year-end date, the Group had a combined production
scale of 29 processing lines, mostly under the concept-line
setup. They contributed an annual capacity of around 7 million
pairs of shoes, and were 78.0% utilized (2021: 78.1%).

In southern Vietnam, there were 15 concept lines and 4
traditional lines in operation, with two obsolete lines phased out
during the Year owing to product mix upgrade. Coupled with the
10 concept lines the Group had in Cambodia, the robust and
multi-location production platform enables the Group to provide
capacity with flexibility, in order to cater to customers’ sourcing
plans in terms of country of manufacture.

The geographical distribution of markets continued to be
demand-led, while at the same time, the Group supports its
clients’ efforts to develop markets with good prospects. Revenue
from the United States recorded the most significant growth to
44.4% (2021: 21.2%), and European markets’ contribution stood
at 24.3% (2021: 31.6%) of total. Shipments to other markets,
including Asia and other areas, accounted for 31.3% (2021:
47.2%).

The rugged shoes category was the biggest contributor to the
Group’s revenue at 71.3% (2021: 49.9%), as a result of the
enhancement of the product portfolio towards a higher ASP
range. The premium casual footwear category’s contribution
dropped to 8.6% (2021: 31.0%) of revenue, while that of babies’
and children’s footwear increased to 20.1% (2021: 14.7%). The
performance of the athleisure product category continued to be
lackluster with its share decreased to 0% (2021: 4.4%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In line with its strategy to prioritize value growth over business
volume expansion, the Group has been more selective in terms of
clientele portfolio management and new business development.
Due consideration is given to the visibility and strength of the
clients’ order pipeline, as well as their credit quality and growth
prospects. The Group’s major customers for the Year included
Cat, Chaco, Dr. Martens, Merrell and Wolverine, these in
aggregate contributed 89.6% of total revenue.

Key developments in the Group’s production centers are
summarized below:

Southern Vietnam

The southern Vietnam manufacturing site holds a portfolio of
facilities in operation, premises ready for equipment installation,
and land for future expansion, which will enable the Group to
fulfill existing demand and ready it to capture future growth
opportunities.

This location remained a core manufacturing site for the Group.
However, bursts of COVID-19 cases in the surrounding area
compelled the factory to temporarily halt production during the
latter part of 2021. When the plant started to resume production
in mid-October 2021, some workers had to delay their return
dates as they had left for their home towns during the pandemic.
The plant returned to normal capacity in mid-February 2022.

As a result, the site’s contribution to total volume output dropped
to 55.0% (2021: 69.2%) during the Year. On the back of a strong
order book, the plant has shown encouraging growth in the
subsequent months. The Group is confident of the recovery of
this site in the first half of the year ending 31 March 2023.
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Cambodia

With the support of the local government authorities, the
Group has further expanded its foothold in this major footwear
manufacturing country for the world.

During the Year, the Cambodia site contributed 45.0% (2021:
30.8%) of output in pairs. The increase was mostly organic and
partly attributable to the site’s further maturity in capacity and
efficiency.

As the pandemic has been effectively contained in Cambodia,
the center has maintained normal production throughout the
Year, albeit with minor breaks to facilitate on-site vaccinations for
employees.

The Cambodia center has gained further momentum, and is set
to grow into a more important manufacturing location for the
Group. Registering satisfactory order growth, the site has seen
an addition of two stitching lines during the Year as planned to
cater to promising sourcing plans from clients.

The manufacturing operations in Cambodia have continued
to mature, enabling this center to now fill orders for more
sophisticated models. With client support, the Group will
prudently plan further capacity expansion for this hub.

Mainland China

All of the Group’s manufacturing activity in the country has been
discontinued and relocated to other Asian centers.

At the request of clients, an R&D center was maintained in
Zhuhai, staffed by a lean workforce. The Group will continue to
monitor its utilization and proactively consider adjustments to the
R&D offerings at this site as deemed appropriate.

With the exception of the R&D center, the Zhuhai plant was
leased out and continued to generate a stable stream of recurrent
rental income for the Group. The Board will continue to monitor
the local business environment and the overall property market,
and will work with the tenant in response to the market trends.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investments in Associates

The Group holds a 40% interest in an associated company
jointly owned with Evervan Group (“Evervan”) in central Vietnam.
Evervan is a leading athletic footwear manufacturer for the
international market.

With the addition of three production lines during the Year, the
associated company operated a total of 27 lines as at the Year-
end date. It is mainly engaged in production for world-leading
footwear brands Crocs and Columbia, both of which registered
sales growth in their respective markets during 2021.

This associated company thus showed strong revenue growth
during the Year. It delivered an approximately 89.6% increase in
revenue to approximately HK$895 million (2021: approximately
HK$472 million).

With an enlarged scale and enhanced workforce efficiency,
the associated company contributed to the Group a share of
profit of associates of approximately HK$32.8 million (2021:
approximately HK$13.6 million).

In view of the strong order pipeline and growth prospects, the
associated company is planning to further ramp up capacity with
capital expenditures to be funded internally. Given the strong
background and expertise of Evervan, the Board is confident of
continued positive performance by the associated company.
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Investment Properties

Depending on the Group’s business needs and capacity
planning, certain self-owned factories and office properties may
not be fully utilized at times. The Board regularly considers these
properties’ sales or leasing options and potential in order to
create returns on these assets. This will help the Group make
good use of idle properties, realize the investment value of
its assets, and generate additional stable income to enhance
working capital.

During the Year, the portfolio of assets classified as investment
properties was all leased out, yielding a gross rental income
of approximately HK$24,822,000 (2021:
HK$17,358,000), or a gross yield of approximately 4.5% per

approximately

annum. The Board considers that the portfolio is currently
generating a steady stream of recurrent income. It will regularly
review this asset base and examine options available with a view
to creating greater long-term value for shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated
cashflow and banking facilities provided by its bankers.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$304 million (2021: approximately
HK$378 million) and total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$15 million (2021: Nil). The Group’s gearing ratio (total
bank borrowings to total equity) was approximately 1.2%
(2021: Nil). As at 31 March 2022, the Group had net cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$290 million (2021:

approximately HK$378 million).
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As at 31 March 2022, the Group had available banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$55 million (2021: approximately
HK$40 million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$15
million (2021: Nil) was utilized.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the current ratio was
approximately 2.5 (2021: approximately 2.9) based on current
assets of approximately HK$800 million and current liabilities
of approximately HK$325 million and the quick ratio was
approximately 1.8 (2021: approximately 2.3).

The Group will continue to maintain conservative cash flow
management to sustain a strong cash position. Having
considered the major expansion plans of the Group, including
Vietnam and Cambodia in the next two to three years, the
Directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate liquidity
to meet its current and future working capital requirements on its
operations and expansion.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and
expenditure are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the
Renminbi, the Vietnamese Dong and the US dollars. It is the
Group’s policy to adopt a conservative approach on foreign
exchange exposure management.

However, the Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is
required. The Group generally finances its operation with internal
resources and bank facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong.
Interest rates of borrowings are fixed by reference to the Hong
Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate or the secured overnight financing
rate (SOFR) published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the
Group’s global operations and to minimise the Group’s financial
risks. As a measure of additional prudence, the Group cautiously
uses derivatives financial instruments, principally forward
currency contracts as appropriate for risk management purposes
only, for hedging transactions and for managing the Group’s
receivables and payables.
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The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly arose
from the net cash flows and the net working capital translation
of its PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries. The management of the
Group will actively hedge the foreign currency exposures through
natural hedges, forward contracts and options, if consider
necessary. The management of currency risk is centralised in the
headquarter of the Group in Hong Kong.

Capital Structure

The Group is substantially debt free. Shareholders’ equity
decreased to approximately HK$1,211 million as at 31 March
2022 (2021: approximately HK$1,245 million).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities

During the Year, the Company repurchased 740,000 of its
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$774,000
excluding transaction cost and cancelled the repurchased
shares subsequent to the year end date. The repurchase of
the Company’s shares during the Year was effected by the
Board, pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted by the
shareholders, with a view to benefit shareholders as a whole by
enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share
of the Company.
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Details of the shares repurchase during the Year are as follows:
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The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of
approximately HK$700,000 has been debited to the share
premium account. An amount equivalent to the par value of the
shares cancelled has been transferred from the retained profits of
the Company to the capital redemption reserve.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.
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EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the
PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia, employed approximately 7,700
employees as at 31 March 2022. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels and
the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Share options and awarded shares may also be
granted in accordance to the terms of the Group’s approved
share option scheme and share award scheme, respectively.

During the Year, the trustee of the Company’s share award
scheme adopted on 26 June 2019 (the “Share Award Scheme”)
did not purchase any shares on the market. 2,880,000 shares
have been awarded under the Share Award Scheme during the
Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is delighted to present its
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“ESG Report”). This ESG Report herein focuses on providing an
overview of the environmental and social aspects of the Group
for the financial year from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the
“‘Reporting Period”), and outlines how we seek to continually
improve our operational strategy in regard to our environment
and society in order to cope with the global standards of
sustainability.

In the course of preparing the ESG Report, the Group
conducted thorough review and assessment towards its existing
environmental and social policies with aims to achieve better
performance in aspects of environment, social, corporate
governance and operation in the future and make more
contributions to the communities where it operates.

ESG Report Scope and Boundary

The Group is a large-scale shoe-manufacturing company,
designated as original shoes manufacturer for internationally
renowned brands as our core business. The scope of the ESG
Report covers the environmental and social performance of
manufacturing factories located in Vietham and Cambodia. There
is no change in the reporting scope or boundary covered in this
ESG Report from previous year.

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”) (the “Listing Rules”)
and complies with all provisions of “comply or explain” and
“mandatory disclosure”. In response to the latest revisions
effective for financial year commencing on or after 1 July 2020,
our reporting framework was enhanced to address all newly
introduced reporting requirements.
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The Group has prepared the ESG Report with the following AEEDRE TR EFEAFRNESGIRE ©

reporting principles.

Materiality
BEM

Quantitative
21t

Consistency

— st

Balance

F i

Governance Structure

Feedback and Authorization

The Group identified the materiality of ESG topics by stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment. The details are explained in the section headed “Materiality
Assessment”.

REECEBRNE2EABEN T GHIESCGEENEZ M AT EEER M
STd ) —EIRER A o

The Group disclosed the information of the standards, methodologies and source

of emission factors specified in the HKEX Guide for computing the relevant

Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs”) used for the reporting of environmental
performance.

REECSKBHIMIESI P EANRSIRIERFENERMERENIER ((FMRBEX
1615 WEE B ERERARRKRIRNER o

The methodology adopted for disclosing the environmental and social KPlIs is
consistent with that of the previous reporting period, unless otherwise stated in the
relevant sessions.

FERMEERZARAEIN RBRRERT ERARGVIERMEAN A EHE F—RE
AR —% o

The ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s performance and has
no false representations, misleading statements or material omissions.

ESGHREANLERMR T AEEMNKRIER > BI & E KRR REMRIMEERER -

EXxg

I The Board ‘

BB R 5K 1 Reporting & ¥k
B /X 1%

ESG Working Group
ESGTI /M4l

Feedback [ && 1 Reporting FE#R

Vietnam & Cambodia Responsible Units

HEkRERATE
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The Group recognises that a robust ESG governance structure is
the crux of fostering a sustainable business operation. The Board
has the oversight of ESG strategies, management approaches
and evaluate all ESG issues in the annual risk assessment. They
are also responsible for formulating long-term sustainability
direction along our business chain, as well as reviewing the
progress and achievement against ESG objectives and targets,
and thus providing strategic guidance on the ESG-related issues.
The responsibility of detailed considerations and implementation
of ESG strategies has been delegated to the ESG Working
Group. Annual ESG Report submitted by the ESG Working Group
would be approved by the Board to evaluate the effectiveness of
ESG management in building up our resilience in respect of ESG-
related risks.

The ESG Working Group comprises Executive Directors and
senior management staffs who have sound knowledge of current
and emerging ESG matters, as well as the Group’s operations.
The responsibility of the ESG Working Group is to assist in 1)
identifying, reviewing and analysing the significant ESG risks and
opportunities in operational strategy and risk management with
associated impacts on the Group, 2) establishing ESG goals
and objectives with actions plans in line with the determined
ESG strategies, 3) monitoring the current market trends and
development, industry practices, and norms in respect of ESG
related issues, and 4) performing stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment. The ESG Working Group carries out
performance reviews and reports the progress and achievements
of the Group’s ESG objectives to the Board on a regular basis.

The responsible units are responsible for implementing the ESG-
related action plans determined by the ESG Working Group in
daily operations, supporting stakeholder engagement activities
and coordinating the data collection for the preparation of ESG
Report and monitoring performance progress and achievements
against the determined objectives and initiatives.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS

As stakeholders play crucial roles in sustaining the success of
our business, the Group fully utilizes various communication
channels to understand and engage our stakeholders. The

probable points of concern of our stakeholders and our channels

of communication and responses are

Stakeholders
FinE

Governments

BURF

Investors

REE

Media & Public
WERATR

Suppliers
HREm

listed below.

Probable Points of Concern

R RERAERS

Compliance with the Listing
Rules, and timely and accurate
announcements.

BT EHRA MEFEEMTIE A

==
= °

Compliance with laws and
regulations, preventing tax
evasion, and social welfare.

EPRRERRO LRI L EAE
MTAE

Corporate governance, business
strategies and performance, and
investment returns.

PEER EBRBERE UKE
E{EEE

Corporate governance,
environmental protection, and
human right.

PEER - BREAE.

Payment schedule, and stable
demand.

ITREERRBERK
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Communication and Responses

BB RO R

Meetings, training, workshops,
programs, website updates, and
announcements.

G158l TIELh -~ 518 UL B

FN=

Interaction and visits, government
inspections, tax returns and other
information.

B#RFF  BUFRE ~ iR B8R &
HME K} o

Briefing sessions and seminars,
interviews, shareholders’
meetings, issue of financial
reports or operation reports for
investors, media and analysts.

B RE R E shsk REAK
g -AREE -ER kO TEREM
MBREHEERS

Newsletters on the Company’s

website, if appropriate.
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Site visits.
EMIF o
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Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses
FinE A RE B SERY BiEHEDRE
Customers Service quality, service delivery After-sales services.
ZFR schedule, reasonable prices, EBRHE -
service value, and personal data
protection.

RFBER RBIRMEE SEE
B RFBEEREABERE -

Employees Rights and benefits of employees, Union activities, training, interviews
(= compensation, training and with employees, internal memos,
development, work hours, and and employee suggestion boxes.
working environment. TEEeE Eil-BE7HN > AEE

BREBERN B E 1551525 SHKREEERME-
B TR KR TR

Community Community environment, Community activities, employee
HtE employment opportunities, voluntary activities, community
community development, and welfare subsidies and donations.
social welfare. HEEES EEXZTEE HEER
HERIRE -EREEE - HeERE KT AL R 1508 o
BEF] o
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has identified ESG issues that have a potential or
actual impact on its sustainable development from various
sources, such as issues identified in previous ESG Reports,
internal policies, industry trends, and the Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board’s Materiality Map. The ESG issues
have been analysed with reference to an array of factors,
including the Group’s overall strategy, development, and goals
and targets. The Group has conducted a materiality assessment
to rate the identified ESG issues that are pertinent to its business
and stakeholders, and their respective levels of impact. The ESG
issues have been prioritised as follows:

BEEMTG
FEFEERZERRHANBEANFEERRER
BENBRFEMESGEIE AN BEESGHR
SRHFBHNEE - ABER1TEBERAIFE
EREENEZEEGNEENTEB -EEHD
HESGERETONM LK SE—RIIAR &
BREEENBRERE - ZERUKER -AEED
ETEENNE MEHEEEEBRFE R EEB
MWERMAESGEEARAER BT EREE ESGH
RREBAERFAT

High
=
o)
"
n ¢ |
" \\\ o
1) \\ \\
g
s
)
[Shea ™
o 4 <
£ 2
-
\\\
®
00
~
d
Low
&
Low Impact on Business High
& HEBNLE =)
Environmental Issues 1215 H 18 Social Issues #+EEIH
1 Emission BE 9 Employment 1& 1%
2 Hazardous Waste B £ &) 10 Health and Safety f2EE Z &
3 Non-hazardous Waste & ZEEEEY) 11 Development and Training 22 & K 153
4 Energy Consumption BE¥E 12 Labor Standards % T # 8|
5  Water Consumption FB7k & 13 Supply Chain Management & i & 12
6  Packaging Material @ %471l 14 Product Responsibility = & E
7 Environment and Natural Resources 215 & B AE R 15  Anti-corruption K &35
8  Climate Change RIZ&1E 16 Community Investment @& &
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OVERVIEW

With over four decades of operations, the Group produces
high-end footwear for famous brand including Cat, Chaco, Dr.
Martens, Merrell and Wolverine. Our manufacturing factories are
located in Vietnam and Cambodia, while our offices are located in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), Taiwan, and Hong Kong.
Being one of the major footwear manufacturing groups in Asia,
we recognize our corporate duties and obligations to protect
the environment. As such, we have integrated sustainability into
our day-to-day operations by implementing various measures to
reduce carbon footprints and mitigate undesirable impacts on our
environment.
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PART A. SOCIAL

Key performance

o

s 3 [1
= @)
M
No Child Labor Diverse Occupational
mET Training
En S

Employment and Labor Practices

The management believes that the employees are one of
the most valuable assets of our group and considers human
resource management as an integral part of our overall business
strategy. Therefore, getting the right person for the right job by
understanding employees’ personality traits and unique talents
is the cornerstone to the Group’s success. As such, we offer
attractive remuneration and provide many internal and external
training opportunities to attract, motivate and retain the right
people.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
laws and regulations in relation to employment that have a
significant impact on us. No confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances were noted by the Group in relation to employment
aspects.
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Employment

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Labor Law Code of Vietham and Cambodia, as well as other
relevant laws and regulations related to employment protection
and benefits, including but not limited to the Social Insurance
Law of Vietnam, the Medical Insurance Law of Vietham, the
Syndical Law of Vietnam, the Law on Social Security Schemes
of Cambodia, the Trade Union Law of Cambodia, and the Law
on the Protection and Promotion of the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities of Cambodia.

The Group has established personnel policies and procedures
that set out its standard internal procedures relating to
recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, compensation and dismissal, employee diversity,
anti-discrimination and other human resources treatments and
benefits, etc., to provide standardized and comprehensive
guidelines on work practices for employees. For anti-
discrimination, the Group has established a procedural policy
prohibiting discrimination, harassment and retaliation, along with
a complaint and resolution process. Moreover, the Group has
set specific policies and practices that protect female rights,
and reinforce feminist social and political rights through training
COourses.

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, approximately 7,000
employees (2021: approximately 7,000 employees) were
employed during the Reporting Period. The Group welcomes
industrial experts to join our team, add value to our pool of
professional expertise of the industry, and bring in innovative
ideas. In terms of gender diversity, the majority of the Group’s
employees in Vietham and Cambodia are female. The Group
highly appreciates the women workforce to support our
daily operation and strives to empower women in the local
communities in which we operate.
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The statistics of our workforce by region, gender, age group
and employment type during the Reporting Period are shown as

PR EHARE > IR &E MR F 8B BB
BRI DNFHNMEEDT

follows:

2021/22
Total workforce BTHEH 7,000
Breakdown by gender ¥t B &l 53 B ER 4H
Female Eegc 5,600
Male B 1,400
Breakdown by age HEH S| RIBAAA
<25 <25 1,500
25-29 25-29 1,200
30-39 30-39 2,700
40-49 40-49 1,400
> 50 > 50 200
Breakdown by employment type HEFEEEE 594
Full time 2 7,000
Breakdown by region it &E 8 5 B BR AR
Vietnam 2] 3,500
Cambodia RIEE 3,500
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The statistics of our employee turnover rate by region, gender,
age group and employment type during the Reporting Period are
shown as follows:

IR T ERERRS

FERE AR FFIiEu&E R F8 AR B 1R
BB DNEERKRMABIBEBNT

2021/22
-/
Total turnover rate B TimkE 57%
Turnover rate by gender BB SN E I RKAE
Female geglc 55%
Male B 62%
Turnover rate by age BERIINE T REE
<25 <25 85%
25-29 25-29 67%
30-39 30-39 49%
40-49 40-49 36%
> 50 > 50 30%
Turnover rate by employment type BEFENIASNETREAE
Full time 2 57%
Part time E it 0%
Turnover rate by region BMESHNE T REAE
Vietnam e 58%
Cambodia SRR 55%

Attract and retain talents

Remuneration policies of the Group are in line with prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees.
Management of the Group constantly reviews its employees’
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities. Adjustments
are made, usually annually, to conform to the market standard
in order to retain talents and ensure the offer is competitive as
compared to the rivals in the industry. A standard remuneration
package includes basic salary and variable incentive-based
remunerations which are distributed according to individual
employee performance. Share options and awarded shares may
also be granted in accordance with the terms of the Group’s
approved share option scheme and share award scheme.

5| RIEEANT
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Moreover, a labor union has been established to protect the
interests of our employees. To better understand the concerns
from workers, meetings between management and the labor
union is held on a quarterly basis. It acts as a channel of regular
and constructive communication between the Group and its
employees to have an open discussion about employee welfare
and employment conditions.

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunities

The Group is committed to building a diverse and inclusive
working environment. The Group ensures that no interviewee
or employee will be discriminated against or deprived of
opportunities due to gender, ethnic background, religious belief,
color, sexual orientation, age, marital status or family status in
respect of recruitment and promotion. Any kind of discrimination
or harassment based on the employees’ gender, age, marital
status, race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace is
strictly prohibited.

The Group always listens and responds to the requests from our
employees. It is the goal of the Group to create a friendly and
peaceful working environment. We encourage our employees to
provide feedback in relation to any employment-related matters,
especially when they encounter any unpleasant or undesired
treatments from colleagues or senior management. Employees
may lodge their complaints in writing and place them in the
suggestion box at the office building. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for handling all cases and conducts
investigations. If any unfair treatments and harassments are
found and confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in writing to
the employee who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss
him or her depending on the seriousness of the incident.
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Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, the Group offers
various welfare and benefits to our employees. For instance,
employees are entitled to extra number of days of paid leave
according to their job level, in addition to all public holidays and
minimum number of days of paid leave in accordance with the
Labor Law of Vietnam and Cambodia.

Moreover, the Group conducts a series of team-building
activities every year to promote our Group’s corporate culture
among employees. However, due to the Coronavirus disease
2019 (“COVID-19"), large-scale company activities were not
orgainized.

As most of our employees are female, the Group does its best to
ensure its female staff are feeling comfortable and happy while
working with us. The Group offers a wide range of activities
including training related to reproductive health care, health care
of women, health and welfare of pregnant women and many
more health-related topics to its employees. However, due to the
COVID-19, large-scale training activities were not organized.

In addition, 6 months of paid maternity leave are offered to all
pregnant employees of our Vietnam factory to ensure that their
job positions are available when they return from their maternity
leave. As stipulated in our staff handbook, the Group offers full
support and care to its pregnant staff. At the Vietnam office
and factory, labels are provided to pregnant workers in order to
remind other staff to provide special assistance when needed.
Last but not least, employees who have children aged between 1
and 6 years old are entitled to subsidies if they are living in Binh
Duong Province in Vietham.
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Health and Safety

Employee’s health and safety is of utmost importance to the
Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety, as
well as hygiene and health. The laws and regulations include
but are not limited to the Labor Safety and Health Law and the
Medical Insurance Law of Viethnam. The Group aims to provide
a safe and healthy working environment to our employees,
and encourage them to achieve a balance between work
and a healthy lifestyle. To prevent our employees working in
manufacturing factories from occupational hazards, the Group
has established “Occupational Safety and Health Policy”,

» oo«

“Chemical Safety Policy”, “Personal Protective Equipment Policy”,

“Accident Investigation Procedure”, “Emergency Response Policy
and Procedure”, and “Risk Assessment Policy” that cover labor
safety and health. The policies clearly detail all the appropriate
practices and requirements related to employee health and
safety so that safety of our employees is protected. For instance,
workers are required to wear earplugs during trimming and wear
gloves during gluing. When using dusting machines, workers are

required to wear masks.

The Group has also established a “Health and Safety Control
Procedure” in line with 1ISO14001 and OHSAS 18001
international standards, with an aim to provide safe and hazard-
free working environment, prevent and mitigate the safety risks
exposure of our employees. The Procedure clearly lists out
the corresponding responsibilities of environmental and safety
management representative, department heads, management
level etc., to allocate the tasks of promoting, monitoring and
implementing relevant safety policy. In addition to establishing
a robust environmental management structure, the Group also
conducts a series of health and safety trainings to our employees
in orientation or on regular basis, so that it can be ensured all
employees are aware of potential occupational accidents and
risks in the manufacturing factories. The training topics include
hazardous chemicals, first-aid and other Occupational Safety and
Health-related topics. However, due to the COVID-19, large-scale
training activities were not organised.
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Moreover, safety audit is conducted for annual inspections to
make sure that all our machines and fire alarms are functioning
well. Any machinery defects and malfunctions would be
immediately reported to the Maintenance Department for repair
and maintenance. The safety audit is followed by working
environment monitoring and safety risk assessment, in which
existing dangerous sources of toxic gases, noise, high falling,
explosives, etc. are identified. The goal is to evaluate

the risk level of working environment and implement
appropriate measures to eliminate the identified

risks correspondingly. During the Reporting Period,

the Group has engaged an independent third-party

who specializes in quality insurance to conduct

workplace conditions assessment for the factory in

Vietnam. The assessment covered various areas,

namely labor, wages and hours, health and safety,
management system and environment. The Group

has met the performance criteria required for the
“Achievement Award”, demonstrating the Group’s

capability and competence in achieving workplace

conditions that meet widely accepted industry

standards and best practices.

The Group’s health and safety policies and procedures are
summarized as follows:

Establish Environmental Management Structure

BIIRIREERE

Health and Safety Training
REEZ 2 IE

Safety Audit
ZR2EX
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Environmental Monitoring
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Safe Factor Identification and Risk Assessment
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The Group has carried out the following actions in order to create

and maintain a good, comfortable, safe and healthy working

environment for its employees:

Establish a Health, Safety, Environment (“HSE”) team to
conduct random checks on workers to ensure that they are
wearing proper work gear;

Keep all emergency exits in the workplace unobstructed;
Provide sufficient light in the workplace;

Ensure that all devices, machines and equipment are safe;
Carry out regular repair and maintenance work on all
devices and machines used in the workplace;

Maintain high standard of hygiene in the workspace;
Prohibit smoking in the workplace; and

Conduct regular safety inspections and fire drills.

FEBERRUTTEH UAHESRIELHER
R &8 22 R BEMNIIFRE :

BifRE 22 KIRIE (THSE)) BEH T
AETERRE BERRSFRGENT
RS
RETIESAAME RS HO%ERA ;
P TRSFr iR R R ARET

HRAARB WEREEZE

H ISP AR B RIEIBEETERME
ERIRE ;

EITRBMER S RENTE
BIERTIESRRRIE ; &
EHETZERERNERE -

RESHEREE=F 2EEUEEERTRE
CEH-NEERSHENEE=FENTEHERIE
RRBURSHERIT :

During the Reporting Period and the past three years, the Group
did not have any work-related fatalities. The statistics of work-
related injuries and lost day results during the past three years,

including this Reporting Period, are shown as follows:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

ZS-h/"%F B2/ - ZE”—/”"”°%

Number of injuries THE&E 96 91 37
Lost days BERRE 346 263 120

RHRERE BLEITRIGEEH MEARER
EXAERBERRERNBERFRE BITHERXT
TER#120K > B E—R S HARI AL 4950% ©

During the Reporting Period, there were 37 work-related injuries,
where the employees concerned have been compensated and
covered by the Group’s medical insurance. The number of

working days lost due to work-related injury was 120 days, with a
reduction of approximately 50% compared with the last reporting
period.
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The lost days are effectively reduced due to the following
measures implemented. For each work-related injury, an incident
investigation report was prepared and evaluated, a corrective
action plan was also prepared with a target date to complete the
rectification at the first opportunity. In response to the incidents,
the Group held a special meeting and training workshop to
enhance employees’ awareness on personal protection and work
safety. Moreover, the HSE team would undergo more frequent
inspection on site to alert the employees of occupational safety
and underlying risk in workplace.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
developed guidelines on the prevention of COVID-19 and work
arrangements for offices and factories. The guidelines help to
reduce the risk of mass infection in workplace. The Group’s
preventative measures and hygienic guidelines in response to
COVID-19 are shown as follows:

° Quarantining employees who reside in high COVID-19 risk
areas;

o Encouraging employees feeling unwell to take sick leave
and caring for their wellbeing;

° Cleaning shared vehicles daily;

° Requiring all visitors and employees to wear surgical masks
and have their temperature checked when entering our
office and factory;

° Maintaining high standard of hygiene in the workspace;

° Advising employees who have respiratory symptoms to
leave and seek medical advice promptly; and

° Providing Rapid Antigen Tests to associates and
contractors, who are required to conduct the tests prior to
entering workplace.

The Group will continue to assess the impact of COVID-19
pandemic on its financial performance, closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 pandemic and the exposure to the
risks and uncertainties in this connection. The Group will take
appropriate measures as necessary.
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Development and Training

The Group believes that skills and experience of employees
are critical to the long-term development of the Group. The
Group offers opportunities that foster our employees’ leadership
skills and professional development, and in turn, promotes
job satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. An annual
training schedule is in place to ensure our employees are offered
with training during the year in order to keep them updated
with information, knowledge and skills required at work. All
new joiners received induction training on their first day of
employment.

The Group’s professional training programs cover a wide range
of specialties. The training categories include human rights
safety and skills applicable to work, etc. Employees are also
encouraged to attend external training courses and seminars
that can help them gain practical knowledge in the fast-changing
business world. Any fees incurred for the courses or seminars
are sponsored by the Group. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has conducted training for its employees in relation
to occupational safety and health, disease prevention, legal
compliance and first-aid.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, no training was conducted
in Vietnam during the Reporting Period to comply with the
government rules and protect the health and safety of our
employees. The Group will schedule more training hours in late
2022 for our employees to ensure they gain adequate knowledge
and skills required at work.

46 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

R Rt

FEBRRDEENRERERETERNRE
HREFEZ - rEENRERMKE BERK
SHAEREREEZERE EMERILIFMR
E-ITHRINKEINEHE -RAGETEE
EIIE 8 LIRRERMANEREEERNESEI
MER TEFTEREE - M kB - PRAEM A
BETIRZEEBES ARE-

FEBHNEXIEIIABREZEETE - IHII4EH]
BEAEZE2MBEAR TENKES - HFI7FE
BREZSIINEENIRE RS G LB BRSF
EREBENEHEURESERNE - RIZH
SNEMELENENEROHAEREN - NRE
PR ~EEEAHEEREEHRERZRE
B BRR AN AR E R R RBvEle

FICOVID- 19851 » 13725 HARS AL R 7E M A 15
LT B AR E L RERFEE N R
BHR2 AEREBEERH S _ERE
TR URR LS TERBNEH
A R AE o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE- B REBRS

The percentage of employees trained and average training hours RIRSHE N REEENBSNZIINES
by gender and employee category during the Reporting Period Bt R B EwT
are shown as follows:

2021/22
—E-— /"%

Percentage of total employees trained Z31ES#E 2 F 5 H % 9.42
Percentage of employees trained by gender #% 1458|5389 Z N ES B 7 H

Male F 14 % 41.32
Female Z 1% % 58.68
Percentage of employees trained by employee category #Z1ES 255 & 53 I ZIIES & 5

Management staff

BEAER % 0.30
Senior staff

SHET % 37.43
Junior staff

BEEBT % 62.28
Average training hours per employee &% €S 19 F 15 05 20 Hours B &( 0.50
Average training hours by gender %1% 5|25 B9 F 195 3 % 2

Male 5 1% Hours BF X 1.16
Female %1% Hours BF 4 0.37
Average training hours by employee category %1€ 5 18 5l #| 5 B9 F 14 Z 3| FF 8¢

Management staff &2 A & Hours BRF 81 0.05
Senior staff 48 T Hours FRF &L 0.80
Junior staff Efg & T Hours BF 8L 0.48
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Labor Standards

The Group is committed to complying with the labor laws and
regulations of Vietnam and Cambodia, as well as the relevant
international human rights conventions relating to employees’
protection and prevention of child or forced labor. Every
employment of the Group is subject to a stringent internal review
process that involves a well-established monitoring procedure
for verifying a candidate’s personal information, in order to avoid
misrepresentation and any form of child labor. For instance,
the staff member responsible for recruitment collects the
identity proof from the candidates to ensure that the age of the
candidates fulfils the requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labor is strictly prohibited.
In Vietnam, the Labor Law allows younger generation aged 15
or above to work. As such, the Group has established a policy
for young employees (15 to 18 years old) to provide additional
guidance on the arrangement of welfare and work allocations.
The Group strictly follows the relevant laws and regulations, and
provide adequate protection for our employees. Employees’ rest
time is well respected by the Group, and any arrangement of
overtime work must be agreed by the employees voluntarily in
advance, in order to prevent forced overtime work.

If any employment of child or forced labor is discovered, the
Group will immediately terminate the employment concerned.
During the Reporting Period, all employees were legally and
properly employed in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable laws and regulations. No incident of illegal child labor
or forced labor was recorded.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The Group understands that supply chain management has an
inseparable relationship with its sustainable development, and is
therefore committed to establishing a long-term and harmonious
cooperation relationship with its suppliers. The Group expects its
suppliers to uphold the principles of integrity and pragmatism,
and provide products and services in strict compliance with the
requirements of applicable laws and regulations concerning both
environmental and social aspects.

Although most of the suppliers are designated by our customers,
the Group has an internal mechanism to assess and evaluate
our suppliers in order to control the quality of our materials.
The Group evaluates all potential suppliers’ background,
qualifications, expertise, experience, financial status, and
professionalism, etc. Moreover, social and environmental aspects
are also important criteria for supplier selection. To promote
environmentally preferable products in the industry, the Group
will not select suppliers with poor environmental performance
or reputation. All approved suppliers are reviewed regularly to
ensure the quality of the services and products purchased is up
to standard.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 305 main
suppliers. The number of suppliers by geographical region during

the Reporting Period is shown as follows:

RIE - B RERERS

=EEG
fAEsEE e
AEERAEEREERATREEREET
B EBIRE > R LB LR R R 1 R

MG ERG -~EERERHEERRTHE
MBEBRA W5 52 HE MR R R EREST
BERRERAE S ENBRZRRERRE

BERBOHEE D BERMAFTRIEE BRTE
BRI E R AEERE A BEE LFHE KT
HEANHES - AEBE T ERAAEEHER
WER BE -FENH ER UHRIREE
KEF N HERIRR S ETNEREHRES
NESRE -BETENEERFRER ~&H
TERERARRRUABENENMUER - AEMH
% E HA B L P A SR P RO B g > DURE fRPT B AR
BREGHNERNTERE

RBREHE AEESHERIGHTEME
Ao NREHE MR DNHEFRMEN T

PRC H
Vietnam f24e]
Taiwan =F ]
Others Hth

Number of
suppliers
HESHE
112

88

28

77

EEHEEMARAT Fik 2022 49



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR (1B RERRS

Product Responsibility

Providing safe, quality and reliable products to our customers
is one of the core values of the Group, and it has a strong
commitment to attain high quality standards in our manufacturing
process. During the Reporting Period, the Group has strictly
complied with the laws and regulations in regard to product
responsibility in the PRC, Vietnam, Cambodia, United States of
America, Taiwan and Hong Kong that have a significant impact
on our businesses, including but not limited to, Law of the PRC
on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, Tort Law
of the PRC, the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, the
Sale of Goods Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Law on Protection
of Consumer Rights in Vietnam. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not recall any sold or delivered products for safety or
health reasons.

The Group’s primary focus is to provide high quality services and
products to our customers. In order to build customer trust and
loyalty, the Group has established relevant policies which cover
product and service quality. The Group has a product quality
inspection team that monitors product quality. The Group’s
production processes, including manufacturing, packaging,
labelling, etc., are subject to the product quality inspection
team’s monitoring and auditing. Products and materials must
go through sampling tests to ensure the quality of products
meets our customers’ expectations. The Group also welcomes
customer’s own quality control teams to visit our factories to
conduct quality inspections.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any
advertisements relating to products and services provided. If the
Group makes any advertisements, we will adhere to all relevant
laws and regulations to ensure that we do not convey false or
misleading message in relation to our products.
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Complaints and Feedback Mechanism

The Group has established a “Customer Feedback and
Complaint Policy and Procedure” to ensure that customers
feedbacks and complaints are addressed efficiently. Customers
may lodge a formal complaint to the Group though email, phone
call or letter. When a complaint is received, the manager from
the responsible department relevant to the complaint shall
conduct an internal investigation, propose suitable solution to
the customers and finally initiate internal corrective actions that
must be completed within a proposed timeframe. All customer
complaints must by responded to within a reasonable time. For
each complaint received, a Customer Complaint Form shall be
filled in with the customer complaint details, date of receiving
the complaint, the solution and corrective action. The Group’s
management office will monitor the status of the complaint
handling process to ensure that all complaints are handled within
a reasonable time, and internal corrective actions are carried out
within the timeframe proposed by the responsible department.
The case of complaint will be deemed as closed only after the
Head of Factory reviews the Customer Complaint Form and
confirms that all corrective actions are performed properly. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any product or
service related complaints.
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In respect of privacy, data and intellectual property rights
protection, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Intellectual Property
Law of Vietnam, the Cyber Information Security Law of Vietnam,
the Trademark Law of Cambodia, the Law on Copyright and
Related Rights of Cambodia and the Patent Law of Cambodia.
The Group has established internal policies that cover intellectual
property and privacy protection. Its employees are obligated to
retain in confidence all information obtained during the course
of their employment, including, but not limited to, trade secrets,
know-how, customer’s information and personal data, supplier
information and other confidential information. The information
is clearly stated in the staff handbook. The Group also maintains
information technology systems with high level of security
to prevent unauthorized access to confidential information.
Fingerprint identification facilities are installed at the show room
to allow only a few authorized employees to enter.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly prohibits corruption and bribery committed
by its employees. In the case of conflict of interests, employees
must declare the concerns to management. In the case of
suspected corrupt practices, employees should report to the
management. Employees are strictly prohibited from utilising
business opportunities, power and/or occupational position for
obtaining personal interests or benefits. During the Reporting
Period, no reported case of corruption, bribery, fraud or extortion
was noted by the Group.

The Group values and welcomes our employees to report any
suspected malpractices confidentially to the management.
The Group handles reported cases of malpractices cautiously
in line with the whistle-blowing mechanism established. A full
investigation will be conducted confidentially, disciplinary action
will be imposed to the employee involved upon confirmation of
the occurrence, and further legal action may be taken depending
on the nature and particular circumstances of each case.

52 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ERLBEBERANSERFRESE FEEEE
STRREARRERER SR ETFRINERENHE
A BERABEEREE RBEBRE R
WRRERAFENERRBEREF L AEE
EHERERN HEERALRRENAIBER B
BEARHREMHBPHER —ER 815
BARREENZ FARM - FREHKREA
g HEBENUREMEEEN -2FEH
RETIFMAB BRI R -AEBTERIES
Z2MBIBIE BB FRME > LA L RS R B
BEEN -BRENEREEAH&RE EVH
EREREEEEEA-

R&5
FEBBRREILEEESRER - —BEHIRF
nHR EELNANEEEFRREREE-—8
PRmESTRA EEENEEERER -EERE
ERME KRB R EAAR o 1R & HA
B AEBRTESTARES BE - RFAHY
REVBRRE o

AEEERITRLEENEEEELEREM
WERRRT A o AEERFIRIRE B IR MK H
BRRERRVERRG -AERERWEZETS
HREE FEIDEBTABER REISERES
ETRRED U ERTERHFNEEREALRE
BRENE—T B ERITH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group closely monitors the regulatory development and
will arrange relevant trainings for employees and directors when
necessary. In order to prevent any corruption or bribery behavior
within the Group, the Group will brief newly joined employees
on our anti-corruption practices during their orientation, and
emphasize that we do not tolerate any form of corruption. All
directors received training on corporate governance prior to the
Group’s listing or at the time of joining the Group, it is ensured
that they are aware of their duties and responsibilities in relation
to integrity.

Community Investment

The Group earnestly fulfils its social responsibilities, actively
carries out public welfare activities, and regards public welfare as
an important aspect of its corporate culture. Therefore, the Group
encourages our employees to take part in community services so
as to contribute to a more sustainable and harmonious society. In
particular, the Group is devoted to helping the orphans through
making donations to charitable bodies, building primary schools
and participating in school visits. During the Reporting Period,
the Group made a donation of approximately HK$185,000 (2021:
approximately HK$365,000). The Group has donated to World
Vision Hong Kong for Child Sponsorship in helping 50 needy
children to bring life-transforming changes by improving their
growth environment. Also, we were invited by our customer to
sponsor the save the children program.

The Group will continue to contribute to local community to
develop a better environment for the society and children.
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PART B. ENVIRONMENTAL

Q

Reduce Electricity Usage
RS

CO;
J

Reduce GHG Emission

iR E R HE

The Group strives to work towards a‘green’ and sustainable
working environment by improving energy efficiency, addressing
waste management, supporting environmental education and
promoting the idea of recycling and reusing. The Group has
established a set of management policies, mechanisms and
measures on environmental protection and natural resources
conservation to help ensure the operations of the Group are
in line with the world-class environmental protection practices.
Moreover, the Group has recruited third party professionals
to conduct energy audit test in order to assess and evaluate
our existing energy saving policies and to determine whether
the adopted measures are adequate in terms of saving cost
and energy, as well as increasing productivity, while meeting
stakeholders’ expectations.
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Since our manufacturing factories are located in Vietnam
and Cambodia, this ESG Report will mainly focus on the
environmental issues and relevant measures that are applicable
to these two operating units. To achieve the environmental goals,
the Group has implemented the following measures:

° Comply with all applicable environmental laws and
regulations;

° Identify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental
impacts associated with the Group’s activities;

° Maintain high leadership commitment and develop a strong
culture of environmental stewardship within the entire
workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with provision of
necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.

Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly resulted
direct vehicle emissions and the Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG”)
used for cooking.; while other indirect emissions mainly arise
from the use of business facilities. The Group has implemented
various measures to ensure that the emissions are kept at the
minimum, and to reduce the impact of our business activities
caused to the environment. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has complied with relevant environmental laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Environmental
Protection Law of Vietnam, the Water Resources Law of Vietnam,
and the Law on Environmental Protection and Natural Resources
Management of Cambodia.
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Air Emission

During the Reporting Period, 8 motor vehicles were used to
serve our management team members, guests and clients, while
3 forklifts were used for lifting and transporting heavy loads in
Vietnam and Cambodia factories. In our business operations,
employees are seldom required to travel to different locations for
work.

All usage of fuel and mileage of the vehicles are recorded by
drivers on a daily basis in order to monitor the usage of vehicles.
Furthermore, all vehicles are under regular maintenance check to
facilitate fuel consumption efficiency, ensure road safety and keep
carbon dioxide emission at its minimum.

R

PSR M R RIBE T REMAsE I E R
ERMNEEEBRME - BERER » K IEHW
XELERBHEY EHFANEHEED &
BROBEFEAFAME T/

ARSXECRBEWMNAMEREERAKRERE
Jo BRI B E R A B o LSk 0 TR B ER IS
FETEHEERD UFRSMECHENK
E RERERZ2URE ZSCRERERETE
BEKF -

Air emission ¥ & HER

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) & & 1E#I(NOX) g
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) & 154(SOx) g
Particulate Matter (PM) Z&Hi47(PM) g

Generators are used to support the operations in Cambodia.
In the previous year, generator was used more frequently as
a result of the increase in the number of days with unstable
electricity supply in Manhattan Industrial Zone in Cambodia.
During the Reporting Period, the electricity supply in Cambodia
has been resumed, thus, the fuel consumption of the generator
has significant decrease as compared to the previous year. In
order to help reduce the use of fuel and the emissions of GHG, all
machines and equipment would be turned off while they are not
in use. For mitigating measures to reduce indirect emission from
purchased electricity and paper, please refer to the below section
sub-headed “electricity and energy usage” and “generation
of waste” respectively. To uphold the principles of sustainable
development, the Group is committed to reducing or maintaining
the total GHG emission intensity between 95% to 120% for the
next reporting period, against the level of baseline year ended 31
March 2022.

! Despite a decrease in total mileage of the vehicles, the NOx and
PM emission increased due to higher usage of the vehicle which
had higher emission factors of NOx and PM.
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541.70 495.79
1,148.62 1,278.50

RIBREAEBHIFTHEBE AN LE—FER
HEESMBTXENABEMRERBUBM  #E
WHERERRES NREHE REREME
®E > FHIt FEEMEPEER L —FEX1E
WL BB MEEMHNERRREERENTE
BB N ERKES R E SN - AR
SNBE ) M AR B B IRR AR B S T S5 D B2
BRI TENRERERIURELEERY&
H-BRFAFELRNRA AEERNKT
—ER S HBEREEREQFNEERERR
REBE_Z__F=A=+—HNEEFE
IKFHI95%E120% 2 8]

! BEEWMRERMAFRAL EHERAARS
NOXKPMEFMEA FHEWMERERS > E]
NOxEPMEF I8 A Fr G A0 »



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

GHG Emission ;&= R EEHEIK
Scope 1 - Direct Emission i [E1—BH &K

Unit B i

—ETE

—_—m—=

2020/21

2021/22

S—&F —EB-— /"%

IR T ERERRS

Vehicles B34 kg T2 91,867.20 82,643.96
Generator 25 B 1# kg T2 5,233.26 3,924.95
LPG FIEEHR kg T2 11,998.83 22,175.36
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect Emission & [E2— & & B8R
Purchased Electricity 91825 kg T2 8,550,691.69 8,384,944.83
Scope 3 - Other Indirect Emission &5 E3— H fth &8k
Paper #%5& kg T52 50,347.80 41,932.46
Total GHG Emission B EREH 42 kg 7 8,710,138.78 8,535,621.56
Total Intensity 2% E kg/pair of shoes

T/ g5 1.57 55

Air-Conditioning e

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, indoor temperature
is maintained at 24 degrees Celsius or above to reduce
unnecessary energy wastage. Air-conditioners are switched off
when they are not in use. The Group has also put notices at
prominent locations to raise employees’ awareness of energy
conservation.

Use of Resources

The Group always endeavors to promote sustainability and aim to
cease resources wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the
environment. Various measures have been implemented to attain
the goal of using resources efficiently. These measures have
been effectively communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring that
all employees understand clearly the importance of conserving
energy and make full use of available resources during work.

BEARBRIBNENEEERE24RKE
g DU A Z2RIBETRR & © 2B E A E
AR - AEETRERNUERES R
LiR=EERESERH

BRER

AEB-—BRNOREANFEERENURES
EHBERRE  URHIRIEEMBZT -BER
SRERERNER HFIER T ZEE &
SHECANEEERRED BRE2EREES
BHAMNERNEZMTETFREDES
BAER
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IR (1B RERRS

“Use of Resources Policy” has been implemented by the
Group, and certain resource efficiency goals and plans have
been made to save energy. The Group has also assigned a
department responsible for energy management, whose duty
includes carrying out regular inspections and monitoring the
usage of energy. The Group is aware of the importance of energy
saving for our business and the society, and has made several
investments on saving the use of energy and resources. The
measures taken are as detailed in the below section headed
“water usage” and “electricity and energy usage”.

Water Usage

Water usage arises from the production process of footwear
and the daily use of water by employees at the offices during
working hours. Monthly water consumption depends highly on
the production volume of the month and has slight fluctuation
throughout the year.

At the factory in Vietnam, meters are installed to monitor the
water consumption which makes analyzing the consumption
index of each production stage easier. As for the Cambodia
factory, it is convenient for the site to source natural water from
wells in the nearby area and meters were installed during the
Reporting Period to monitor the water consumption.

In order to enhance water efficiently, the Group has installed
automatic water saving taps in toilets and has placed written
notices in conspicuous areas to remind staff to save resources.
Moreover, we have also consulted third party professionals to
evaluate the existing energy saving policies and suggest ways to
improve our measures.
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During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to the discharge of sewage
in Vietham and Cambodia, and paid sewage fee to Vietnam
Singapore Industrial Park in Vietham and Manhattan Industrial
Zone in Cambodia, to handle the waste water on our behalf. No
confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by
the Group.

Unit B {iI

Water Usage A7k

IR T ERERRS

REBSHE HABETERRRBERARSK
HBIPR B AERDE R BOER > WA pYE
MR T EERRERENRBR I XEX A
REHE S B A RIFIEIERE K - A E B I
BEERIN A EREMIRF

m3 3 77 K
m3 3 75 K

Water Consumption FB7K &
Sewage ;57K &
Intensity ZE
Water Consumption FB7K =

Sewage ;5 /K2

The Group will continue to put more efforts in reducing
unnecessary water consumption. Therefore, the Group strives
to uphold our leadership in sustainability and aims to reduce or
maintain the water consumption intensity and sewage intensity
between 90% and 120% for the next reporting period, against
the level of baseline year ended 31 March 2022.

Electricity and Energy Usage

In consideration of the potential environmental threats to
the communities, the Group has made steady progress in
reducing its carbon footprints across its business operations.
The electricity consumption of the Group was mainly arisen
from daily consumption at the offices and factories in Vietnam
and Cambodia. Moreover, the Group has engaged third party
consulting company to perform energy audit tests at the Vietnam
factory and provide suggestions and comments on the existing
policies for improvements in electricity and energy usage. The
Group pledges to reduce or maintain the electricity consumption
intensity between 90% to 120% for the next reporting period,
against the level of the baseline year end 31 March 2022.

md/pair of shoes 17 753K &
md/pair of shoes 17 753K /&

259,438 294,131
236,532 232,010
0.0469 0.0534
0.0428 0.0421
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Energy Consumption A5 Unit E i1
Electricity & kWh F EL B

kWh/pair of shoes T 5 B /& &

Intensity &

The following are the measures that the Group has implemented
to preserve energy and electricity:

° Lighting, appliances, machines and equipment are turned
off when they are not in use to reduce energy consumption;

° Air conditioners and lights are turned off during non-office
hours, including lunch hours, and in idle rooms;

o Employees are required to switch computers and other
devices into sleep mode or turn them off when they are not
in use (such as during customer visit and lunch time) during
business hours;

° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air
conditioners, computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure
they are operating efficiently;

° Printing machines in the office are set at energy-saving
mode by default, and the sleep mode is automatically
turned on if not in use for a certain interval in time so as to
reduce unnecessary energy consumption;

o Used printer cartridges are sent to the printing company for
recycling; and

° Investment in technology is made to improve the efficient
use of energy.
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Packaging

The Group’s products mainly use packaging materials such as
paper, paper boxes, and partition cardboard. In response to
environmental protection, the Group has strived to minimize
wastage of packaging materials to the greatest extent by
reducing the use of new cartons through reusing and recycling
old carton boxes. The following table sets forth the total usage of
shoe boxes and carton boxes during the Reporting Period.

2020/21
Shoes

Packaging Material Boxes

wEEM

Total Volume 42 £ ton WA 898.01

Intensity % ton/pair of shoes 0.000162
i

Generation of Waste

The solid waste generated by the Group mainly arises from
day-to-day operations, including, but not limited to, office-use
paper, office waste and excessive materials generated during the
production process. Total paper waste disposed at landfills was
approximately 8,700 kilograms (2021: 10,500 kilograms). Due to
the ease of COVID-19, the paper work from order amendment
decreased compared with the last reporting period as customers
no longer amend their orders frequently. In order to alleviate the
pressure on landfills and promote environmental friendliness,
we have implemented various measures to encourage recycling
of office supplies and other materials, and eliminating the over-
consumption of unnecessary products; prioritizing reuse and
recycling over disposal. For example, the Group promotes the
use of double-sided printing and encourages its employees to
use electronic administrative platforms and online communication
channels.

12553

FEENERmTIEZEHMAR

AR DRI E

BEMK BEHRERE AEECEER D
BEMMIRE  RAREMBBEEMEH RO

WEMRB D MRAERIER -

BHEAEARBERE-

2020/21 2021/22

Carton Shoes

Boxes Boxes

—E-—/

- =

EaRE HE

627.97 847.41

0.000275 0.000154
EEEEY

TREHINREHR

2021/22
Carton
Boxes
g/
- =
EaRE
601.08

0.000109

AEREELENERERENTIEHAEEEESL &
BERERBABR - MLREEREYREEBE
FRETEEFIERME - EHIEE R ENEREE

#78,700F %= (ZE - —4 !

10,500F 52) ° 7
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Both hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are generated during
the manufacturing processes. In order to reduce the production
of solid waste, statistics of waste is recorded monthly in order
to keep track of the volume of disposal of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes. Employees are always reminded to use
resources carefully and avoid using excessive materials during
the process of shoe-making. The head of factory closely monitors
the monthly waste disposal record. If there is a large increase in
the amount of monthly waste disposal, the head of factory will
conduct a thorough investigation and perform follow-up action
promptly. For example, the head of factory will put reminder
labels in the factory or hold a briefing session with the factory
workers to re-emphasize the importance of waste reduction.

As our customers introduce new types of products, the
production process and material were changed accordingly.
Furthermore, during the lockdown period in Vietnam, the factory
integrated 4 warehouses into 1 for cleaning and consolidation.
Hence, both hazardous and non-hazardous waste recorded in
this Reporting Period has increased. The Group will strive to
reduce or maintain the hazardous waste and non-hazardous
waste intensity between 90% and 120% for the next reporting

period, against the level of baseline year ended 31 March 2022.

REBETEELEASKRESERY RELE
TERERY RMESATHERYR R
NERHMBEEREEREEMNREEE - HfIRK
RERE/NOVERER BREREBRETER
BENME -BMEZVEZESANERYEET
HoMAEERYEEEAEBIZM MEEET
WMERFASE > T RERNEETH -HIN BEE
EIRREEESTRATAGBHBRSG  £EH
BENEEZMN -

BEZLAEHHMEER BN EERER
M BE 2 S g b o b Sh > TE R T I AR
THREVEREEHB1EETEEMES
b RAREHERSNEEREBEEEEYHIE
Frigme AEBRN T —ERSHEZTNRHES
BEEYEAEREEEYEERENERTEHEC
LT TF-A=1+—HBNEEFEKFENIORE
120% 2 8

Waste EEEY) Unit E i
Hazardous Waste B ZEEE4) kg F7=
Non-hazardous Waste EEEEEY) kg 7=

Intensity & E
Hazardous Waste & £ EEEY)

Non-hazardous Waste = EEE=4)
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kg/pair of shoes T 55,/ & #f
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12,153.37 76,856.30
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The Group actively advocates the idea of green and sustainable
working environment, and full compliance with Part D of Article
36 Chapter V of the Vietham Law on Environmental Protection
and Law on Environmental Protection and Natural Resources
Management of Cambodia. We have recruited licensed parties to
handle all wastes generated during the manufacturing process.
During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance
incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in relation to
waste disposal.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all relevant
environmental laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on us, including but not limited to, Law of Environmental
Protection and Natural Resources Management of Cambodia and
Law of Environmental Protection of Vietnam. No confirmed non-
compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in
relation to environmental issues.

IR T ERERRS

FrERRBEEGERAIFEIFRENES
I & [ ST R IR IR (R 5 A BVE F361RDE
REERERRERERBABEREE L - HFAEHA
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Climate Change RiEEME

The Group reviews and identifies the climate-related risk annually REBTETRRITHNER  SFRT K#b
while conducting the risk assessment. We have considered the RIZEREE - RIS IRIEREERM B ERIR
potential climate-related risks in respect of the recommendations BETFENEZEEEBTNREMEERE 815
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure, which MiHRARAR N EERRGREEEE oA
are the physical risks such as extreme weather conditions MrEEER R BEREERR RN T
and transition risks such as regulatory change or emerging

technologies, and the potential climate-related risks are

summarised as below:

Short Medium
(current (one to Long
reporting three (four to
Risks Type Potential Financial Implications period) years) ten years) Mitigating Strategy
EIREY BEMBETE BE (RREHE) P (—E2F) REM@E+E) EHER
Low Medium High
1 T =0
Physical Risks Acute o Established safety
iRk management system,
Reduced revenue and increased costs from including adverse
business and supply chain disruptions due weather guidelines
to extreme weather conditions
=43 o RUZZEEZHK B
ERHRRES
RABIHR RN EHEB R AR G
BN 3%l
Chronic e Adopted energy
conservation measures
Increased operating costs related to to reduce the impacts
the sustained elevated temperature of our works on
environment
18k o REERAERREADIR
HIRENTE

BARMNEERALEM

JB
i
Fi
apt
B
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Potential Financial Implications
BHEMBRE

Low Medium High
1§ h =

Short Medium
(current (one to
reporting three
period) years)

AR (RREHR) P8 (—E=%)

IR T ERERRS

Long

(four to

ten years) Mitigating Strategy
R (ME+H) REHER

Transition Risks
BE AR

Changes In climate-related regulations
Higher compliance or operating costs due to

the adoption of more rigorous regulatory
standards

R ZRE S

RAERENEERESRARAEEN S
1

¢ Continuous monitoring
of the regulatory
environment

¢ Adopted mitigating
measures to reduce the
impacts of our works on
environment

¢ Adopted measures in
coping with the power
restrictions imposed by
the local government

o REBELREEERE

o FREURERHERELUR T
RHERGENTE

o REUEHEMBUFIEM
B 1 IR B9

Emerging technology

Increased costs due to the adoption of
new practices or materials that are more
environmentally friendly

Shift in customer preference

Reduced revenue due to reduced demand of
products and services

ATEL T

R IR AR B AR S B A i

E m B RS B R D B AR

¢ Keeping abreast of
the industry standards
and adopted green
procurement

¢ Adopted stringent
environmental
management system
to ensure the Group
meets the expectations
and requirements of the
customers

o RETERE RAL
B

¢ RARBHNREEEZ

B RREEEATSR
PHHERER
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HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND AR RIRIE - ERERREIESIA
GOVERNANCE GUIDE CONTENT INDEX AES|

Aspect Description Chapter
[Em g =1:1]

A. Environmental

AIRIR
General Information on: Compliance and Grievance
Disclosure

(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
— R B BRBERRRERBHN MKERLIHNBES - BEEREEE SHEKF
BEYNELEZEMN !

(a X &
(b) BTHETABEATENER AR KRR

Bk

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions

FREMIERAT SR EEREREBEREE PERL

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Air Emission
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

FRENIEIREA1.2 B BE1) REREZE @EE2) RERBEHRE UWsE) BFRin
R QNER BE NS EEE U BERMAH) °

66 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE- B REBRS

Aspect Description
EBE g

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FREMISIEAI3 MMELBAEEEYES UEHE) kK MEBER) BE MUSE
BEEM -BEREE) o

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BREMIEIREA14 FMELBESEEVESE CUESE) kK MEBER) BE WUSE
EEM -SEREHE) o

KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

RRENIERA1.E  HIPFTUMNHFREERRBERELE BRI D R

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

FRENIEIEA16 HAEEEERESEEYN G L KEMFTETIIAREB
B #EDE L B IR ERELAY 2 5% o

A2 Use of Resources

A2ERfER

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,

Disclosure water and other raw materials.

— i B BRAEREAER (B8R KrxEMEME) R

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g.

per unit of production volume, per facility).
BRAEMISIEA2.1 BB B mardh) & ﬁE’JE?ﬁ&/YFﬁ%ﬁE RARFEE (UL
FEFTENSE) REE USEEE 1 SERMEHE) °

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

RRENIERA2.2 BEKERTE WMUSEEBEN SERMH) o

Chapter
=111

Generation of Waste

ELERY

Generation of Waste

ELERY

Electricity and Energy Usage

&R AER &

Generation of Waste

ELERY

Generation of Waste

ELEEY

Electricity and Energy Usage

B R FEF &

Electricity and Energy Usage

B R FEF &
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Aspect Description Chapter
[Em Rt EEf

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Electricity and Energy Usage
taken to achieve them.
RESRAEMIEIRA2.3 AT UMNERERANm B ERAEDNESEBEMENN B REFEH

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Water Usage
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

RREMIEIRA2.4 HAKEBUBAKR LEEGFEEEMMEE UKBKE@ZER AKX
T FT3E AL AV A5 R

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) Packaging

and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

RASEIEIRA2.6 HMSFTAEEMHNEE UIMsE) k NER) BXEEE X

fifh& e
General Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the Use of Resource
Disclosure environment and natural resources.
—RIRE BRRBETAHRIERRABERENERCENEE - =P
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Use of Resource

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
FARENIEIRAS.1 HWMMEFITBHIRERAAREENEAXENERKNEES HEREH

xR ENITE -
General Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the Climate Change
Disclosure environment and natural resources.
—ARiIRE BRABBETAHRERAAEREREAZENEEK- RIZZL
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Climate Change

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

FARENIEIRA41 HWIERKAEEHETAELEXRENEARGHEBER > RAMKEL
K REE1TH ©
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Aspect Description Chapter
EBE it =111

B. Social

B.it®

General Information on: Employment and Labor
Disclosure Practices

(a) the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— AR 2 ERFMEE-BEEEA LERE-RA -TERE -2 FEEREFIEZH
ToAE ~ IR I AR MUK ELAth Fl 2 Ko @ A B9 -

(a) HBE; &
() BFHETABEATZENEREZEKRAG
&k} o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-  Employment

or part-time), age group and geographical region.

RRENIERBI1 M RERE WEHIAER)  FRANRMEI DR FEF

B

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region.

FREMISIEB1.2  RUF - FRMEN Rt EE DR EERA- 1E1E
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Description
ik

Chapter
EEf

General
Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI B2.1

RE SR AE WIE1EB2.1

KPI B2.2
PR A M 15 1RB2.2

KPI B2.3

B AR IE1RB2.3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

ERRMZETHRRERRERERRBEELEN

(a X &
(b) BTHETABEATENERERERG

ByEE o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of
the past three years including the reporting year.

BE=F (BREREEE SFETITHHNABKLER

Lost days due to work injury.
ETEELTIEHS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

B PR AR B R R R Z 2 ABRRITRER T -

Health and Safety

REHZE

Health and Safety

REHEZE

Health and Safety
BFHEzE

Health and Safety

General
Disclosure

—MRIRE
KPI B3.1

B A 51883, 1

KPI B3.2

A IE1EB3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.

BERRARERET TIEMENM B KRR ENEER -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
ZHRREEER Wik EEE PR EER) 20N ZIIE
BB

The average training hours completed per employee by gender

and employee category.

BRI R EEERE D BREETMRINFHIRH -
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Development and Training

BERIFH

Development and Training

Zr R

Development and Training

ZE R



General
Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI B4.1

R SR AR 3 1512 B4. 1
KPI B4.2

RS AERIEIRBA.2

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- HHEREGHRS

Description
it

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labor.
BREBLEETKR®RIBSETIH :

(a) B &
(b) BFHETABEATENERERRIES

&Ko

Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labor.

Mt BB ARV T L R R B T 5B T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.
WM ERER B R H A RB R FT R 2 B o

Chapter
=111

Labor Standards

HTHE

Labor Standards

ETEA
Labor Standards

HTHE

General
Disclosure

—RRINER

KPI B5.1
R B AR 30 1512 B5. 1

KPI B5.2

R SRR 1E1EB5.2

KPI B5.3

RS IE12B56.3

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
BREEMEENIRIE KT T RMEBUER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

@8 DM HEEHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how
they are implemented and monitored.

H B RAERHEENES  AERTAREGNHERH
B HEITRERG A

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

7 5 R o8 Bl FE SR B EIR E VIR IR et G A BR RV IE B > LU
AT REER

Supply Chain Management

REEETE

Supply Chain Management

REEETE

Supply Chain Management

REEETE

Supply Chain Management

RERETE

EEEEEMEBERAT Fik 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- HHEREGHRS

Aspect Description Chapter
[EE g EEf

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain Management
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

RRENISIEBS.4 HUATHREHRERRESARRERKRRBNEN UKk REEZEE

MHEARITRERSG %
B6 Product and Service Responsibility
B6EmKRFBEE
General Information on: Product Responsibility
Disclosure
(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
— I B BRMREERMRBHNERELYES BE - RERWEER EZxEAF
MR R £/
(a) B, &
(b) BTFHETABEATZENEREZERRL
=
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls Complaints and Feedback
for safety and health reasons. Mechanism
FRENIEEB6.1 CEENCEXERRBIRAZ2ERRIEAMECGLNED RARRKEHT
Ebe
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received Complaints and Feedback
and how they are dealt with. Mechanism
RRENIEIEB6.2 WEIANERRIRFHNEFEE UREE 5% RFFR R B
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting /ntellectual Property Rights
intellectual property rights.
RARAENIEIEB6.3 it R RIS H A E A RRE G o 3 E 1
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IRIE- B REBRS

Aspect Description Chapter
fEm g =111

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Responsibility
procedures.
FASRAAMIEIEB6.4 HitEEREBRRERERARIRZER- EmEF
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Complaints and Feedback
how they are implemented and monitored. Mechanism
RARABNIE1EB6.5 MU BEEBRHMRERMBER  HEARITRERS % RIR R BT
B7 Anti-corruption
B7TR &5
General Information on: Anti-corruption
Disclosure
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
— MR E BRI LEERRE « $h3R  IREF Rt B 2RY ¢ RET
(a) B, K&
(b) ETFTHBETABEAZENERMEE LR
K&k} o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Anti-corruption

brought against the issuer or its employees during the Year
and the outcomes of the cases.

FREMIEREB7.1 REAFEHNUETANHEERLIUCECHNE SHLETFN KET

HEKRFRER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures, how they are implemented Anti-Corruption
and monitored.

RASRAAXMIEIEB7.2 i EE > HRANITRER G £ RES

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-Corruption
and staff.

RAREMISIER7.3 HMEERETRMEMNRESIEC RES
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- HHEREGHRS

Description
Rt

General
Disclosure

— RN EE

KPI B8.1

B R AE R IE1RBS A

KPI B8.2
RSRAE 518882

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BREUMEZERTRETAEEMEIHEREMRARAE
BEBeERHEF mIBER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labor needs, health, culture, sport).
EIERERE MBS REEE - FIFR - BR XLt -8

B) e

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIBBAMBAER WEHRFFR) -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board is committed to ensuring the self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. These include a Board with high caliber members,
Board Committees and effective internal audit and good systems
of internal controls. The Board and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Company regularly reviews the corporate governance
procedures and developments of the Company. The corporate
governance duties have been delegated by the Board to the
audit committee of the Company. The primary duties of the audit
committee in relation to corporate governance include developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board, so as
to enhance and to ensure the corporate governance practices
of the Company are in line with the relevant requirements. The
Company applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms without deviation from
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2022.

TEERBRS

EEERAER
AABBHETERRBRZRER  LURIEEA LT
RRZAG - ZEFERNHFEAFERFES
B URERALAFRRNm - BEEERGUEHE
REXNEENZETE EFXEZET -AUR
BEZRERABEZEFNE EFEREARTE
ERRNNRHERRENEEEBERNEF &
NERERUENERERESAUNEE B2
NABXIE I BN ER SRR REBER
FHREER - ARB EERBRA LT RABZEEE
BREFRER - BEFEEHZREALTEREZEG
BEANBZEXELAER-BENEZEGAME
FELRZIEBEEEMT BN ERT ZE
FEAHRKRERKAESSFHES FILRE
AAERBZEXEEARRKBERETSHEBAR
EoARBNBEERBEFARBHENEBH SR
ZARARABRES EMAER (TEHRA) Wk
Tz EEATH ((EXEEATR) AT
X Z IR WETF 2 ETRIFEX -

EFETESFRS

AR ERM—EEFETESTRBZTAT
A BRI R RBE L RAMERTFr#iz b
BTANEFETESFRGZRETR (MREST
Al R REBEERE-ERMBESRIFLHA
REHE EENEE_SF=A=+—H
IEFERBBEETZITATRRIRETRIFTR
EZBBEREURHEFTGREFTETESTRS
2177 THe
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=52
TEERRS
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE BIANE
Board of Directors
BExg
(3 Executive Directors,
3 Non-executive Directors and
3 Independent N\
Non-executive Directors)
(ZRHITES =B IERIT
EER=BBIUFNTES)
Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee Audit Committee BEEZES
FHEES EREER (1 Executive Director,
(1 Executive Director (1 Non-executive Director 1 Non-executive Director
and 3 Independent and 3 Independent and 3 Independent
Non-executive Directors) Non-executive Directors) Non-executive Directors)
(—BHWITESER (—BIFNITEE R (—HITES
=RBIUFENTES) =RBUERNITESR) —RBIFHITES K
=RBEUIIFENITES)
Int;]n;;I%Aﬁudlt ESG Working Group
by an IhdepentE BR - HERE&RIEN
Y internatﬁ)nal (3 Exeogtive Directors and
accounting firm) Reonior managemag
(F 7B 12 B S @ 5t 7 =Rl L
BOARD OF DIRECTORS EFT

The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible and ST BEILUEEZREEREMZADE
effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/her duty EAREE MEFHARNBEITHE 38
in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing applicable TEBEENRFRZEZE (THEEBUXRANT K
laws and regulations and act in the best interests of the Company ERE s RENSAL ROoOEFEFANREE AR
and its shareholders. During the year under review and up to the LHE EEe o ESE

date of this report, the members of the Board included:

Executive Directors: BITES

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Chairman) =HIER T (F/E)

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu (Vice Chairman) =iEBAiE BIEE)
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares (Chief Executive Officer) FRZC SR (TTIECAE#L)
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report. In particular, Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, the Chairman, is the mother of Mr.
Chen Yi-wu, Ares, the Chief Executive Officer. Save as disclosed
above and in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”,
there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) among the Directors. Code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer were two separate positions held by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen and Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares respectively with clear
distinction in responsibilities.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The records of attendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings and annual general meeting, and relevant committee
members at Board committee meetings held during the year
under review are set out in the following table:

TEERBRS

JEITESE :

PSS

WERHELE

BkfEE L BrHES ATMmt

BIFRITES !
EBEIESRE
HFLRkE
PREER L

EXERERESENEBZREG WA BN AF
REFEhSEEEAERE cAEM= > EFE
BERRULRITEABRRIEE L ENEHE FR L
NFRBEEREShEEEEANSRBEIFTHKE
B BRZBUEEAME  EB REIH
MER/ BRRMG -RBEEEEBTRZTRE
NEC21MF TERITEEBENABRETUED
REARBANTEE-RER EERITEBRD
BIREFH L T RRIEF R ERET HREEE
EHREED -

EXHESRCH

TRV EEFNODRFERNERTZEFTEE
BRREBFERE  LUKRIEMES S SO
FERBTZEFZEETRIHELE !

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/BTEERY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Annual General

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEy £3g BRZEE RAHZEE HWEZEE RRBEAE
Executive Directors #17TE S
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & & % £ 4/4 N/ATRE A 1 11 11
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu #1884 4/4 N/ATE N/ATE N/AT 11
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares BRZEE 54 4/4 N/ATRE N/ATE N/AT 11
Non-executive Directors JE#HITES
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel &7 30464 4/4 N/ATE A N/ATRE N/ATR 11
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1R 54 4/4 N/ATRE N/ATRE N/ATR 11
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.

BXEEL BLHMES ATFHT 4/4 2/2 11 N/ATE 11
Independent non-executive Directors B EHTES
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 3 IE 04 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven ¥ L4 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel FREE % + 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
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Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim financial statements for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of
reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

Non-executive Directors

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the year under review, relevant materials on
legislative and regulatory updates were circulated to all Directors,
namely Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu, Mr.
Chen Yi-wu, Ares, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip
Brian, Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny,
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel, as
to keep them abreast of any changes to the regulations and
disclosure obligations. Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Wong
Hei-chiu, Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel and
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian, also attended relevant training courses
on management, duties and responsibilities of a director and/or
other topics organized by external professional bodies during the
year under review to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since 2000
with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior executives from
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising
from, including but not limited to, any proceedings brought
against them during the performance of their duties pursuant
to their respective service agreements entered into with the
Company.

TEERBRS

HEERERE

RIBEEERTRIZTRFRECA 4% EFT
ASHEFEFXRERIE RN B MA@ R
FE I RAEREHEFTETZ EMRTREKL A
ZHE-NEIEEER  BERREREHANE
MENEZEXG2REE AIEFHLL &EE
HBeE BRI A BUESRE IR E
BB BRESE - HFIIEERRES
L) L REZEMOERREBEEEZEM
P -FHRWL L HEBRE WELETLE MR
EXEERMRGERERBEFEATZMT
RINPEERRBEINAEE EFNHEREE
MR R, HEMERERIENERTE » LRI E
FLR 8 B 3% BE ©

EFRITHAENEERE

FABBE_ZTTFEERBRE SHERER
EERBRITBRABNENRL REBE-
BEMMAN BREEARRAEZEZERTHAER
BEBRAARBFTUNRGHERITHRER
AR EE tH B E T EfF 50 ©
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PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board considers that all meetings should be properly
convened. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the bye-laws of
the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary.
Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of all the
Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of
all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have
access to such minutes.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules, the
Company should establish a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee consisted of an
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors
as set out below:

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors with reference to the
factors including salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory
role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the remuneration packages of the Directors are fair
and reasonable and has recommended the same for approval by
the Board. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 116 of this report.

TEEERERS

E RN
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2022
is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates
for Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s
bye-laws in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013. The policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In determining the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee will consider board
diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy and review the same as
appropriate.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy, which sets out
the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
Directors, with the objective to ensure the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

1. Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

° Reputation for integrity

° Accomplishment and experience

° Quialifications

° Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest

o Independence — in case of nomination or re-
appointment of independent non-executive Directors,
the requirements and guidelines on independence of a
candidate in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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2. Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call
a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

The Nomination Committee should evaluate such
candidate based on the selection criteria mentioned
above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If he or she is considered appropriate, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval for filling a casual
vacancy. For proposing candidates to stand for election
at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall
make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. A candidate is allowed to withdraw his/
her candidature at any time before the general meeting by
serving a notice in writing to the company secretary of the
Company. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to the recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting. The Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and performance
on the Board.

If an independent non-executive Director is subject to
re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
will also assess and consider whether the independent non-
executive Director will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee consisted of an
executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Chairman)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all
the existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by
the Company. Further, in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws and as resolved by the Nomination Committee, Mr. Chen
Yi-wu, Ares, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel and Ms. Chan Mei-bo,
Mabel will retire from office by rotation, and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control systems.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit
Committee consisted of a non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, interim and annual
reports, the accounting principles and practices adopted and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee also reviewed
and approved the external auditor’s remuneration and terms of
engagement and recommended the Board for re-appointment of
the external auditor.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties, including:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

o To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

o To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

o To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditor are fair and reasonable.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group. During the year under review, the
fees payable to the Company’s external auditor for audit services
and non-audit services were HK$1,945,000 and HK$461,000
respectively. The non-audit services relate primarily to tax
compliance and consultancy services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting
period and of their financial performance and cash flows for
that year in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which reflect the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The Directors’ responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
independent auditor with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2022 are set out on pages 123 to 132 of this
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an
adequate and sound enterprise risk management and internal
control system and through the Audit Committee and, if
necessary, an external independent professionals to provide
internal control services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness
of these systems at least annually, covering material controls,
including financial, operational, compliance and strategic risk
control functions. The Board understands that such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates
any material issues identified to the Board.

During the year under review, the Company appointed BT
Corporate Governance Limited (an operating entity of Baker Tilly
Hong Kong) (“BTCGL"), an external independent professionals to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCGL to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings
and recommendations of BTCGL as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
during the year. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversight risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the following principal
risks of the Group were identified and classified into strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.
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Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by BTCGL. The Group adopts risk management
policy and procedure (the “Risk Management Policy”) and
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major
risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the
Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major
risks and records management’s action taken to mitigate the
relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on
its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group.
The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can
take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on
an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensuring that
risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate goals
in an effective manner.
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The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its
needs. Nevertheless, the directors will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”). The internal
control mechanism includes information flow and reporting
processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures,
and staff training arrangements, etc.

DIVIDEND POLICY

It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth. The Company expects to maintain a general dividend
policy of declaring and paying approximately 30% to 60%
of the Company’s consolidated net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company in each financial year subject to
the financial performance, business development, working capital
requirements and capital expenditure plan of the Group. The
Company may in addition from time to time consider to declare
special dividends subject to the macroeconomic environment,
funding needs on business development, overall cash position
and any future capital commitments of the Group.
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Declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board, taking into
consideration of, among others, the following factors:

(i) operations and earnings;

(i) business development;

(iiiy  liquidity position;

(iv)  capital requirements and surplus;

(v)  general financial conditions;

(vi)  contractual restrictions (if any); and

(vii) any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

Subject to the Companies Act of Bermuda and the bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”), the Company may from time to
time declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the members
of the Company but no dividend shall be declared in excess of
the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to
be justified by the profits of the Company. Any declaration and
payment as well as the amount of the dividend will be subject to
the Bye-laws and the Companies Act of Bermuda.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and announcements.

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to express their views and ask Directors and
management questions regarding the Company. All shareholders
of the Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and SGM and other corporate communications.
Separate resolutions are required at general meetings on each
distinct issue. Each shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote in his stead.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
NOMINATE A DIRECTOR, MAKE PROPOSALS
AND CONVENE GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder,
who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of director(s), wishes
to propose a person (other than the shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a director of the Company, the shareholder must
deposit a written notice to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company. Details for nominating candidates
to stand for election as a director are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

(i) Any one or more shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
shareholders may submit a written request to make proposals
or move a resolution at a general meeting; or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting. Such request must be deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the company secretary of the Company, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Details of the
requirements and procedures for making proposals or moving
a resolution at a general meeting are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office and at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Details
of the requirements and procedures for convening general
meetings are set out in the Corporate Governance section of the
Company website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company by addressing them to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at 17th Floor, Empress Plaza, 17-19 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by email to
kingmkra@netvigator.com for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary will
forward:

1. communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the executive Directors of the Company;

2. communications relating to matters within a Board
committee’s area of responsibility to the chairman of the
appropriate committee; and

3. communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to the appropriate
management of the Company.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all voting at the Company’s general
meetings shall be conducted by poll. The Company’s bye-laws
have set out the procedures and requirements of voting by poll.
Such voting procedure would be explained by the Chairman at
the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for
all employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company will continue its enduring effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try its
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet with
the continuous changing environment and for the benefit of the
shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EEAEEEEABER

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
4 Fi B THEY BBER
Executive Directors
HiTES
Huang Hsiu-duan, 65 Executive director and 41 Madam Huang is a co-founder of the Group, and served as

Helen
EH

96 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Chairman

QTEERER

the Chairman and the Chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company with effect from 1 February 2020. She is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) working group
of the Company and serves as a director for the subsidiaries
of the Company. She is responsible for formulating the overall
business strategies and policy development, and future
development plans for the Group. Madam Huang has more
than 45 years’ experience in the footwear industry. Madam
Huang is the mother of Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple and Mr.
Chen Yi-wu, Ares, mother-in-law of Mr. Su Yi-ren and elder
sister of Mr. Huang Chun-hua, Charles. Madam Huang is one
of the directors of King Strike Limited, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
BERTAREERMAZz— B2 _SF_A—HILER
IRRALRARLZEG IR BT AXRIHFMEES R
B gkEn (MBR-HERER) THENMRBLRAR
BEEMBARETESZ RASNTAEERBERRR
RHRERURARER B - FU L ARNIOFREEL
BoBUTARFEERRAFLE 2SR HECEE
EEUREBEREN G Z R T AKing Strike Limited (2
ARAREBHFRAERABXVBETRENFTERR) NEH—
LESFo
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EEREEEEAEBERE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
g FE B THEH BHELR
Chen Yi-wu, 30 Executive director 6  Mr. Ares Chen joined the Group in 2016 and is also the vice
Ares and Chief Executive Officer president of the Group. Mr. Chen was appointed as the
A== HTESERTEES Chief Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 1 May

2019. Mr. Chen was also appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 February 2020 and a member of the
ESG working group of the Company. He is responsible for
the execution of the Group’s strategic plans and enterprise
development, in charge of the management and overseeing
the Group’s production and customer relations. He holds
a bachelor's degree of Arts in Economics from Tamkang
University in 2014. After graduation, he continued to further
his studies in Business Psychology at University of Leeds, the
United Kingdom. Mr. Chen is the son of Madam Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen and a brother of Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple.
Mr. Ares Chen is one of the directors of King Strike Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
BRERRER_S—REMALER T AKXEENERE -
BRELBE_E-NERLA-HREZEAAEENEREE
B RAETEZEATHARURERRDRE HERES
IEMERE B2 25 _A—HBEN -RAFNTE
EEFRANRGCEER AREBIEEAEENG AR
BREG BN _E-—NERSHNIASKERR LS8
2 RRERNZASEELER RV ESR IR RE
SREFRUTIZF UARFENENE R -BEAELER
King Strike Limited (AR BN EHRAERAEXVEETR
ENTERR) WHP—HES
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EEAEEEEABER

Business experience

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service
3 Fi B EHEH
Wong Hei-chiu 55 Executive director 14
BB and Vice Chairman
RITEERETE
98 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer of the Group,
company secretary and a member of the ESG working group
of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for assisting the
chairman to formulate the overall corporate strategy and
policy development, supervision and management of the
Group’s overall financial matters and investor relations.
Mr. Wong obtained an Executive Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Sustainability Directorship from The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and completed the Prince of Wales’
Business Sustainability Programme from the University of
Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership in 2019.
Mr. Wong holds an Executive Master's degree in business
administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a Bachelor’s degree in business administration from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising), a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
BERENAREBZERMBEREARAZABNERE
B HERERALIENEME BEL B EMETEHEEE
PERBERYRER REREEAEEZEBMBEER
REERG -BERER - NENNNEEAEZLEN
TEERETRHEEEMTHAE R (Executive Diploma in
Corporate Governance and Sustainability Directorship) i i
BB ABOEFESE 2R (University of Cambridge Institute
for Sustainability Leadership) 2R BRI 1 £ F Al B £ %512
(Prince of Wales' Business Sustainability Programme) o & 5t &
HEERTNAZEMBAE T2 REBERAZHEER
BIB-RAREGHE NREFKFATEHAMAEER
SR ARBARRAN ST ARG ERGERE B
MAEEE -BRETATEESEEEERER-
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EEREEEEAEBERE

Position held

B

Number of
years of
service

EREHR

Business experience

GEEL

Mr. Wong has over 31 years of corporate finance and financial
management experience in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr.
Wong is an independent non-executive director of Prosperous
Printing Company Limited, whose shares are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Vico International Holdings Limited,
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from January 2018 to March 2019. Prior to joining
the Group in 2008, Mr. Wong has worked as the group
financial controller and company secretary in a Hong Kong
listed electronics manufacturing company for over 8 years;
and as the finance director and company secretary in another
Hong Kong listed wholesale and distribution company for over
4 years.
BREEEERTRRERANFLENBERIBERAEL
B -ZREBRMPBHRMCGEM LTz EENRIBRAT
ZEIUFPTES B E—\E-AE_E-NE=A"&
RARORBRAIR LT ZESERERERAT ZBIF
PIEF-BREN_STN\EMALEEF R —BES
BLHZEFREAEAERVBEERARNEREE ;
TERE—BAEELTZHERDFHLANEETHBESK
REPEBAF -
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Name Age
3 Fie

Position held

B

Number of
years of
service

EREH

Business experience

EEEL

Non-executive Directors

FRITESR

Chan Ho-man, 67
Daniel
BEX

Kimmel, Phillip Brian 70
fxh

100 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Non-executive director

FRTES

Non-executive director

FRATESR

26

28

Mr. Chan has been with the Group since 1996. He is
responsible for advising the management on the corporate
strategy and policy development.

Mr. Chan is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan retired as the
company secretary of Kin Yat Holdings Limited with effect
from 1 September 2020, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan has more than 43 years’
accounting and corporate finance experience in Hong Kong.
BEER—ANANENMALTER - REENCERBRRERE
BRAEEERHERR

BEEABEEHAMAEEE RELEBE_E_2ENA
—HERERGEERRAAZRAEANE  ZABRBIAR
IRET-BRELARBRERBGHRARANH LR

Mr. Kimmel has been with the Group since 1994. He is
responsible for the Group’s investors and customer relations.
Mr. Kimmel has more than 46 years’ extensive experience in
the footwear industry. He holds a Bachelor’s degree from the
University of Southern California and a Master’s degree from
the University of Washington in China Regional Studies.

ARER—NANENMATER RIEEEAEE KSR
EREPEGEE NAFANEEFBBIOE 88 R
BHEEEEANMAS2 LM REREASFEREREL
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EEREEEEAEBERE

Number of
years of

Name Age Position held service  Business experience
" Fi BO EHEY BHER
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, 72 Non-executive director 28  Dr. Chow serves as a member of the Nomination Committee
Ant\honx SBS, J.P FHITER and the Audit Committee of the Company.
BXxEEL Dr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise in Hong Kong and
BEMES AT England and Wales. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong

Kong for over 42 years and is currently a senior consultant
and global chairman of the law firm Messrs. Guantao & Chow
Solicitors and Notaries. His principal areas of practice include
corporate and commercial, property law, probate and civil
litigation. Dr. Chow is a China-Appointed Attesting Officer, an
arbitrator of South China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission/Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration and the chairman of Process Review Panel for
the Financial Reporting Council. Dr. Chow was awarded the
Honorary Fellowship of the Hong Kong Education Institute, the
Honorary Fellowship of King's College London and the Doctor
of Social Sciences, honoris causa, by The Open University of
Hong Kong in 2018.
Dr. Chow is currently a member of the National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
He is also an independent non-executive director of MTR
Corporation Limited, Ping An Healthcare and Technology
Company Limited and Beijing North Star Company Limited,
all are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director
of S.F. Holdings Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and Independent Director of OneConnect
Financial Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange.
Dr. Chow was previously a non-executive director of China
City Construction Group Holdings Limited, an independent
non-executive director of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and
the president of The Law Society of Hong Kong. He is also
the former chairman of the Process Review Panel for the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, the board
of stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club, and the former
deputy chairman of the council of The Hong Kong Academy
for performing Arts. He was appointed a Justice of the Peace
in 1998 and awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star medal in 2003.
BETALANRRESARENBER I ME
B ERBRE R ANERMHR
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EEAEEEEABER

Name

4

Position held

B

Age
Fie

Number of
years of
service

EREH

Business experience

EEEL

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFRGTES

Tam King-ching, 73

Kenny

B

102

Independent
non-executive director

BIUFNTES

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

28

Mr. Tam serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as
a member of the Restructuring and Insolvency Faculty
Executive Committee in the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is a past president of The Society of
Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Tam also serves as
an independent non-executive director of seven other listed
companies on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely,
Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited (formerly
known as Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited), Starlite
Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings
Limited, BeijingWest Industries International Limited, West
China Cement Limited, GBA Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Greater Bay Area Investments Group Holdings Limited) and
Wisdom Education International Holdings Company Limited.
BEREARARRENERZEE IR RALZEERFHZER
BZRE BABARYEGHM BRADEGHIABZER
EERNMEARZABERAEEGHNAGER BR4ER
ERCHMACERNIREEER BB ITRETERE
BRBEBEANGHDAGAEER BEEMEEEMLE
RERMERLMZAE HEEEXERRFEEERAT
FIBERENA (EE) ERAR) EXEBARREES
BerRERAS RAEIERERAR RREELKES
RAB)CBAREERAR RIBAEERELRERRRA
B) RATHEERERERAD GIRERABERERE
RRE)) 2BUFHTES



Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EEREEEEAEBERE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
4 FE B THEH BHELR
Yung Tse-kwong, 72 Independent 16 Mr. Yung serves as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Steven non-executive director Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee
AL BIERTEZR and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung

was the former Chief Executive Officer of Imagi International
Holdings Limited and was the former Chairman of Clear
Media Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. As Managing Partner of Glocal LLC,
Mr. Yung has over 41 years’ management experience from
leading multinational companies in the media, entertainment,
consumer, retail and FinTech industries. Mr. Yung began
his career as a producer with Hong Kong Commercial
Broadcasting Company Limited and has since held various
senior management positions at The Coca-Cola Company in
the United States of America and Asia, served as Regional
Managing Director of AC Nielsen China, Hong Kong, Taiwan
and Korea and as President of Nielsen Media International. He
had been a director of the Cable and Satellite Broadcasting
Association of Asia (CASBAA), and is currently a Director of
the Child Development Matching Fund.

AEERATRAFHNEZEG TR URELZEGRELE
BEME -HELEAERERERBRAR ZAEITHAE
ERERRMERERABDZARER MEARBMRIME
1R £ fE%AGlocal LLCZBEEABEA AALREBBIIE
REXBEGE BEER RE - HE TEREMBNEE
BrEEER AAENBANREBBXERERAE
EREFER-B BRENZERTNHMRAARLRF
FRZESREER EAERNACHEESRERF
“EB BEREE KNielsen Media InternationalZ 4%
& &I Cable and Satellite Broadcasting Association of Asia

(CASBAAES RARELRREHERES
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Name

4

Number of
years of
Age Position held service

& B EREY

Business experience

EEEL

Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 50 Independent 11

BxH

104

non-executive director

BIUFNTES

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Ms. Chan serves as a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan is the founder of
Mabel Chan & Co, Certified Public Accountants (Practicing)
and became the deputy managing partner of Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited in 2016. Ms. Chan has over 29 years'
experience in professional accounting field in Hong Kong.
Ms. Chan serves as a member of the Securities and Futures
Appeals Tribunal of HKSAR since April 2017, a member of
the Export Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board
of HKSAR since July 2017, a member of the Air Transport
Licensing Authority of HKSAR since August 2017, a member
of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board of HKSAR since
September 2017, a member of Hong Kong Business
Facilitation Advisory Committee since July 2020, a member
of Hong Kong Academy of Finance since December 2020, a
member of the Independent Police Complaints Council since
January 2021 and a member of the Corruption Prevention
Advisory Committees of the ICAC since January 2021. In
addition, she served as a council member of the Association
of Women Accountants HK from January 2006 to March
2017 and the president of the aforesaid Institute in 2010, a
member of the Council of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants from December 2007 to December 2018
and the president of the aforesaid Institute from December
2016 to December 2017. She served as the president of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors from December
2009 to December 2010, a member of Barristers Disciplinary
Tribunal Panel of Hong Kong from May 2010 to May 2020, a
school board member of Hong Kong Baptist University from
January 2013 to December 2018, a member of the Appeal
Panel (Housing) of Hong Kong from April 2014 to March 2018,
and a member of Small and Medium Enterprises Committee of
HKSAR from January 2015 to December 2020.
ButAAABENEEE ELEEERFNEEL LA
oLt AMR SEAEBMNAR I TR T
ERANE (BE @HASHMERAR
LTREBZ e

—tEmAR ;

e

ER°E

m
oy M)

=
=i

)
=
4
~
~

puall|
l_m
i
pr:
op/>

)

E'l
ot
< Ihe
© =
H’@gll

e
DH 18> mgp
it
7k
e
S oy
e
MM
SHH DS
AR
o 9
ks
ey
=

o i g | RS 1 |

= 5

4B

=

&)
3
o
i)
aff
EE
0O
- I
=t I8
Sa
=
amn
By
o
Y1
Al

|
r\_
m
=
Jo
G
B
B

Y me) 2
o = 55 g
o
=

|
’_k
_FH’
~+
|
g FH

m+mml§mmmm
iz
B
il
YEH
Jmo
ey
2317/

A 2o v
FH Mo o = )im -y
Dﬂﬁ&m P>

I 18 B S I

0 B B oif

/

> O

J0XPA 30 5,
[ 15

8 )0

e H
77 muwﬁﬁé

il
M0k |
L g I =

=H| 1o

e O o DR
7 335 D O i

A5 A0 D S T
0 57 B

A

4:9-

[_\_

1o
R
1 > i ek e et
D O o Y

~ |11
~am

| 55
A
D

RIZ—TFE

FORSEFTE |

/

i i
|1 et - e
Y =k

B

FANIEE T M |
~
>

e I8

74
R e = s i U S

] gl

_FH-

+

g

Ep m it
=

g
N

U AR S S = W RN b

R > 8 i
il
E\'IL

il im

B

N

|

=8

m

o e 0
WS
=
e

[l
o<

i oA
ok
REex

M

[

A
|

an
=3
s

m | H
oghmo || |
=
!

]

-
=
| | ao-~

A HM

[ 11

HOf 1] TR
(e
A iR il
| 1 FY o8y
Y R A
Y i 4B

01+ 4
| =
Jo-hY

0 KM mE ) T < |
° Hr

—+ S A I
| I SHEE R | R

.
B
1o

e

W= S

i
m
H
of
k)
)"é \
>
pilli]
s
ol
pil



Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EENSEEEASRERE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience

i F& R THEY BHER

Ms. Chan holds a master degree of business administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2000 and a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in accountancy
from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as City
University of Hong Kong) in 1993. Ms. Chan is a Certified
Public Accountant (Practicing) in Hong Kong, a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
council member and an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and a member of CPA Australia.
Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of another listed company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, namely, Renrui Human Resources
Technology Holdings Limited. Ms. Chan was an independent
non-executive director of a listed company on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, namely Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.
during the period from June 2015 to December 2021.
BN _EEEREREANBARIBERBRL 20
ETR—ANZFESERTEIZR REBASTANTA
B)ERXZEL (BE) B TEEH ML LATENE
@%%Eﬁi@i%EM?S@JBM@Z%%@E CBAGHEAA
EEBEREE ERBNEENFTEANAEEER
/7—/m = D'I'Em -\ﬁﬁg °
BT REEES—KRBRMER LT AR BARAL R
BERERAR) WBIFATES BUTER_S—1F
NAEZE_-F+_RBBEE-RIRBRMAERLTA
7 (AN MRITRHBRAR) NBILFHNTESR.

Senior Management

EREERE

Lai Chi-hang, David 55 Group 29  Mr. David Lai has been with the Group since 1993 and is
RER/ financial controller a member of the ESG working group of the Company. He
EEBEE is responsible for the Group’s accounting and financial
management and serves as a director for the subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Lai holds a Master's degree in business
administration from University of Wales. He has more than
33 years’ experience in auditing, financial accounting and
financial management.
REREER-NANZEMAFEBLAAABRE HE
RERIHENENE -REEAERZ G RUBERLE
E$’&7I’ﬂlﬁ”&7§$°y%ﬁEhﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgIﬁEEEE
T2 AABBNBERE MBS AMBERLR
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Name

4

Business experience

EEEL

Huang Chun-hua,
Charles
BEE

Yang Mu-lang
ZUN-

Su Yi-ren
BEC

Number of

years of

Age Position held service

Fie B EHEH

62 Vice General Manager 39
Bl4EE

61 Vice General Manager 18
BlaEsE

36 Assistant General Manager 10

7

106 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Mr. Charles Huang has been with the Group since 1983.
He is currently in charge of the overall factory sourcing and
operations of the Company. Mr. Huang has more than 39
years’ experience in the footwear industry. Mr. Huang is the
brother of Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.
BEERER-NNZENALEB - BRTEEEART
MEIRZBBEREE R4 T RELZRABBF LR
BEERAERRRLTZAS

Mr. Yang has been with the Group since 2004. He is in charge
of the factory operation in Zhuhai. With effect from 1 January
2021, Mr. Yang has promoted to Vice General Manager and
in charge of the factory production in Vietnam. Mr. Yang has
more than 38 years’ experience in footwear factory.
BRENR_ZZENEMALER FEZAERBRLEE-B
B -E-A-HE BELEARRALETIEES
BEBZEEEE BRI TNERERBEZ LR

Mr. Su has been with the Group since 2012. He was in charge
of the quality control management of the Company and lead
multiple functions in Cambodia in 2015. He has promoted to
Assistant General Manager of a subsidiary of the Group and in
charge of the factory operation in Cambodia in 2021. Mr. Su
has more than 10 years experience in the footwear industry.
Mr. Su is the son-in-law of Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.
BEER_Z-—_EMAXER RN _Z-HFIBHE
ARBIBERHEBL N RBRASLERELI KN
E_-EEAALAEENBRAAZRE TZEERERR
BB BALANEERBEI0E AR HELARAR
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
4 Fi BO EHEY BHER
Wertz Todd Anthony 53 Vice President, Marketing and 4 Mr. Todd Wertz joined the Group in January 2018. He is
ER Business development responsible for the Group's sales and marketing, business
TR EREENED MY development and in charge of the R&D center in Zhuhai

factory. Mr. Wertz has over 29 years’ experience in the
footwear industry. Prior joining the Group, Mr. Wertz served
as a Regional President (Asia) in K-Swiss International
Manufacturing Limited (“K-Swiss”) from 1998 to 2017. He was
mainly responsible for the establishment of legal entities and
standard operating procedures for quality control, in charge
of the manufacturing and supply chain management within
APAC, including Vietnam, Indonesia, Hong Kong, Thailand,
China and Taiwan; and the management of planning and
operations with OEM factories. Before joining K-Swiss, Mr.
WERTZ served as a sales manager in Trust Leather Company
and as a SMU manager in K-Swiss International from 1992
to 1993 and from 1993 to 1994 respectively. From 1995
to 1998, he served as a Line Planner and Finished Goods
Buyer in Pearl Izumi. In 2017, Mr. WERTZ also established
Lysi Solutions to act as OEM sourcing strategist and
turnaround specialist on helping companies to optimize their
supply chains, quality enhancement, software integration
management, corporate trainings and providing profitability
solutions.

Mr. WERTZ holds a bachelor degree of Arts in International
Relations from the University of Colorado in 1991. He also
studied in Tunghai University for several intensive Mandarin
Chinese language study programs.
XEARER_E-N\E-BNALEER TEQGEXE
BNHE mARERERLERURTIEAEHBRNM
BhRL XEERERITERARIFLER RAEMAKE
A R—AANEEZE— T EEAK-Swiss International
Manufacturing Limited (TK-Swiss 1) BB 48 % (Til) o X4k
TIEEERIEEERKIGTEERNNRERERES
TEHESAMENRERAEEEE OFHE DE &
B REPERAE; UREEEEOEMIBNRE K E
B o WAEMAK-Swissil> DRR— NN _EE-NN=ER
—ANZEE—NAEEEATust Leather CompanyfsE &
MIBRHK-Swiss InternationallISMULE o LR — AN EE
E—-ANNERPear lzumitEEEEGREMRARHEES
TEB—+E LB TLysi Solutions > T EFOEMIREE
KEARCEBEESEZF UG XBCHRER BT
E EEAHEN PERIRREERBRBEARAFE
XAER—NN—FEGRBNSAZRARMARANEELS
Lo BITMENRBASERELBE B EESHEMRRE
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Business experience

EEEL

Number of
years of

Name Age Position held service
3 Fi B EHEH
Chen Zi-yun, 39 Assistant to Chief Executive 15
Fiona Apple Officer
BRF= TR BN
108 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Ms. Fiona Apple Chen has been with the Group since 2007.
She is a member of the ESG working group of the Company
and also serves as a director of the subsidiaries of the
Company. She was previously the Managing Director and was
in charge of the Group’s retailing business. She assists the
Chief Executive Officer for the implementation of corporate
strategies and coordination among different departments
and business units of the Group. She is responsible for the
overall administration and management information systems
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business operation in
Taiwan. She holds a Bachelor’s degree from National Taiwan
University in International Business. After graduation, she
studied footwear design at De Montfort University, the United
Kingdom. Ms. Chen is a daughter of Madam Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen and a sister of Mr. Chen Yi-wu Ares.
BFEMEE_ZRLEMALER - RAKXRBERE #HE
RERTIIENMERE MEARARMBARNES RAAA
ERELE s EAEENTEER - RRRMTHESES
PEHRLENMEAEREREA AN RE -REER
EENERTHACEENRAAEELAEBGENERE
B-REBEUSERZELZM FTEARER REH
WEHEEDe Montfort University&#2 315 » TEE 48R 5t o[
MNAABESRR T2 X5 T ARERELE RS



The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
34 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the business, a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2022, and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, are provided in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 6 to 74 of this annual

report.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
complied with applicable laws, rules and regulations in all material
respects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 133 to 266.
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A special interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share was
paid on 25 January 2022. The Directors recommend the payment
of a special final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year to shareholders on the register of members
on Monday, 5 September 2022. No final dividend in respect of
the year was recommended by the Directors. Details are set out
in note 12 to the financial statements. Subject to the passing of
the relevant resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, the special final dividend will be payable on
or about Monday, 26 September 2022 in cash in Hong Kong
dollars.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on 26 August 2022. For determining the entitlement
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 23
August 2022 to Friday, 26 August 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong (with effect from 15 August 2022, at 17th Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong), for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 22 August 2022.

Entitlement to the proposed special final dividend

The record date for entitlement to the proposed special final
dividend is Monday, 5 September 2022. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed special final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 1
September 2022 to Monday, 5 September 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed special final
dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 August
2022.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Results

Report of the Directors
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AEBRBELEMREFEZREREELS
B2 MEHIUNT - AR EW LB LI FREK

22— e
E$
Year ended 31 March #E=R=+—HL&EE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

“BICF 2T TZTRE TZ-AE ZT-)N\EF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TAT TAT TAT

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1B/ 3%
REVENUE U

842,687 804,720 1,050,064 1,100,649 1,164,873

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
KREFBCEEBR 2 BRAER/ (58)
Income tax credit/(expenses) Fri8iiE %,/ (B%)

(33,522) 83,884 (73,790) 5,956 227,629
13,703 (4,100) 20,783 27,978 25,634

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REFELEXB2ENET/ (BE)

(19,819) 79,784 (53,007) 33,934 253,263

DISCONTINUED OPERATION B4 IH & #7%
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
REBRIEEEER 2 FNET

- - - - 2,165

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR @7,/ (£518)

(19,819) 79,784 (53,007) 33,934 255428

Attributable to: T3 & B .
Equity holders of the Company K AT #HFH A
Non-controlling interests JF1%R5 &

(18,035) 88,008 (51,386) 35,593 257,260
(1,784) (8,314) (1,621) (1,659) (1,832)

(19,819) 79,784 (63,007) 33,934 255,428

EEREE@MARAT Fik 2022 111



Report of the Directors
EEERS

Assets and liabilities

BEKRAE
As at 31 March =B =+—H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
T “F--F ZEB%HE “E-hF “T-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FiEx FET FET FiET

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ¥ « B = ke 52 f 172,992 185,271 208,531 250,454 278,740
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS ff AR E & 71,359 70,581 73,356 - -
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 81t 1 it 78 E 38 - - - 85,744 91,048
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES B 4% 546,724 547,653 398,711 203,565 197,718
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES B & AR B S 63,973 31,457 17,817 38,501 45,930
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB MEMBERSHIPS & & 445 1,845 1,885 1,924 1,970 858
CURRENT ASSETS MEIE & 800,439 806,558 827,252 920,389 1,116,529
TOTAL ASSETS & & 1,657,332 1,643,405 1,527,591 1,500,623 1,730,823
CURRENT LIABILITIES Tr#h &1 (324,743)  (280,270)  (289,429)  (338,814)  (464,510)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES R E1& & (112,848)  (107,883) (59,525) (25,156) (25,059)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2 & & (437,591)  (388,153)  (348,954)  (363,970)  (489,569)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEi= i s (8,913) (10,697) (19,011) (18,721) (20,380)
1,210,828 1244555 1,159,626 1,117,932 1,220,874
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor,
are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased its 740,000 shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and these shares were cancelled by the Company
subsequent to year end. The Directors considered that the share
repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders of the Company
who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the share
repurchases are set out below:
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BABEE

AABZ ATMARERE—AN—EADE
BREMELEER T WAADBARE
I B B SR B AT A AR o

BE -BEONHESATZ EHEsF

FRARBNEBMERZAARAE (MR
PR 1) B8[BIEL 740,000 IR 17 Ko A A B N F EAE R
BEHZERD -BEFRR ROBEHRFRET
RARBZEREZRRABN - BREIRMFIEEHT
mr

Aggregate

Number of consideration

shares Highest price Lowest price (excluding

repurchased per share per share transaction cost)

wmRE

Month/Year £ B BERzZRHE&E BREEE ERREE FEEXZHEE)
HK$ # T HK$ #7t  HK$000 F#& T

February 2022 —_&E__"&F_ 5 246,000 1.05 0.99 252
March 2022 —ZE - " =H 494,000 1.06 1.04 522
Total #25t 740,000 774
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Further details of these transactions are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Apart from the above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$513,524,000, of which Nil
has been proposed as a final dividend and HK$13,595,000 as
a special final dividend for the year after the reporting period. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount
of HK$90,114,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$185,000 (2021: HK$365,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 96.5% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 64.8%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS £5

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date FARBEAREEBLARB ZERUWT !
of this report were:

Executive Directors: HMITES .

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen =EHHZ T

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu =fEBit

Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares PRZEER A

Non-executive Directors: JERITESE :

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel RS S

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian RELE

Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBS, J.P. kRIS pemes K Tat

Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIEMITESE :

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny EBERERE

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven WEILRE

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel PRETE L+

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. RIBERRNB 2 RABHABETIRRTE » FRZEFE T
Chen Yi-wu, Ares, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel and Ms. Chan Mei- F BREXARERBEBEL TR ERERRES
bo, Mabel will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will A LHRERD INEERKBEREEET.

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and subject to approval by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about, the execution of their duty in their respective offices. The
Company has maintained appropriate directors liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

The related party transactions as set out in note 29 to the
financial statements constitute connected transactions of the
Company and are exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that
it has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Apart from those transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a director had a material beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

TARBBRZEFE

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FRERMEE B REEEE
Percentage
Directly Through of the
beneficially controlled Company’s
owned corporation Total issued shares
ERATE
B#E B B#1TRG
Name of director EE % BHER ZEFIRE st ZESL
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen =& R % + 500,000 298,467,541 298,967,541 43.98%
(Note 1)
(P5E1)
Mr. Kimmel Phillip Brian #6554 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.29%
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel P& 4 5,940,000 - 5,940,000 0.87%
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu & 81854 3,085,000 - 3,085,000 0.45%
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares BRZEEE 4 12,035,000 - 12,035,000 1.77%
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBS, J.P. 3,088,000 - 3,088,000 0.45%
BXxEEL pemes Lret

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 8% IE 4% 510,000 - 510,000 0.07%
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 7 1 %4 1,900,000 - 1,900,000 0.28%

Note: BT

1. These shares comprised (a) 263,960,041 shares held by King
Strike Limited; and (b) 34,507,500 shares held by Fat Tat Assets
Limited. Fat Tat Assets Limited was wholly owned by Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen. The issued share capital of King Strike Limited
was owned by Mdm. Huang Hsin-duan, Helen as to approximately
38.04% and her four children (including Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares) in
aggregate as to 61.96%.
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Long positions in share options of the Company:

Report of the Directors
EFGRS

TAREBERZEFE :
Number of

options directly
beneficially owned

BEEESEREZ
Name of Director EE % BREHE
Executive Directors: HI{TE 5 :
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares [RZE£E 4 850,000
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu =& 844 1,000,000
Non-executive Directors: JEH1TEE :
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel [543 54 600,000
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1] R {65t % 300,000
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sss, J.r.
BKBIE L pengs Avet 300,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: HIIJFHITEE :
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny &% 1E 4t &= 300,000
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7, F L% 300,000
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel fREE & + 300,000
3,950,000

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

fr LB ETEFARDTERARRRE
BEREMAETRERAETHBRABZIFE
m B A B 1 o

frREXPIIRBEEI R_E__F=BA=+—
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AT W 3P 2 B A A B 5 AR T AR Bk OE B AR
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note
26 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in
note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share award scheme are disclosed in
note 26 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme and share award scheme of
the Company, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
EFGRS

FERRREMA TG BB
RFEREER 2 fEm

RIZ-_F=ZRB=+—H'UATHARTFB#IT
RATERES %I U L EHEECHNARTR
BB 5 R E KRG FE3361FBF B 2 Hm & s fiit
A

Long positions: ¥a:

Percentage of

Capacity Number of the Company’s

and nature ordinary issued share

of interest shares held capital

AT

BEITRE

Name % 418 B REHEEE FrsEiEREE 2B

King Strike Limited (Note 1) (FzE1) Beneficially owned 263,960,041 38.75
BHER

Fat Tat Assets Limited (Note 2) (FifzE2) Beneficially owned 34,507,500 5.07
En%ER

Mr. David Michael Webb (Note 3) (FizE3) Beneficially owned/ 47,986,000 7.05
Through control
corporation
EREE
EEZEAE

Mr. Lee Chi Keung ZE&E 5 5TE Beneficially owned 35,198,000 5.17
BaEA

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt (Note 4) (fff5£4) Through control 44,907,000 6.59
corporation
EEZEAE

DJE Investment S.A. (Note 4) (Hfz£4) Beneficially owned 44,907,000 6.59
BaEA

DJE Kapital AG (Note 4) (Fff5£4) Through control 44,907,000 6.59
corporation
EEZEAE
Notes: B 53

1. King Strike Limited was owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
and her four children as to 38.04% and in aggregate 61.96%,
respectively.

2. Fat Tat Assets Limited was wholly owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen.

1. King Strike Limited EH =751k Z T#HE38.04% 5z
HNMZ 7L &5HEF61.96%°

2. Fat Tat Assets Limited B EF WL T2 EHE °
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3. Mr. David Michael Webb was interested in a total of 47,986,000
shares, comprising 18,000,675 shares held by him as beneficial
owner and 29,985,325 shares held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, the entire share capital of which is owned by Mr. David
Michael Webb based on his form of disclosure notification dated 15
January 2020.

4. According to the relevant forms of disclosure notification filed by
Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt, DJE Investment S.A. and DJE Kapital
AG, Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt, being the main shareholder of
DJE Kapital AG, is deemed to be interested in the 44,907,000
ordinary shares of the Company controlled by DJE Investment S.A,
a Luxembourg-based management company and 100% subsidiary
of DJE Kapital AG, via FMM Fonds (ISIN: DE0008478116).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

et
EY:x

To the shareholders of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 133 to 266, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Provision for inventories

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had net inventories
of HK$209.0 million, which represented 26% and 13%
of the Group’s total current assets and total assets,
respectively. The estimation of the inventory provision
requires significant management judgement, which
includes judgement about the recoverability of the cost of
inventories, the nature and condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods and the future usage of raw
materials.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 7 and 17 to
the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the ageing analysis of the Group’s inventories.
We recalculated the inventory provision based on
management’s estimation and assessed the basis,
rationale and consistency of the assumptions applied in the
inventory provision. We assessed obsolescence provisions
by reviewing the subsequent usage of raw materials, work-
in-progress and delivery of finished goods to customers.
We also discussed with management about the potential
obsolete inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuead)

Key audit matter
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$546.7 million, representing 64% and
33% of the Group’s total non-current assets and total
assets, respectively. Management appointed an external
valuer to determine the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties twice during the year. The valuation of
investment properties was highly dependent on estimates
and assumptions, such as those relating to the rental
value, rental growth rate, market yield, market knowledge
and historical transactions.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 15 to the
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We considered the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuer engaged by management. We
involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
assessing the valuation methodology and assumptions
and our procedures included comparing the rent and
term periods against the existing lease agreements and
performing market research on key valuation parameters
such as the rental growth rate, capitalisation rate and
market rent of similar properties.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Tax

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had tax payable of
HK$60.7 million and deferred tax liabilities of HK$103.3
million, which represented 37% of the Group’s total
liabilities in aggregate. The income tax credit amounted
to HK$13.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2022.
Management is required to make judgement and estimates
when determining the tax provision as the Group operates
in a number of tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity of
local and international tax legislation, judgements have
to be made by management on the tax treatment on
transactions in advance of the ultimate tax determination
being certain. Where the amount of tax payable or
recoverable is uncertain, the Group estimates provision
based on management’s judgement of the probable
amount of the liability, or expected amounts recoverable.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 10 and 24 to
the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved our tax specialists to review the tax provision
of the Group. We assessed management’s judgements in
respect of estimates of tax exposures by considering the
associated fact pattern and the Group’s correspondence
with the relevant tax authorities and recent developments
in the tax jurisdictions which may have an impact on
existing tax exposures.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuead)

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”) of HK$173.0 million and right-of-use
assets (“ROU”) of HK$71.4 million. During the year ended
31 March 2022, no impairment provision for PPE and ROU
was made.

Management carried out an impairment assessment on the
assets of the Group which had an impairment indicator.
The amount of any impairment loss was the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amounts of these assets have
been determined based on their fair value less costs of
disposal. Management appointed an external valuer to
determine the fair value of these assets. The valuation
of the fair value of PPE and ROU is highly dependent on

estimates and assumptions.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 7, 13 and 14
to the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We reviewed the competency, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuer appointed by management. We
assessed the key assumptions used by management to
estimate the fair value based on our knowledge of the
business. We also involved our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in reviewing the valuation methodologies
applied and key valuation parameters such as utilisation
rate and market rent adopted in the valuation. We further
assessed the calculation of the impairment loss and the
disclosures related to the assumptions used in impairment
assessment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Wan Fung, Jacky.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place,

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

30 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
l\\TElj:E \%e

Year ended 31 March 2022 Bt — &~ —F=H=1—HIFFEZ

2022 2021

—=E_— —E %

Notes FffzE HK$000 F#7mw  HK$'000 FE7T

REVENUE Y& & B 842,687 804,720
Cost of sales 4% ff 2 (817,488) (766,481)
Gross profit E#l] 25,199 38,239
Other income and gains, net E W A K Ui & 75 28 5 28,793 28,150

Changes in fair value of investment properties

REMEZ AT EE 15 (20,096) 122,863
Distribution and selling expenses 9 #4 & $5 & B 5% (19,650) (17,150
Administrative expenses 17 B & (80,526) (101,810)
Finance costs & A 2 6 (30) (48)
Share of profit of associates & {5 = /A &1 ) 32,788 13,640
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX R AiiaF],~ (B518) 7 (33,522) 83,884
Income tax credit/(expenses) FT 18Rk %, (Bs) 10 13,703 (4,100)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FE R H] (§518) (19,819) 79,784
Attributable to: %! EEL

Equity holders of the Company &K AT EmFA A (18,035) 88,098

Non-controlling interests3F 2= i% # & (1,784) (8,314)

(19,819) 79,784

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

RNB)REDRBEABGESRERN (B8 11
Basic &7

— For profit/(loss) for the year —E R &F]~ (E538) HK(2.69 centsi&fll) HK13.05 centsEll
Diluted #58

— For profit/(loss) for the year— /% F,~ (B518) HK(2.69 centsi#fl) HK13.05 centsi Ll
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
n\7|'\ éﬁl‘ly %

Year ended 31 March 2022 &% — &~ —F=H=+—HIFFZE

2022 2021
=== =&
HK$’000 &7  HK$' 000 TH7T

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR R F] (E518) (19,819) 79,784

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hth & & &=

Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
BRI EEM O EE R R W2 !

Exchange differences: FE R #= %8 :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
MEBIINEEEB ZERERR 14,200 29,105

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FEHEMEEEE 14,200 29,105

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR
FEE2EWE () 48 (5,619) 108,889

Attributable to: T & IEFE(S :

Equity holders of the Company ‘AT #HIFA A (3,835) 117,203
Non-controlling interests JE3Z i #E 2 (1,784) (8,314)
(5,619) 108,889
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EEMTEIRR

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

2022 2021
=== 4
Notes izt HK$’000 &7t  HK$000 TH 7T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEg1 & &

Property, plant and equipment ¥12 ~ i = K % & 13 172,992 185,271
Right-of-use assets fF I E &= 14 71,359 70,581
Investment properties & & ¥ % 15 546,724 547,653
Investments in associates BiE A B R E 16 63,973 31,457
Investments in club memberships BFr & (518 & 1,845 1,885
Total non-current assets JERBIE E42ZE 856,893 836,847

CURRENT ASSETS h#Eh& &

Inventories 7 & 17 209,008 160,690
Accounts receivable FEUTERIE 18 213,523 191,054
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

FANRIA e R EMEWERIE 8,542 7,554
Due from an associate & Ui B = A 5 218 16 64,705 69,073
Tax recoverable B Y [0]#7 18 233 322
Cash and cash equivalents IR& R Z£RIRESER 19 304,428 377,865
Total current assets &) & E4E%E 800,439 806,558

CURRENT LIABILITIES @& & &

Accounts payable f&{JERIE 20 159,743 130,805
Accrued liabilities, other payables and contract liabilities

EstaE EtEMRERSNER 21 87,982 76,395
Bank borrowing $R1T&E 22 14,773 =
Lease liabilities fHE & & 14 1,502 930
Tax payable F&1J #7218 60,743 72,140

Total current liabilities 7R &) & & 42 %8 324,743 280,270

C
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARG MBANTR

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= s
Notes iz HK$’000 F#5t  HK$'000 TH7T
NET CURRENT ASSETS &) & % & 475,696 526,288
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
EEEERREEaE 1,332,589 1,363,135
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEFREh & (&
Lease liabilities fHE & & 14 2,569 =
Deposits received B W i% % 6,937 5,246
Deferred tax liabilities &L IB & & 24 103,342 102,637
Total non-current liabilities JER 8 & E42 48 112,848 107,883
Net assets & E %8 1,219,741 1,255,252
EQUITY %
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
KNB DA ARGER
Issued share capital B 21T 7 25 68,111 68,154
Reserves #H 27 1,142,717 1,176,401
1,210,828 1,244,555
Non-controlling interests JE3Z & 23 8,913 10,697
Total equity # zm A2 28 1,219,741 1,255,252

Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen &% i
Director £%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

l|\7F A Emﬁ@]%

Year ended 31 March 2022 Bt — &~ —F=H=1—HIFFEZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KATFRHERE AELR
Shares
held under
Issued Share Capital share Share  Exchange Asset Non-
share premium  redemption award option  fluctuation  revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
bani
BET &5 Bx  REhEE fERE ER BE FER
A aER EEEE ARG HE  EBEE  EREE  FZEF =5l B EnlB
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKE'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKE000  HK$'000
FHET THT THET TET FHET THT THET TET THT THT THET
At 1 April 2020 R ZE-ZEME—H 68,443 92,806 7,071 (7,200) 9,416 2,676 216,439 769,975 1,159,626 19,011 1,178,637
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF/ (B18) - - - - - - - 88,098 88,098 (8,314) 79,784
Exchange differences related to
foreign operations
BEMIEEB AR ERER - - - - - 29,105 - - 29,105 - 29,105
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year
FE2ENG/ (%) B85 - - - = = 29,105 = 88,098 117,203 (8,314) 108,889
Shares purchased under share
award scheme (note 26)
R RE T BB A RS (5%26) - - - (2,240) - - - - (2,240) = (2,240)
Shares repurchased (note 25)
FBEIRR (D (Mi3E25) (289) (2,256) 289 - - - - (289) (2,545) = (2,545)
Special 2020 dividend declared
and paid (note 12)
ERRENZ_E_ZEERARE
(Fﬁaz) - - - - - - - (13,518)  (13,518) - (13,518)
Interim 2021 dividend paid (note 12)
BRIz E_—EETHRE
(iz12) - - - - - - - (10,136) (10,136) - (10,136)
Special 2021 dividend paid (note 12)
BRIz B —£EHFIRE
(FizE12) - - - - - - - (4,730) (4,730) = (4,730)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 26)
BRMEGEENRMNZ 2B
(Kizk26) - - - - 895 - - - 895 - 895
Share options lapsed (note 26)
BRMERRE (H26) - - - - (700) - - 700 - - -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ll‘7r\ * F*%;%@JE

Year ended 31 March 2022 B{F — &~ —#F=H=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRFRERE ARG
Shares
held under
Issued Share Capital share Share  Exchange Asset Non-
share  premium redemption award option fluctuation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
frf?
2817 R 3 A SRR BERE ER BE Fizl
(28 aEEk HEEEE RERG fE  KBREE SREE  REER Ai s Endm

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TEn TER TER FET FET TAT FET FET FET

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

RIBZ-#=A=1+—-AK

“2”-FmA—-H 68,154 90,550* 7,360* (9,440)* 9,611* 31,781*  216,439*  830,100* 1,244,555 10,697 1,255,252
Loss for the year £RE5E - - - - - - - (18,035) (18,035) (1,784) (19,819)
Exchange differences related to

foreign operations

HENIEXBEMZERER - - - - - 14,200 - - 14,200 - 14,200

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year

FE2ERE/ %) 8%

Issue of shares from exercise of

share option (note 25)

IR MBI R (Fzks) 3 264 - - (52) - - - 243 - 243
Shares granted under

share award scheme (note 26)

TR ID I B AR A (FFiEE26) - - - 2,534 - - - - 2,534 - 2,534
Share repurchased (note 25)
BRIk (F=25) (74) (700) 74 - - - - (74) (774) - (774)

Final 2021 dividend declared
and paid (note 12)
ERRkTZ S —FEERBRE
(MT& 2) - - - - - - - (10,084)  (10,084) - (10,084)
Special 2021 dividend declared
and paid (note 12)
BERKKNZ 2 —FERIR
(HzE12) - - - - - - - (8,740) (8,740) - (8,740)
Special 2022 dividend paid (note 12)
BkTZ_E__F£ERAIRS
(HiE12) - - - - - - - (13,475)  (13,475) - (13,475)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 26)
FUEGEEURN 22 7B

(Bizx26) - - - - 404 - - - 404 - 404
Share options lapsed (note 26)
BRYBERIE (1:E26) - - - - (8,440) - - 8,440 - - -
At 31 March 2022
RZEZZE=F=+-H 68,111 90,114* 7,434* (6,906)* 1,523* 45,981* 216,439*  788,132* 1,210,828 8,913 1,219,741
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHERARGEVBERRIARZES
HK$1,142,717,000 (2021: HK$1,176,401,000) in the consolidated fE#1,142, 717,000 T (ZE - —F :
statement of financial position. 1,176,401,00058 7¢) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2 AL N =]
FeHESRER
Year ended 31 March 2022 &% _ & _— _F=H=+—HIFFZE

2022 2021
s B
Notes fffzE HK$’000 F#&J7c  HK$'000 TH 7T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
KERBFIRZRERE

Profit/(loss) before tax BRI AT HF]  (B518) (33,522) 83,884
Adjustments for: £&XsH%E :
Finance costs B4 & Al 72 6 30 48
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
MR R T E 7,13 29,568 28,805
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {EREE EHTE 7,14 3,611 3,301
Provision for inventories 77 & # 4 7 8,570 3,718

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment, net

HENE BERXEEBZER (K= F58 7 10 (49)
Amortisation of club memberships & Fir & %514 54 7 40 39
Fair value loss/(gains) on revaluation of

investment properties

BEREMEZ RAFEEE (&) 7,15 20,096 (122,863)
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment
ME-BERZHEERE 7,13 - 8,399

Impairment allowance/(reversal of impairment) of
accounts receivable

FE U BRIER B &, CRLE 1 [E)) 7 (1,234) 329
Interest income F| B WA 7 (1,963) (4,433)
Equity-settled share option expense

MigEmtE s BRERAS 7 404 895
Equity-settled share award expense

MERGEE RO REHEE 7 2,534 =
Share of profit of associates FE{4 B % /A 5% ) (32,788) (13,640)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ &)~ 52 & (1,426) (2,438)

(6,070) (14,005)

Decrease/(increase) in inventories 2 & 8->, (€ 10) (56,888) 2,131
Increase in accounts receivable & UK ERIEIE N (21,235) (53,976)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

FEMTRIE e R EAEUARIER > (35 m) (857) 413
Increase in accounts payable

FE (T BRIEIE N 28,938 36,839
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities,

other payables and contract liabilities

EstadE HEtEMRBERESANEEEM (BRD) 11,587 (4,389)
Increase in deposits received B Uz & 12N 1,691 4,035
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= AL LB
SFeREMER
Year ended 31 March 2022 %2 — & _— _F=FH=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
== TET—fF
Notes Bfi st HK$'000 F#7x  HK$000 FE7T
Cash used in operations & & Fr AR % (42,834) (28,952)
Interest received 2 F] & 1,832 6,134
Interest paid EfJ# & (30) (48)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BI & B IS (2,000) =
Overseas taxes paid B /&45MRIE (1,233) (579)
Net cash flows used in operating activities
KEEHFAAZIRERE R (44,265) (23,445)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
RERHFAGEZRERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
BEVE BEKRRHEEE 13 (14,852) (10,280)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
HEME -BERREEBMENRE - 700
Decrease in an amount due from an associate
FE U — RE B A B RIE R D 4,368 -
Decrease in time deposits with original maturity of
over three months when acquired
RBRREINHEZN=EA 2 EBFFHL 144,021 72,536
Net cash flows from investing activities
REEHMEZREREFEE 133,537 62,956
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
MEFFMMEZHRERE
Dividends paid E{TAZ & 12 (32,299) (28,384)
Issue of shares 2517 §&15 25 243 =
New bank loan #7iR1TE ™R 22 14,773 -
Repurchase of shares #& ] f& 15 25 (774) (2,545)
Shares purchased under share award scheme
RIE D IZENET B B A B D 26 - (2,240)
Principal portion of lease payments A E IRz A& 37 (903) (420)
Net cash flows used in financing activities
METBMAZREREFE (18,960) (33,589)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RekZFRREEBIGMNFEE 70,312 5,922
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FHzREkERREER 85,489 79,034
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
EXEE s B R 272 533
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
l|‘7|_ = Eﬁv%/}lli%

Year ended 31 March 2022 Bt — &~ —F=H=1—HIFFEZ

2022 2021
—E-C —T_—F

_— ——

Notes fffzE HK$’000 F#&J7c  HK$'000 TH 7T

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FRZERRFERREEER 156,073 85,489

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERERREEB &G 2D
Cash and bank balances IR & K $R17 45 6% 19 75,510 85,489
Time deposits with original maturity of less than

three months when acquired

RUWERREIRE DR =B 2 ERER 19 80,563 -

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
GeREREaRIITZRERERREEE 156,073 85,489
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

2.1

142

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture
and trading of footwear and property investment.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
detailed in note 34 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuea)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

2.1 RBEE 2

REREEE

REMBRRBERNRIARENBAT &
BIAEE)BE_T-_—_F=8=1+—H
FFEEZHMBERER - WBRABDARBEE
RIEERERNER (BEAEEER) o
EAEEH2ENERRER 2 FHOR
AERBAZBEFUREZAHEEY
REHD AEBRERTRBEIUFE
KREHSAERES 2 BFEERN) 2250
By BIERIS 14 o

HALNDEENERIREFRRALRS
R ERNECZERN AEBNFGLE
EEHEEHRBENRZEBNIFEERE 1)
HEEERER 85

@ HERERHFHMREBEFAEAZEGNZR
5

b) HEMEWZHMEEZEN; &

© FEBZREERNEERER-

MEABRARRNT ZHHREZ RS AR
HE THRA - EAHRER - EA
Az XA AEEEREEE BEFR
BAR WEEAREEHMEGRIEAL
EHALE
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuead)

144

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 GitHRRIRBZEE
AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for KEETAFERFTRRPEREAUT
the first time for the current year’s financial statements. BAESTE B RS L o
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — ERMBREER FEEEYE-F_IEE
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2 FE B EGE
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 AEH 553958 *%
MBmEER S
i %%Eﬁ%ﬁ%
R FARRE B
MBI EERS
1658 2 (B3]
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent BEREUBREEN —F-—FA=1HZ
Concessions beyond 30 June E165R 2 185] #BECOVID-1918/85 2
2021 HEER
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are

146

described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt
with in the previous amendments which affect financial
reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”).
The amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of
financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt
with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9
to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief
to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated
as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an
entity to disclose additional information to enable
users of financial statements to understand the effect
of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The amendments did not have any material impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021
extends the availability of the practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic by 12
months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions
for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has adopted the amendment on 1 April
2021. However, the Group has not received COVID-
19-related rent concessions and plans to apply the
practical expedient when it becomes applicable within
the allowed period of application.

(@)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts?®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®*

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 417
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

The Group is in process of making an assessment of the

impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial

application, but is not yet in a position to state whether

these new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

150

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

152

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms
and 10% to 25%

Machinery, furniture, equipment 10% to 25%

and motor vehicles
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investments in club memberships

The useful lives of club memberships are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Club memberships with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the club memberships may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for club
memberships with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

156

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in club memberships (continued)

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such club memberships are not
amortised. The useful life of a club membership with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes, or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 19 to 38 years
Buildings 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

158

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of equipment that is considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that
do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment

under the general approach and they are classified within

the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for

accounts receivable which apply the simplified approach as

detailed below.

Stage 1 = Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date
(out that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings, other payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and other payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
accrued liabilities, other payables and contract liabilities,
bank borrowing, lease liabilities and loans from non-
controlling shareholders.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

24 BEXEHBREME @

FRiSH (&)

BERIEE BT ARRIRNEREE T U
BESD ME LT B BRS ¢

s (HELERBEEEEHNILIFEHSH
ZREPEREDZEENER/ME
F BRRSFHL A EG s EF
FEERIE A IR 5 &

e MERKBARAKMEATDZKESR
B ERNE R EZERMES 7 LUE
BRI EE KRR ETGER
RR R EI Ry £ EE o

EIEM IR S E TH AP A 5] T 408 B = 2R
Uk AESBEMBIERGEERERRS AR
TR RSB M HE D © 15 5 FE SR A5 i A1) i AT BE

PR EE BT 8 A 2 AT R B = BA MUK R &)
BMERREE R ABBREBEZIER
T RIESIEERIBE E o LU T IB R
gh

e (HEFMRENEZRAEBZELERE
EERHARIIFEBEHZRZTE
REDZBENEBEMEE ) AN
ZRA B S R EF
HEEE ; K&

s WMERKBRARAKMEATDZKRER
Mz FHREREEMS  ERY
R Z P e 2 A R R BRI KRG A
FERIR S A B A IR P 3 R B Ry =
BERS > A HESBEIERNIBEEE ©



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Shares held under share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related assets, expenses or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipt in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of footwear products

Revenue from the sale of footwear products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the footwear
products.

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

24 EXLHBEHRE @

Wz FESD (2)
KEERGHZ Wt (&)

EENEIRENRD  RREADBER
REBE-—FHBERARFEERENS
A By o a2 B W ARIERIRER 8 0 £
RRMRERFER 2R RREREE
REPEGHNRERNEBRERZ T -
EENESRER D ZMELIATESE
EERET —FULNERMBR =R
BHETERON @ EERERNFREE
BHEREEMBENFBRAZ BRI
HEBEAEERURFZENHR—F
HUTHEN XZERIL T EHMEAFR
ERONEEUUTBHBREERE56
SR ITIEE AR AR

HEHEZEqR

HEEEZWaERNEEZEREER T
BERZEBMES BEARNEREM
B o

EEREE@MARAT Fik 2022 175



Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

176

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details of
which are given in note 26 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Vietnam, Cambodia and Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

24 BEXEHBREME @

RERFRAHREEE

MGG RERERME WHEAERRE
EE D EFEREEROEAF R BERE
MmAaeNEBERe 2B RBERE
ZEREZBEBERBRBM T ABRE
HzRERE (—RANRBARRES=
BAANEE  TEREANRERFERL
BRAERREEREZ T BN ZRITE
Ho

MEEMBRREMS  RERFERE
BAESEREARRHE ZFRRE RIRTT
R (BEEREFER) °

ERG s FIE R fh 5t

MUTEBVHREBFEEZEERBFHER
EFfE2Rm -BR -BEERBRZEERK
HBEM 2 3% B8 A K S 2R B (R 50 B8 = IV i~
B REBER -AAZFRR KM Z I 0E
ERARFEERANBBREREZEENR
BEZEREEFHERHAR-

F R

RERAEBRESHRZBRED  FAH
hEtEN EEESFRUTHMBRE
ZHERBEAEREANTEZFIE



Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continueq)
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease terms
and constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially
all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of these properties which are leased out and accounts for
the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

RAFS IR R 5L
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

The estimation of the inventory provision requires significant
management judgement, which includes judgement about
the recoverability of the cost of inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
accounts receivable is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar lease and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources. The valuation of the
investment properties at fair value was highly dependent
on estimates and assumptions, such as those relating to
the rental value, rental growth rate, market yield, market
knowledge and historical transactions.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the carrying
amount of investment properties, are given in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details, including the key assumptions used for the
impairment assessment, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity of local and
international tax legislation, judgements have to be made
by management on the tax treatment on transactions
in advance of the ultimate tax determination being
certain. Where the amount of tax payable or recoverable
is uncertain, the Group estimates provision based on
management’s judgement of the probable amount of the
liability, or expected amounts recoverable, which may be
materially different from the estimated provision. Further
details are included in note 10 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their business activities and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  manufacturing and sale of footwear products; and
(b)  property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax except that interest income, non-lease-related finance
costs and other unallocated income and gains/(losses),
net and unallocated expenses are excluded from the
measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EEDWEHR @
(continued)
Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and PHEEFBRREAERREEERE
other unallocated assets as these assets are managed on a MEDEEE RZEEELUEREE
group basis. B
Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these NPHEEFEERIEEE EBZ2EEE
liabilities are managed on a group basis. IDUEEREEER-
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2022 BE_Z__F-A=+—HIEEENSD
is disclosed as follows and the comparative amounts in HENFBEEL T BEEAZERNNLEREEE
respect of this information are re-presented to conform with BEEY UFERFENETHH e
current year’s presentation.
Manufacturing and sale
of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
RERHEREER MERE Fe)
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“E-”f ~"Z”_-H CEZC ST ZBIZf C"Z_-&
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET THERT TET TERT TAR
Segment revenue
D E
Sales to external customers
HEFIHIRER 842,687 804,720 - - 842,687 804,720
Rental income
HEWA - - 24,822 17,358 24,822 17,358
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RA TSR MY 5T

31 March 2022 — & _——#F=H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continueq)

Manufacturing and sale
of footwear products

4.

Property investment

SENHEN =

Consolidated

NERHEHEER MERE ]
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZEZC e S 22— IZEZC -
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT TAT TET TAT
Segment results 52 £ 4 (25,507) (50,798) 1,181 137,100 (24,326) 86,302
Unallocated income and
gains/(loss), net
RAPEBRAR
Wi,/ (B18) %8 (150) 2,070
Interest income # EUA 1,963 4,433
Unallocated expenses 7 ) Fc B sz (11,009) (8,920)
Finance costs (other than interest
on lease liabilities)
MERE (AEaBEZH BRI - ()
Profit/(loss) before tax
BritaE/ (B598) (33,522) 83,884
Income tax credit/(expenses)
FERER/ ) 13,703 (4,100)
Profit/(loss) for the year
FERT/ (BB (19,819) 79,784
Assets and liabilities
BEERAR
Segment assets D EE 802,955 715,209 546,724 547,653 1,349,679 1,262,862
Unallocated assets XD ECEE 307,653 380,543
Total assets & E4EE 1,657,332 1,643,405
Segment liabilities 3 Z & & 258,447 199,301 110,046 107,653 368,493 306,954
Unallocated liabilities 9 & & f& 69,098 81,199
Total liabilities & E48%8 437,591 388,153
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ZEEDEEE

(continued)

Manufacturing and sale

of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
NERHEREER MERE =)
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
k- et B ZBZC B ZBZC —EI-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT FET FET FET FHET TET
Other segn]ent information
Hitrp s Es
Depreciation: 472
Segment 7 & 29,568 28,805 - = 29,568 28,805
Unallocated &% 2 - _
29,568 28,805
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
BREEERE 3,611 3,301 - - 3,611 3,301
Capital expenditure* B A F 2 14,852 10,280 - = 14,852 10,280
Share of profit of associates
(L E S AR R A (32,788) (13,640) - - (32,788) (13,640)
Impairment of items of property, plant
and equipment L
MEMERRBEE 2 AE - 8,399 - - - 8,399
Impairment allowance/(reversal of
impairment) of accounts receivable
FEWE BB (E e
(BifE & [e1) (1,234) 329 - - (1,234) 329
Fair value loss/(gain) on
revaluation of investment properties
EHRENEIATE
B8/ () - = 20,096 (122,863) 20,096 (122,863)
Provision for inventories 75 & 8,570 3,718 - - 8,570 3,718
Loss/(gain) on disposal of
items of property, plant
and equipment, net .
HENE BERIHEAL
B/ (lam) 28 10 (49) - - 10 (49)
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BEARLZHERAEYE HEMKREAMR-

and equipment.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., BESHER @
(continueq)
Geographical information & &R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a KEIIREEFRI 2
2022 2021
—E_C —E_—F

HK$'000 F#Jt  HK$'000 FE T

The United States of America =B & R EH 374,444 170,713
Europe EUM 204,678 254,538
Asia 5z M 109,956 273,745
Others EAh 153,609 105,724

842,687 804,720
The revenue information above is based on the it B R P P E i A iR HE o

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets (b) ETEEE

2022 2021
—E-= s
HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FH&7T

Hong Kong & & 54,712 59,413
Mainland China FA 5 79 ] 511,597 512,235
Cambodia S 3 71,318 73,486
Vietnam #3 153,159 157,972
Others E1th 289 399

791,075 803,505
The non-current asset information above is based on IE RS EEER UEEMES
the locations of the assets and excludes investments RiB > BRARPRBEATDNKRE K
in associates and club memberships. BFATEEEo
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue derived from the manufacturing and sale of
footwear products business with over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 March
2022 and 2021 is as follows:

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

SEDEER @
FERRER
BE-_ S —HFR-F-—F=F=+—

HEFERN EXAEERBKREBIEI10%Z
RERHEEBEEREFMEEN W@ N
e

2022 2021
—E-= —E-

HK$’000 +#&J7c  HK$'000 T 7T

Customer A ZFA 545,674 343,542
Customer B &% FB N/A* RER* 217,296
Customer C Z5C N/A* 738 3 83,114
Customer D 5D 208,968 N/A* 48 B *
754,642 643,952

Less than 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the
corresponding year.

The above amounts include sales to a group of entities
which are known to be under common control with these
customers.

* RAEEFE > DR AEEBIREAI10% o

tHEEEERN—HERE ZFERRZ Lt
ZRHEEER) BHER-

=
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
NET

(a) Revenue

5.

Wz ~ EL AU A B U i 2B

(a)

4

VS

m

2022 2021
g BT —F

HK$’000 F#&7c  HK$'000 T8 7T

Revenue from contracts with customers
REEFEREHNZWNEGE

Sale of goods SHE & &

842,687 804,720

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

All the revenue from contracts with customers
are recognised at a point in time. The revenue
information disaggregated by geographical
market is disclosed in note 4(a) to the financial
statements.

Revenue recognised in the current reporting
period that was included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period:

U}

HERPGHUNFAR@mINE
BB ] R BT o I B TR 35 D 17
By s BRI B S ¥R R MY 54 (a)
WEE o

AR5 AR FE SR B9 W i S RE S
BEFAGTHER:

2022 2021
s B

HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 T8 7T

Sale of goods #H& &

915 1,124

(ii) Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of goods and payment is generally due
within 30 to 90 days from delivery.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. UWras~ MUK A B Uz 3 88 ¢
NET (continued)
(b) Other income and gains, net (b) EHthUgA RURsEF%E
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
HK$’000 F#st  HKS$'000 FE7T
Bank interest income $R1TF B U A 1,923 4,313
Interest income from accounts receivable FEUXBRIE Z F| B A 40 120
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net
HEVE BERRXEEE ZWHE ~ (E18) F5 (10) 49
Gross rental income A& U A 4248 24,822 17,358
Foreign exchange differences, net [?‘:%@Eﬁéﬁ 1,523 777
Subsidy income* i Bh W A - 1,223
Others EAth 495 4,310
28,793 28,150
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies * i 482 7 R0 LEE WA Y 2R 52 BRI 14 B B
related to this income. PAESER
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BB

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

MEMEDFTOT :

2022 2021

= B4

HK$’000 F#7x  HKS$'000 FET

Interest on bank loans $RITERZFI & = 1
Interest on lease liabilities A& & & F] & 30 47
30 48
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRIRELEF (8518)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after RNEBBRREDRA, (B518) TH &Mk~ (5t
charging/(crediting): A) LUFIEE !
2022 2021
—8_C B

HK$’000 F+#&Jt  HK$'000 87T

Cost of inventories sold 45 & 172 5 a7 479,704 454,070
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Y- BRERREHITE 29,568 28,805
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ A& EHTE 3,611 3,301
Provision for inventories* 17 & 3 f&* 8,570 3,718
Lease payment not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

et AHEEBBENHEEMR 702 759
Impairment of property, plant and equipment**

YR sl 2 mE - 8,399
Impairment allowance/(reversal of impairment) of accounts receivable

FEUGRERE RS (RERE) (1,234) 329
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net

HEME BERKEEE IR (W) 358 10 (49)
Auditor’s remuneration 1% & EM AN & 1,945 1,936

Employee benefit expense (including directors’
remuneration (note 8)):

EERNHASX (BEESEME (W5E8)):

Wages and salaries T& K i & 266,567 262,176
Termination benefits 4 IE S {E1E T - 5,387
Equity-settled share option expense Mz 45 ~ B IR ERA 2 404 895
Equity-settled share award expense MU 45 5 2 R4 52BN X 2,534 -
Pension scheme contributions & k4 5t 2 =k 15,097 21,298

284,602 289,756
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BE®ELEF (B8 @
2022 2021

s B —F

HK$’000 F+#&5t  HK$'000 TH& 7T

Amortisation of club memberships** & Ffr & £& 1 5 40 39
Fair value loss/(gain) on revaluation of investment properties

BEHREVMEZAFEEBR (KR) 20,096 (122,863)
Bank interest income $R17 I B UL A (1,923) (4,313)
Interest income from accounts receivable FEURERIE Z F| B UK A (40) (120)
Foreign exchange differences, net [ % 2 58,% & (1,523) (r77)

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance)
arising from rental-earning investment properties

BEESREVEMESA 2 BERERY (BREERRR) 3,545 3,121
Cost of sales includes HK$248,030,000 (2021: HERAORBEANEREE IR AR SR
HK$234,034,000) relating to direct staff costs and 37 28 $£248,030,00058 75 (T - —F
depreciation of manufacturing facilities, which are also 234,034,000 7T) * E7EBZ R U EIFE
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for TERAAERE 2 BER S N o

each of these types of expenses.

* Provision for inventories is included in “Cost of sales” in the * FEREETTAGGERRZ THERZE
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Ao

o Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment is b ME-BEAIBBEEZREESSALS
included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated BRxZMTHREZIR

statement of profit or loss.
Amortisation of club memberships is included in = EEEBHEETARSERRZ TH

“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of FZIA e
profit or loss.
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196

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (The “Stock Exchange”,
the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EFMNE

FR EEWERREBHRERZMAR
AT (THE3ZPr)) B EmRR (TEHR
A1) ~ BB RBRGIZE383(1)(@) ~ (b) ~ (c)A(f)
HR(RE RBEESFHER) RO H280
WEWMT :

2022 2021
—E_C —E_—F
HK$000 F#s;x  HK$'000 FHBiT
Fees #85&

— Independent non-executive directors —J& 37 JEHITES 576 576
— Non-executive directors —3F#1TESE 912 912
— Executive directors —HI{TEE 552 480
2,040 1,968

Other emoluments: EthEl % :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % ~ 2B R EYIF & 3,275 2,335
Discretionary bonuses € 8% 274 274
Pension scheme contributions & k4 5t 2 =% 36 49
Equity-settled share option expense MU 45 8 > BE IS BT =X 164 346
3,749 3,004
5,789 4,972

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@ R‘iEMITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FAZNTFRILFHNTEZZHEN
during the year were as follows: T
Allowances Equity-settled

8. EEM=E®w

and benefits

share option

Total

Fees in kind expense remuneration

B MigEmgE 2
2022 e BRI BRERX i & 48 88
—g_C HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F#E7x HK$000 FHE7T HKS$000 FHET
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 383 [E ¢ 4 192 - 12 204
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 F1%&4% 192 - 12 204
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel FREE % + 192 - 12 204
576 - 36 612

Allowances Equity-settled
and benefits share option Total
Fees in kind expense remuneration

=LY MEGEEY
2021 Hwe BMA% FERR R 2 i <& 42 55
& HK$'000 T HK$'000 FAE7r HKE000 FEm HK$'000 FET
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny B35 iF 464 192 = 26 218
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 F/1 %% 192 - 26 218
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel REE % + 192 - 26 218
576 - 78 654

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2021: Nil).

FRTEHMENBIIFATESZ

Mz (CZTZ
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31 March 2022 — & _——#F=H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM=w
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors b) BITESERIIEHNTES
Salaries,

allowances Pension Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions expense remuneration

g 2R BhE  MUEREE
ik BWHE REiks sEfR 2ERERS [ FARE
2022 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- ok - TR TART FAT FAT TET TAT

Executive directors: HTEE :
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

BERBELL - - - - - -
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares™ RZE 5252 4+ 372 1,028 101 18 37 1,556
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu Z1&i8 755 180 1,734 143 18 42 2,117
552 2,762 244 36 79 3,673

Non-executive directors: FHTEE :
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 35X &4 360 141 30 - 25 556
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony -k B+ 192 - - - 12 204
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 11 %4 360 372 - - 12 744
912 513 30 - 49 1,504
1,464 3,275 274 36 128 5177

198 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to Financial Statements

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

8. EFEMET®
b) RETESRENTES @

(continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions expense  remuneration
He 2R BihE  lEREE
ik BYA & NEke SEY 2ERERZ i
2021 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT -F FAL TAL TEL FAL TEL FAL
Executive directors: Hi{TE%
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
BARLT 16 64 - 2 - 82
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares* BZEE L4 313 707 101 18 75 1,214
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu {28754 151 1,293 143 18 88 1,693
480 2,064 244 38 163 2,989
Non-executive directors: FH{TES :
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel &34 360 - 30 11 53 454
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony Bk B8+ 192 = = = 26 218
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1R {655 % 360 271 - - 26 657
912 271 30 1 105 1,329
1,392 2635) 274 49 268 4,318

*

Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares is the chief executive of the
Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2021: Nil).

: PRISEE S E R AEBMITEEH -

EEHERENT LERNZHNRE
FREBREREANE (CE-—F:

o
4HE) o
At
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31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HHAEm=IES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FRNEEEEHEEEEAREME CZT
two (2021: two) directors of the Company, details of whose ——FImR) EE EMEFEBENLEX
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the M8 AEEHB =% (T _—F : =
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2021: %) FEErReHmEEZNESEFBUT ¢
three) highest paid employees who are not directors are as
follows:
2022 2021
- BT —fF
HK$000 F#Jr  HK$000 F 7T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ ~ 2 EE R EYIF & 4,733 3,820
Discretionary bonuses B E 2% 810 871
Equity-settled share option expense MM 45 8 ~ BE IS HERT X 72 135
5,615 4,826
The remuneration of the remaining three (2021: three) non- HpE=% CZ2Z—%F:=%) FEE2R
director highest paid employee were all senior management EEENASHREEBERAEMENTU
and their remunerations fell within the following bands: T4EA

Number of employees

EEAZ
2022 2021
—E_-C —E_—F
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 75 % 1,000,0007% 7T 0 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 2= 1,500,000 7T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 75 23,000,000 7T 0 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% & 3,500,0007 75 1 0
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Notes to Financial Statements

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continuves) 9. RREHES @
During the year and in prior years, share options were REAKRBEFEE  FEE2RaHESR
granted to non-director highest paid employees in respect MR EOANEBIRHZRFERBRE
of their services to the Group, further details of which E—THBER VB BRRMNT206FIHE %
are included in the disclosures in note 26 to the financial EHEEREZ A ATERGBHEEERRE
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been BoUREHEBREE MEBsRNAEER
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting BRRZHMBAIEN U LIFEE &S5
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the BEZMESHEIL DA
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.
INCOME TAX 10. FR1TR
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EARAMEROBREBEAR T BRI 25
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits FEERMmMIZ16.5% (ZZTZ—4F : 16.5%)
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits ZMEREE Hihth @ BRAERR & 2
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates MEDEAREBLSSEBMERAR BE
of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the e BRMETH
Group operates.
2022 2021
—s-= =
HK$'000 F#7x  HK$'000 FH7T
Current — Hong Kong ENHAIRIE— &H
Charge for the year &~ EER B H 208 2,819
Overprovision in prior years @1+ & E B a1 604 =
Current — Elsewhere BIHAfR TE— Hfthi@
Charge for the year A EERIBS H 5,000 2,503
Overprovision in prior years 81+ & E B8 (16,000) (41,116)
Deferred (note 24) #E3E (ffzE24) (3,515) 39,894
Total tax expenses/(credit) for the year FRNIRIERL (&%) 4828 (13,703) 4,100
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31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expenses/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expenses/(credit) at the effective tax rate is as follows:

10. FR151R @

BEARNBRERBLHBABMERAR,
B A& 2 EERER T EBE AR R AR
Rl (F518) 2MIBEZH,/ (E%R) HIRER
MEAEZMEBEIH (ER) ZHERMOT -

2022 2021
s B

HK$’000 F+#&Jt  HK$'000 87T

Profit/(loss) before tax BRI BT E A, (B518) (33,522) 83,884
Tax at the applicable tax rates B AR EFE 218 (2,526) 32,821
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years

BEFEREBE B ZAE (15,396) (41,116)
Profit attributable to associates B & /A 5] FE (L% F) (6,558) (2,319)
Income not subject to tax B BRI U A (1,085) (7,339)
Expenses not deductible for tax A~ BJ 3172 2 B % 11,773 23,875
Tax losses utilised from previous year #B1+ & E B B IBE 18 (850) (1,822)
Tax losses not recognised Sk FEsRIR B[S 18 939 =
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s effective rate

RAEEBEREAEZRETE (%) (13,703) 4,100

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
HK$4,238,000 (2021: Nil) is included in “Share of profit of
associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The applicable tax rate is calculated based on the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%), the Vietnam
Corporate Tax rates of 15% to 20% (2021: 15% to 20%),
the Cambodia Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2021: 20%),
the Taiwan Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2021: 17%), the
Corporate Income Tax rate in Mainland China of 25%
(2021: 25%) and the respective tax holidays granted to the
subsidiaries of the Group in Cambodia (2021: Cambodia).
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRr18# @

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated.

In addition, pursuant to Cambodian withholding tax
regulations, a 14% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group
is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Cambodia in respect of
earnings generated.

At 31 March 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China and
Cambodia. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed profit of Mainland
China and Cambodia subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$32,239,000 (2021: HK$30,158,000) at 31 March 2022.

The Group has estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$81,718,000 (2021: HK$80,703,000) arising in Hong
Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
considered not probable that the Group can utilise these
losses in the foreseeable future.

BEREARLME (THE) BEFRF/R
E IR EAMAL I 2 ShE B E R INE K
BEEERZKRERHEUI0%TRINN - &
RER_EZNF-—B—HEEN LE
BR-_EZtF+_A=+—HEBELZ
B o i R Py it S Sh I 4% B B P B B O&
BEe B URBEL AR EAREZ
RIIMEF -SAEREMS  BRARNERE%
K210% o 7 & [ [l 1 28 5t S F1 B P9 3t Y 12
ZMBRAEMEEZEFIPAKEZ RS
MIRINM °

EESh > IR IR SR FE TR MRARH) > B IEA M=
ERRERZKRERFREU14%TAINR
EE > ZEB AN RBEERILZME R
Bl EE 2 BFFTIKE Z RS SBIMTEINR

RS- —E=HA=+—H  ITEREE
[ 54 A [ P th e B 37 2R A A 2 B B A B FE
MBI RZAEBEHRN 2 EMTEINR
MRIEIERIB-BEFRA > ZSEWNBAT
RABRERARAIEDRBEARA KR
T _E-A=+—H > pPEAMEE
HWREZHNBRABAZAERELEREEE
ZARDIKBFAEEZEREEEBESEY
32,239,0007 75 (Z& ——4% : 30,158,000
BT) o

FEBRGHREBEEZRNEBENR
81,718,000 7t (Z& = —4% : 80,703,000
BT RFHEERNERABFRIERGEH
BZRABARERR G - HNZFWE
AR —ERFEBEE BEAEEER]RERR
ERZEFERZAEEARN WL ELE
BERESELE MBS E ©
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11.

204

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share (2021: basic
earnings per share) amounts is based on the loss for
the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$18,035,000 (2021: profit of HK$88,098,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
671,566,334 (2021: 675,014,081) in issue during the year,
as adjusted to reflect the number of shares of 7,798,000
(2021: 10,678,000) held under the share award scheme of
the Company and shares of 740,000 repurchased during
the year and cancelled subsequent to year end date.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, no adjustment has
been made to the basic loss per share amount presented
in respect of the potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year as the impact had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share amount presented.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, no adjustment had
been made to the basic earnings per share amount
presented in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share
options outstanding had no dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share amount presented.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1. ZREETFHEARGSKRET

/ (E548)

SREAEB (CE_—F . SRELE
M) EBLHIRBEALDERITE ABMGT
M E51818,035,0008 7 (ZE-—F | ia
#]88,098,0008T) RFANBHTEBER
T 8671,566,334 (CBE_—4F
675,014,0810%) 5t & > It KL = BRIRHR
RARNRDIRE B FFAENRGEE
7,798,000/% (Z&——4 : 10,678,0000%)
R it B P B B0 70 A 45 B 18 51 #489740,000

BB 17

BE_Z__F#=-HA=+—HIEFEE H
RERBETETHETBREFMETN
SREXAGEECEES RIEENE B
EHMEIN 2 EREAEBETEELE

o

HE_Z-_—F=-A=+—HLFE H
RERTHEZEREZZEHMEINNER
BEARRHM S RE FEE NG S EE T
2Nz EREABFEREEHAE



Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. g2
2022 2021
—E-- T4
HK$’000 F#57t HK$'000 THE T

Dividends paid during the year & /B k1 2
Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2021 — HK1.5 cents per ordinary share (2021: Nil)
MBE_Z_—F=-A=+—HLEMBEFEENKREARE
—BREBER1IBWLCE—F: %) 10,084 -
Special Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2021 — HK1.3 cents per ordinary share
(2021: special final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share)
MBE_Z_—F=-A=+—HLEMBEFEENFIRERE
—BREER.3E

—EC—F I HEIRBRESKREER2.0H5) 8,740 13,518
Interim — Nil (2021: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share
FHRE-—SREERE CET—F 1 1.58W) - 10,136
Special Interim — HK2.0 cents (2021: HKO.7 cent) per ordinary share
FRIPERE —8REBR2.0EBW (ZTEZ—4 : 0.78(L) 13,475 4,730
32,299 28,384

Proposed final and special final dividends 1% /& < 8 K 45 Bl ZR A A% 2
Special Final — HK2.0 cents (2021: HK1.3 cents) per ordinary share

FRRAKE —SREER2.08WL (CEZ—F 1 1.38W) 13,595 8,860
Final — Nil (2021: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share
FHERE—SREBERET (CZ2T—5F 1 1.581) - 10,223
13,595 19,083
The proposed special final dividend for the year is subject REERKEIRBKREBEAABKE
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the RERETZREBFRG LHER /B
forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial AEE - ZEVHEMRUE SR ENRE o

statements do not reflect the dividends payable.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W& -BER=E

Machinery,

furniture,

equipment,

leasehold

improvements

Land and and motor
buildings vehicles Total

R RA

®E-HEYE

T RIEF KRIERSE =5
31 March 2022 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- ”"H#=HB=+—H TF#ET F#T F#T
Cost: A 7S :

At 1 April 2021 R -_ZE-—F/H—H 256,785 337,263 594,048
Additions RE - 14,852 14,852
Disposals H & - (1,232) (1,232)
Write-off i #4 - (513) (513)
Exchange realignment 4 BE 82 2,835 3,325 6,160

At 31 March 2022
A _E_"F=H=+—H 259,620 353,695 613,315

Accumulated depreciation and impairment:

RetmERRAE :
At 1 April 2021 R -_ZE - —F/MHF—H 117,147 291,630 408,777
Depreciation provided during the year

FREHRITE 11,888 17,680 29,568
Disposals H & - (1,222) (1,222)
Write-off #f{ 5 - (513) (513)
Exchange realignment 9h & 55 %2 1,202 2,511 3,713

At 31 March 2022

RIE--_HF=H=+—H 130,237 310,086 440,323

Net book value: ERE 3 1E .
At 31 March 2022
RIE2E-__H#=HF=+—H 129,383 43,609 172,992
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31 March 2022 —&E - —#=H=+—H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME - -BERRE®
(continued)
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and and motor
buildings vehicles Total
R E
wETHEYE
TR IR T KERSE =5
31 March 2021 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—_E_—F=H=+—H FHET FAT FETT
Cost: A4S :
At 1 April 2020 RZZEZZHFMA—H 252,208 325,238 577,446
Additions RE - 10,280 10,280
Disposals tH & - (3,460) (3,460)
Exchange realignment 4hF& 58 % 4,577 5,205 9,782
At 31 March 2021
A ZE_—F=H=+—H 256,785 337,263 594,048
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
Kt MERAE !
At 1 April 2020 R_E-"ZFMWA—H 102,360 266,555 368,915
Depreciation provided during the year
FRHRITE 11,374 17,431 28,805
Impairment during the year R & 1,794 6,605 8,399
Disposals tH & - (2,809) (2,809)
Exchange realignment 4hF& 58 % 1,619 3,848 5,467
At 31 March 2021
N —_E_—F=A=+—H 117,147 291,630 408,777
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 March 2021
RWZB2_—F=H=+—H 139,638 45,633 185,271
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

208

(continueq)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s
management identified certain subsidiaries which continued
to under-perform and estimated the recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets by
using fair value less costs of disposal based on valuation
performed by Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers. Based on the
estimation of recoverable amounts, the carrying amounts
of property, plant and equipment were written down by
HK$8,399,000. As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate
recoverable amounts of these impaired assets amounted
to HK$13,688,000. The fair value measurement was
categorised within Level 3.

No impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets was provided for the year ended 31
March 2022.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14.

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

13. MF - -BERRE @

ME BB MR EUREREEENRET

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques
used and the key inputs to the valuation of property, plant

1ty (&)

TREJIME -BERIKBURERESE
ELEMERAZGEERD ZREIZ2BARE

and equipment and right-of-use assets: ZHE
Significant

Categories Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
bl hERE BEARA R AMIE &i[E
2021
BT
Right-of-use assets Income capitalisation approach  Estimated rental value HK$24.2 -
FREEE WABE AL (per square metre and per month) HK$204.8
(A 2428 E
BERAREAR) 204.8% 7T
Buildings ##F Income capitalisation approach  Estimated rental value HK$24.2 -
WAB AL (per square metre and per month) HK$227.4
At EE 04 DETLE

Remaining property, Depreciated replacement

plant and equipment approach
BTYE BB TEBRZE
Kk

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental
value (per square metre and per month) and utilisation rate
in isolation would result in a significant increase/(decrease)
in the fair value of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various leasehold land
and buildings. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
of 19 to 38 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Lease of buildings has
a lease term of 4 years. The lease contract that includes an
extension option, which are further discussed below.

Utilisation rate {3 2

70%-83%

14.

Lt EEEE (BTAARRER) REAX
RIBEBEA (FK) BEXRWE BB
RBRBUREREEEZ AFTEKRNRBLA
S (FER) o

HE
AEMIEREHEA

FERMZEBAELMNETFTIIEEES
Mo BRAEH —RMENMRUMEES &I
BBHEH/19E38FEMAEE LM I AR
BRELHEENGFRIEERENN
BFHENERB4E -2HESNTERE
mEEER HE— D stmil o
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14. LEASES (continuead)
The Group as a lessee (continueq)
(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

14. & »

FEBEREEAN @)
(a) REEEE

ERNAEECFRAREERTDERE
B -

Leasehold
land Building Total
HELTH S AE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZEFMPHA—H 71,688 1,668 73,356
Depreciation charged during the year
FRITEH (2,414) (887) (3,301)
Exchange realignment 4hF& 58 % 488 38 526
As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
AT —F=BA=1+—HK
2 —FHHA—H 69,762 819 70,581
Addition RE - 4,087 4,087
Depreciation charged during the year
FARTEZH (2,678) (933) (3,611)
Exchange realignment #h B 38 22 301 1 302
As at 31 March 2022
N B _H#=B=+—H 67,385 3,974 71,359

No impairment loss on right-of-use assets was
provided for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:
Nil). Further details are included in note 13 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 — & _— —F=H=+—H

14. & @
FEMEBEEA (&)
b)) HEEME
EREEaEREEREHNT

2022 2021
——— —=—_

_— — — — =

HK$’000 F#&57t  HK$'000 T# 7T

Carrying amount at 1 April RIUE —H Z BRE1E 930 1,320
New lease FifHE 4,087 =
Accretion of interest recognised during the year

FA BRI EIE 8 30 47
Payments 15t (933) (467)
Exchange realignment 4 & 58 %& (43) 30
Carrying amount at 31 March R=B=+—HB ZREE 4,071 930
Analysed into: D72 :

Current portion BIHEAEE 5 1,502 930

Non-current portion JEENHEEE 2,569 =

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 32 to the financial statements.

HEA BRI E 2T B R
FE324REE o
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14. LEASES (continuead) 14.

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

HE @
HEREBEBA (@

() BEEEEREmPREENEERNT

2022 2021
T T —F
HK$'000 F#x  HK$000 FHE T
Interest on lease liabilities A E & &2 F) & 30 47
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets A B EfTERH 3,611 3,301
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in administrative expenses)
B E AR 2B GtATTEHRES) 695 752
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in
administrative expenses)
BEBEEEEERMZMAX Gt AITHHAXR) 7 7
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 78 % PR R 4228 4,343 4,107
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)

Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 — & _— —#=H=+—H

14. A& @
FEFMELBERA (B
B

rEEAOEEHEERNEES

Extension options: (d)

The Group has a lease contract that includes an

extension option. This option is negotiated by NeoZEERACEBEEURE
management to provide flexibility in managing the BHESEASHREEIMHAER

BREENEBER - EAREINHE
BRI EEERNITER R
‘B EIB AR RMIEBERREEN

leased-asset portfolio and it is aligned with the
Group’s business needs. Set out below are the
undiscounted potential future rental payments relating

to periods following the exercise date of extension REHFT
option that is not included in the lease term:
2022 T
Payable Payable
within after
five years five years Total
REFRRER REFBREM HEt
HK$'000 F#&t  HK$000 FHE7T  HK$000 FHET
Extension options expected not to be exercised
FAsHR NI BB R 906 5,781 6,687
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14. LEASES (continuead)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(d) Extension options: (continueq)

2021

. HE @
TEBMEREEAN @)
(d) BREERE. (B
B2
Payable Payable
within after
five years five years Total
REFANEN RAFBEMN HEt

HK$'000 T8  HK$'000 F#E7m  HK$'000 FH7T

Extension options expected not to be exercised

TRt N ETT R E AR R

2,906 6,950 9,856

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15)
consisting of three (2021: three) commercial properties and
four (2021: four) industrial properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$24,822,000 (2021: HK$17,358,000), details of which
are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2022, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

FEEEAHBEA

AEERESEHELHHBELEYE
(M5E15) > BIBEMAURE A K E A
CHE(CEC—F DI nEYERNE

ZEZ—F I EHIE) TEYPEX-BER
R—MERBALFZNFRESLRBEESRHN
WITMRERBAR AEBRFRAERDN
RS WA 524,822,000 7T (ZF _——4F .
17,358,000/ 7T) » HEF B8 M B KM
5E50

RZZBZ_F=B=+—HB &xEBARX
REABR B A EHIA R ST IA A A BEE R E
HERRMIRBRAERIELT ¢

2022 2021
- =

HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 T8

Within one year —F A 15,833 10,979
After one year but within two years —&E & B M E N 1,151 2,100
After two years but within three years MEZBEBR =FR - 1,105

16,984 14,184
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

15. EYE

2022 2021
—E-= B4
HK$’000 F#&7c  HK$'000 T 7T

Fair value at beginning of year IR 4] 2 ‘A& 547,653 398,711
Fair value gains/(loss) on revaluation E A FEUW =~ (5518) (20,096) 122,863
Exchange realignment 4hF& 58 % 19,167 26,079
Fair value at 31 March R=HB=+—HZAFE&E 546,724 547,653

The Group has determined that the investment properties
consist of two classes of assets, i.e., commercial and
industrial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2022 based on valuations performed by
Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$546,724,000 (2021:
HK$547,653,000). There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in prior years.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group
discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 14 to the financial statements.

FEBDRERBEVEZME HHK
RERZEREMEDEAWBEE BIFE
EMERTEYZE) -

R_E__—_F=ZRB=+—H x&EE>
REMERBHEBILIEZXSERGHE
MMz (58) BRABMETZHE
B A546,724,0008T (ZE - —F
547,653,000 70) o (HEA A BBEFEE
165 FR LU R S 4 A fr] 84 o

BE AEBZBIIEGEMESHTE
Bz Y= EITINER G E - SN E 25
RENSEMSNH BB BIEKRES
ARFEERE - AEBSEMRNIT
Mk FEMBRRETEERRZGEMS
hHERRAGEERET R

EREVEDRBEEHERA TS =
E—IREFBHNMBHRERWN 14
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15.

216

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as
at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are estimated by
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value
measurements are categorised within Level 3.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

15. B »
ATERBH

RIE_—F=HB=+—HBkZZT=Z—%F
A=+ —H KAERZREVEZNF
BILERERFAIBEREH ABBEGETI A

FESAEDED/BE =R

FAo

F—MREAF _MEHEEHBQT
Bt TEBAFS=ZRIBEFE=HREL
(CTZ—F 18-

RAFERBRE=ZANDEZAFEFE

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: HER
Commercial Industrial
properties properties Total
[EE2YES IEME aF
HK$000 F#757t HK$000 F#E7x HK$000 F#ET
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020
RIEBE_ZF=_RA=+—HZKREE 92,263 306,448 398,711
Fair value gains/(loss) on revaluation recognised
in profit or loss
REBERPEIZEGATERT (B8 (30,392) 153,255 122,863
Exchange realignment 4h & 55 % 2,746 23,333 26,079
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
@:g:—¢252+—5&
TR —FHA—HZEKEAEE 64,617 483,036 547,653
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised in profit or loss
RiBmPHERZEHATEEE (7,202) (12,894) (20,096)
Exchange realignment %) & 58 %2 1,189 17,978 19,167
Carrying amount at 31 March 2022
R_EB__F=RB=+—HZKREE 58,604 488,120 546,724
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques

Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 — & _— —F=H=+—H

15. IREWE »
ATEEBH B

UTRBREMEGERERZEEL AR

used and the key inputs to the valuation of investment TEMABIRZBE !
properties:
Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
MR EERH%E EARTEHRH A SIS EE
2022 2021
—E_C —ET 4
Commercial Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$107 to HK$127 to
properties approach (per square metre and HK$295 HK$312
[EEZYES WABREE per month) 107ETTE 1278 TE
HErESER 2953 7T 31287t
(BFEHRKEREBAR)
Rental growth rate 1% 1%
HEEREE
Market yield 2.7% - 4.4% 2.6% — 4.5%
35 W =

Industrial properties

TEY=

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental
value (per square metre and per month) and rental growth
rate in isolation would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/(decrease) in the market yield in

Income capitalisation
approach

WABALA

Estimated rental value
(per square metre and
per month)

Gt EE
(BF¥AKRKKREBAR)

Rental growth rate
HEEEX

Market yield
EE L

isolation would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in

the fair value of the investment properties.

HK$24 to
HK$102
24BTTE
102& 7T

1%

8%

HK$24 to
HK$119
24BTLE
119787

1%

8%

Lt EEEE (BTHARER) kEEE
RERBEB LA (T BERKREY
EZRFEKREBLA (FK -HHKa
KREEB LA (TR BERREYE
ZAFERETE (EFH) -
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16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. BHEARRKRE
2022 2021
== ==&
HK$’000 F#&7t  HK$'000 FET
Share of net assets FE{5E E FE 63,973 31,457
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest- EW—EHEASIRBEBAERFE REX

218

free and repayable on demand.

The particulars of all the Group’s associates are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of

RIEREE -

FEEFABRMERR ZFBNT ¢

Percentage of
ownership
interest

issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group  activities
FEEEG
HEEES
%18 PR B &ITRM S o 11 PR 3L e i 5 3t B B FEEH
Alliance Investment Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding
Development Limited TR BEERRERE REER
Star Praised Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding
RG] REERRES REZER
Kingmaker Il (Vietnam) Registered capital of Vietnam #7E5 40  Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. US$23,000,000 manufacturing
HMER NEBREERD
23,000,000% 7T
Empress Choice Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding

BER
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16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. B EATIRE @

Percentage of

ownership
Particulars of Place of interest
issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group  activities
FEERG
BREEES
%18 FRFERITRMFE a1 110 AR 3L e i 5 3t B Batt FEEH
Maystar (Vietnam) Footwear Registered capital of Vietnam 40  Property holding
Co., Ltd. US$6,600,000 HE RBEYE
HEMER
6,600,0003 7T
Ally Power Developments Ltd. Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Trading of footwear
BRERBRAR =BG HBERREE products
HEERES
Able Team (China) Ltd. Ordinary shares Hong Kong 40  Investment holding
B i (FRE) BRRAE EEL BE REER
Cheer Benefit Trading Ltd. Ordinary shares Hong Kong 40  Trading of footwear
EmB85E8RAR i@ S products
HEERES
Ally Power Developments Ordinary shares Hong Kong 40  Trading of footwear
Limited AL &8 products
EEEREBS
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16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. BiEQBRE @
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRITEAEBERERMS WA E K2 B
information of the Group’s associates that are not SNBEIZEHYHEER !

individually material:

2022 2021
——— -

—_——_— — =

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

Share of the associates’ profit for the year

FEAL B & A B) A 9 A 32,788 13,640
Share of other comprehensive expense of associates
RLE A EMEEAX (272) -

Share of total comprehensive income of associates
PRGBS A D) 2 E NS ARER 32,516 13,640

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investments
in the associates

REERBENBRZREZIREARE 63,973 31,457

17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2022 2021
—E-C B4

HK$'000 F#Jt  HK$'000 F+E T

Raw materials R} 109,274 95,729
Work in progress 7 & & 16,897 12,879
Finished goods &A% & 82,837 52,082

209,008 160,690
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

18. FEUKERIA

2022 2021
—E-= B4
HK$’000 F#&7c  HK$'000 T 7T

Accounts receivable FEUTBRTE 217,565 196,330
Impairment 35 & (4,042) (5,276)
213,523 191,054

The Group’s accounts receivable mainly relate to a few
recognised and creditworthy customers. Payment terms
with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are normally
payable within 30 to 90 days of issuance. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by the Group’s senior management. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing, except for a balance
due from a customer of approximately HK$8,877,000 at 31
March 2021 which bear interest at 0.25% for a fixed period
of 60 days.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods
delivered and net of impairment, is as follows:

AEBZEBEREIZERDENGREE
BZREPEM -BTERZARGREE
REEAN-BEMS  EERHAERS0
FEORREN - AEEBITERBIESIKIK
[B] 2 FEUR AR TR > LUBE(E & AR « BHARAS
REHAERSHREEETHEZ B
BREASHR ER_E—F=RB=+—
H—UER R ZEREEXI8,877,0008 ST
0.2 Z BXR5 R EEEMRHA60H -

NEMR AR EELINRREIE B
BRIEBMIB SRR ZRE DT ¢

2022 2021
——— —em—

—_—=—— —7—_£E

HK$’000 &5t  HK$'000 T# 7T

Within 90 days 90H A 207,916 177,025
Between 91 and 180 days 91H ZE180H 5,341 13,726
Between 181 and 365 days 181 H Z&365H 266 303

213,523 191,054
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18. FEURERIE @)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of FEWERIE R EEEEE 2SI T !

222

accounts receivable are as follows:

2022 2021
—— — -

—_—=—— —7—_535

HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 87T

At 1 April RIWB —H 5,276 4,947
Impairment losses charged/(reversed) during the year (note 7)

FRstie/ (BRE) R EEE (isE7) (1,234) 329
At 31 March R=B=+—H 4,042 5,276
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting RERSHAHUREBEEEREETRESD
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The e Ut EEHEEERB - BEXDHERR
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings MEBBRLUEEREANZSEBEE DEET
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns o BREFEE) MABRNHEHE -
(i.e., by customer type). The calculation reflects the ZEtERMAAEMELSR G 2 FE
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and BERNRSEBHAIENEMBESIE
reasonable and supportable information that is available at BRI R R RGBT FBRN S B A
the reporting date about past events, current conditions FER—RME > (WmiAiE e —F K&
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, AR BIBITIEE > A I B UL AR TE ©

accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18. FEURERIE @
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TREIAERGRBEFHEEENEIR
exposure on the Group’s accounts receivable using a IRIENEERRER .

provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2022 RZE__#=HA=+—H
Gross Expected
carrying amount credit losses

BRm4EE JEHAS B 5518
HK$’000 +#77t HK$000 T# T

Assessment of expected credit losses by credit risk portfolio

BREERBAESTETERESESE 217,565 4,042
As at 31 March 2021 RIE2EZ—F=HB=+—H

Gross Expected

carrying amount credit losses

IREARE A= B8
HK$'000 F#7t  HK$'000 FHE T

Individual evaluation of expected credit losses

TEHE BB B R G 1,983 1,983

Assessment of expected credit losses by credit risk portfolio
RBEERBASTLTRIAEEEE 194,347 3,293
196,330 5,276
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 31 March 2022

18. FEURERIA )
R-E__#=RA=+—H

Past due
L HR
Less than Over
Current 3 months 3 months Total
EP &R LiA3EB BiAsMEA aF

Expected credit loss rate

TARREERIER 1.21% 19.41% 44.93% 1.86%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000)

IREARE (FET) 210,455 6,627 483 217,565
Expected credit losses (HK$ 000)

TARREERE (FH ) 2,539 1,286 217 4,042
As at 31 March 2021 N ZEZ—F=A=+—H

Past due
%1 HA
Less than Over
Current 3 months 3 months Total
BN A LR3ME B 838 31E B a5

Expected credit loss rate

TRRAEERIEX 1.45% 4.45% 13.43% 1.69%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000)

BREAEE (FA7T) 179,632 14,365 350 194,347
Expected credit losses (HK$ 000)

TRHE B B8 (FHE D) 2,607 639 47 3,293
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. REKFRIHFELIER

2022 2021
—E-= B4
HK$’000 F#&7c  HK$'000 T 7T

Cash and bank balances & K& $R1T45 6% 75,510 85,489
Time deposits with original maturity of less than three months

REFNHE DR =E8 ZEHRER 80,563 -
Time deposits with original maturity of over three months

when acquired

REENREZHEBB=E8 2 EHEMR 148,355 292,376
Cash and cash equivalents IR & &£ RIIREEH 304,428 377,865

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$11,335,000 (2021: HK$5,600,000). RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one week and one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.

The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RIpEER > AEBUARK TARK) 5t
Bz RERIRITHEERA11,335,0008 7T (=
T~ —4 15,600,000 7T) c AREREE
HRBAEME - 28 Ri%PE A
EEfRAREGE - EERVESERE
KEBE P TEEETINEETE ZRITHEA
R RMmAHME

RTHEERESRBRTERNRZF G X
SR -EHERZHRA-—BE—F1%
REEEBZARRSFERME BER
TEHERHRR

RITEBRRERFREFEEEERGFAR
HA AR R Se i Z SR1T
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20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20. FE{TARIE
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of MNszzEHBAEE BNREBERRS
the reporting period, based on the date of goods received, AR Z BREQ DATAN T ©
is as follows:
2022 2021
- BT —fF

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FE 7T

Within 90 days 90H & 108,500 91,189

Between 91 and 180 days 91 HZE180H 39,521 27,940

Between 181 and 365 days 181 H Z£365H 4 2,024

Over 365 days 365H M & 11,718 9,652

159,743 130,805

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are FERIEARE  B—RRBMROH R A

normally settled on 90-day terms. AT

21. ACCRUED LIABILITIES, OTHER 21. FEstE&E - EMtEFIRIERSL
PAYABLES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES =i

2022 2021

—EZ-C TET—fF

Notes Bz HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 T8

Accrued liabilities and other payables

ErtaEREME TR (a) 86,407 75,480
Contract liabilities &4 & & (b) 1,575 915
87,982 76,395
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21. ACCRUED LIABILITIES, OTHER

PAYABLES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

(o)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

21. EstEaE HMEMRERESL
BEw@

MI5E
(@ HMEMKREBEARTS

() AEEGNERZFROT:

31 March 31 March 1 April
2022 2021 2020
=B & CECEAE
=B=+—H ER=ET=—E mA—H

HK$’000 F#&75t HK$'000 FHE7r HK$000 FETT

Short-term advances received from customers

B & B WER R 52 Hi B R

1,575 915 1,124

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver goods. The increase in contract liabilities in 2022
was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the sale of shoes at

the end of the year.

22. BANK BORROWING

SNEREEAXNENTHRRZEHE
MeRZBIE ANBREMEESER
£F SR EE AN B T B 5 IR 2 ST
0«

22. SRIT1EE

2022
g
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000
=
FZE (%) EIHRE R FAET
Current EN#7
Bank loan (note) $R1TE =R (Mi5E) N/A 2023
rER ZTZ= 14,773
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22.

23.

228

BANK BORROWING (continued) 22. IRITEE @
2022 2021
- B
HK$000 F#s;x  HK$'000 FHBiT
Analysed into: D74 -
Bank loan repayable: FEEEZEIRITER !
Within one year —& & 14,773 =
Note: B sE -
The Group’s bank loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable AEBRENRTERABRER REREBER—F
within one year. ANEE-
BANKING FACILITIES 23. IR1TRLE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had available
banking facilities amounting to HK$54,773,000 (2021:
HK$40,000,000), of which HK$14,773,000 (2021: Nil) was
utilised. The unutilised banking facilities of HK$40,000,000
were secured by corporate guarantees executed by the
Company.
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24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24. IREREE(E
Revaluation of
buildings and
investment
properties
BFERKE
MEEMKE
HK$’000 F#& T
At 1 April 2020 RZZEZZTFMB—H 57,866
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)
FRRGEBRERPIRNELERE (HizE10) 39,894
Exchange realignment 4hF& 58 % 4,877

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

N _E_—HF=B=+—HKZ-E-_—FWMA—H 102,637
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10)

FAFFAFREERRPIELERE (MEE10) (3,515)
Exchange realignment 4hF& 582 4,220
At 31 March 2022 R _E_-__&F#=H=+—H 103,342
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

25. g

Rz {5

Number of ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each HK$’000
SREE.108TZ
ZERHE FHET
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E_C BT —E_C “ET—F
Authorised: % E :
Balance at beginning and end of year
FY R F AR AERR 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: E&{TREE :
Balance at beginning of year F4]] 681,535,445 684,429,445 68,154 68,443
Repurchased (note (a)) #&[2] (i () (740,000) (2,894,000) (74) (289)
Share options exercised (note (b))
BATHERERE (MiE0) 315,000 - 31 =
Balance at end of year & &5 ER 681,110,445 681,535,445 68,111 68,154
During the year, the movements in share capital were as FERRAZEENUT -

follows:

(@)

During the year, the Company repurchased its
740,000 (2021: 2,894,000) ordinary shares at prices
ranging from HK$0.99 to HK$1.06 (2021: HK$0.77
to HK$0.95) per share at a total consideration of
approximately HK$774,000 (2021: HK$2,545,000).
740,000 (2021: 2,894,000) repurchased ordinary
shares were cancelled subsequent to year end date
(2021: during the year). Details of the repurchases are
disclosed under the section heading of “Purchase,
redemption or sale of the Company’s listed securities”
in the Report of the Directors. The premium of
approximately HK$700,000 (2021: HK$2,256,000)
paid on the repurchase of these shares was debited
to the share premium account and an amount of
HK$74,000 (2021: HK$289,000) was transferred
from retained profits of the Company to the capital
redemption reserve.
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continueq)

(o)

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to
315,000 (2021: Nil) share options were exercised at
the subscription price of HK$0.772 per share. These
resulted in the issue of 315,000 (2021: Nil) shares of
HK$0.1 each and a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$243,000 (2021: Nil).
An amount of HK$52,000 (2021: Nil) was transferred
from the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

Shares held under share award scheme

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

25. g7 @
a5 ()

FER o HIF315,00010 (ZF - —% .
T) BRE 2 REERESR0.772E
TCZ R EEIT(E o FIE3£97315,000
BCEZ—F 5 SREE0.1ET
2G5  RMNBRERZ RRESREY
#243,0008T (T2 —F .1 &) o#F
e REREIT (1% > AR RERE A HR52,000
BT (CEZ—F 5 BEERMDE

BAiR-

(b)

=17 SZRh 5t BIFR 5 AR (R

Number of ordinary

shares held HK$’000
FrsEEERz8E FAET
2022 2021 2022 2021
—ECE B —fF - 2 B —F
Balance at beginning of year E #4584 10,678,000 7,686,000 9,440 7,200
Shares purchased under share
award scheme (note (a))
RERD REN ST BIPTE AR (5E() - 2,992,000 - 2,240
Shares granted under share
award scheme (note (b))
RIFR D IRBN 5T BIFT IR BB (5 (B EE(0)) (2,880,000) - (2,534) =
Balance at end of year FE 424564 7,798,000 10,678,000 6,906 9,440
Notes: MI5E
(@) During the year ended 31 March 2021, 2,992,000 ordinary @ BE_Z_—F=ZB=+—HLEEZ
shares were purchased by the Trustee (as defined in note SEA (EEBMEE26) UNFER0.648
26) at prices ranging from HK$0.64 to HK$0.75 per share at TTEO0.758 T Z B A2,992,00008 &
a total consideration of approximately HK$2,240,000. The BRI B EL 22,240,000 70 ° Z F IR
shares have been classified as treasury shares. MEDEAEERID-

(b)  During the year, pursuant to the share award scheme of ) FRCRERNATNKMDREEE > KA

the Company, the Company awarded 2,880,000 (2021: Nil)
ordinary shares to 29 share award grantees.

5] [[1294 g 7 B2 [Eh & % A £28h2,880,000
BCEZ—F %) BBRe
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25.

26.

232

SHARE CAPITAL (continuea)
Share options and share awards

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share award scheme and the movements of the share
options and share awards under the schemes are included
in note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

Share option scheme

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contributed to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme included the Company’s
directors (including independent non-executive directors),
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, any person
or entity that provided research, development or other
technological support to the Group, and any shareholder
of the Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 29 August 2011 and remained in force for 10 years from
that date and expired in 2021.

The maximum number of shares which were issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
adopted by the Group may not exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Unless approved by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting,
the maximum number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
grant.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, were subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on that date and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, were subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

The period within which the options must be exercised
was determined by the board of directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion. This period will expire no later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options. At the
time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, and the
amount payable on acceptance of an offer is HK$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on
the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

26.

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

R 5T 8 K i ff SR 5t 8l (@
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. FERGES BRI IERETE @)
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) FERGEETEl (@)
The following share options were outstanding under the TIERESFERNBERESE TEARITE
Share Option Scheme during the year: 2 FERGHE
Number of share options
BREYE
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
RZBZ-f KZ8-Z BhEz  BLAEz
SEEHTHER MA-B  EARY  EAGE FARK ZA=t+-0 BREZELEE BREZ{THEHR @ FRARE™

HKS BT HKS BT
pershare & per share S

Directors £%
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, 150,000 - - (150,000 - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Helen 2 E-AZ+ZH ZE-\E-A-BAECE"-E)\AZTNH
e
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu 200,000 - - (200,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
BERRE “8-\F-AthH “E-\5-BtNBE_E_-E\AZt)\A
150,000 - - (150,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
“8-\F-AthH “E-N5-B-HE_F_-5\B_t)\A
150,000 - - (150,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
“8-\F-AthH “E_%5-B-HE"F_-E\E_t)\H
200,000 - - (200,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 162
“E8-7E-AtN\A “E-NE-RTN\BEZS_-E\AZt)\A
150,000 - - (150,000 - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 162
“E-7E-At/\A “E_35-B-AE"F_-E\B_t)\A
150,000 - - (150,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-NE-At/\A "5 -5-B-AF"F_-5\A_t/\A
200,000 - - - 200,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“8°R5-AC1H ZE2IRF-BC+HAECESSE-ATAA
150,000 - - - 150,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“8°R5-A°1H "B -5-B-AF"5=%5-AtAA
150,000 - - - 150,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
2 | ZEICE-B-HECZEE-FthH
200,000 - - - 200,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
TECEE{CACICA CECEETCACTCHECESEEI-ACT-A
150,000 - - - 150,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 o 21 December 2030 0772 077
TETZETZRIHCR CEIE-A-BECESRETIACL-R
150,000 - - - 150,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0772 077

ZEIEEIAIHIR CECZE-P-HECREERETIACIT-H
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26.

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continueq)

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

fe gt st 8 K Befn SR 51 8 (@

fERetEstE (@)

Number of share options
EhRiEHR
Price of the
Exercise Company'’s
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
REBRE
KB RIBZZE BhREz  BHAMZ
BEEHATER MA-B  EmRH FAGR FARYK ZAS+-B BREZRGLAE BREZGRER i@ FAARE™
HK$% HK$7 T
pershare % per share B
Directors (continueq)
Bz @
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares 120,000 - - (120,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
RAERE “2-\E-B+hH 5 \5-BtNBEZ3_-£\BR-+N\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“2-\E-A+hH “5-NE-B-RE-E_-£\BA-+/\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2110 212
“2-\f£-A+hA “5°%5-B-RE"E_-£\BA-+N\A
160,000 - - (160,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“2-7£-B+)\A “5-NE-B+N\BEZ3_-£\BR-+N\A
120,000 - - (120,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
ZZ-nE-AtN\E  ZEIBE-F-HEIEC-EN\AZTAH
120,000 - - (120,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“T-hE-AHN\R ZE-5-A-BAECE--E0\ACtAR
160,000 - - - 160,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
ZZIRE-ACFR EIBE-AIFAZCESEE-AAM
120,000 - - - 120,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“225E-BZ1A 5 -5-B-HE5=%%-AtNR
120,000 - - - 120,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“222E-BZ1H “5TE-B-HECE=%%5-BAtAR
180,000 = = = 180,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TRCRETCACEIA CECEE+CRCICHECSSEETIACL-H
135,000 - - - 135,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TECRETIACICA CBRCCE-P-HECESSETCACT-H
135,000 - - - 135,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CECRETIACEIA CBRC=E-P-HECESSETCACT-H
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
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Share option scheme (continued)

26.

R et 5t 8 K B fn SR 518 ()

fERR SR ()

Number of share options
BREZE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options*™ of options***
RZBZ-F RIBZZE BhkEz  RHAMZ
2EZRLTER MA-B  FARH  EAGE FARK ZA=t+-0 BREZELEE BREZITEER ffEE"  FAARE™
HK$7 T HK$ %7
per share §&  per share &%
Directors (continueq)
ey
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 120,000 - - (120,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
B 8- \&-AthH “E-\5-BtABEZS_-E\AZt)\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
8- )\&-AtnH “E-N\5-B-AE-F_-£\A_t/\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
Z8-\E-ftnH “E25-B-AE"F_-£\AZt)\A
120,000 - - (120,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 162
“2-h&E-At)\A “E-NE-Bt\BEZE_-E\AZt)\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1,620 162
“2-hE-At)\A “5_25-B-AF"F_-5\AZt)\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1,620 162
“2-hE-At)\A 5 -5-B-AF"F_-5\AZt)\A
120,000 - - - 120,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
“ETRE-AC1A “8_25-BT+RE-S-%E5-FtAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
2 5 -5-B-AF"%5=%5-AtNA
90,000 - - - 90,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
Z22%F-AZ1A Z8_"E-B-AE"%5=%5-AtAA
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TECEE{CACICH CECEETCACTCHECESEEI-ACT-A
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZETRETIRITCR CEICE-A-RECESREIACL-R
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZETRETIRIECR CECZHE-A-BECESREIRCY-R
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continueq)

26. fERefEstBI R AR EERNEEl @

fERetEstE (@)

Number of share options
EhRiEHR
Price of the
Exercise Company'’s
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year theyear  the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options** of options***
REBRE
KB RIBZZE BhREz  BHAMZ
BEEHATER MA-B  EmRH FAGR FARYK ZAS+-B BREZRGLAE BREZGRER i@ FAARE™
HK$% HK$7 T
pershare % per share B
Directors (continueq)
Bz @
Mr. Kimmel, Philip Brian 100,000 - - (100,000) - 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
MRfxE “2-mE-A+5A “5-—nE-B-RE-E_-£\A-+N\AR
200,000 - - (200,000) - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
- E-AfZH ZB-A"E-RACtCHECEC-ENBCTAR
150,000 - - (150,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZZ-AE-AICH IE-tE-A-HEIEC-EM\AZTAH
150,000 - - (150,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z3-RE-AZFIR CE-\E-P-BECRC-ENAZTNA
120,000 - - (120,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“2-\f£-A+hA “5-\E-BtNBEZE3_-E\BR-+N\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“2-\f£-A+hA “5-NE-B-RE-E_-£\B-+)\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
ZZ-\5-AthR  ZEIBE-F-HEIEC-EN\AZTNH
60,000 - - (60,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“2-75-B+)\A “5-NE-B+N\REZZ_-E\BZ+N\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“2-nE-B+)\A “3°%E-F-RE-E-E)\BZ+NA
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“2-75-A+)\A 5 -5-B-RE"F_-£\A-+/\A
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“22%E-BZ1A “2TZE-BC+HECSZRE-H1AH
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
i e 5 -5-B-HE5=%%-AtNR
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
i “5TE-B-HEC5=%%5-AtAR
60,000 - - - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TECEE{CACICH CECRETCACTCRECESEEIACT-H
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TECRETIACICA CBRCCE-P-HECESSETCACT-H
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77

it

B ZB_=£-A-BE-E=®&+-At+-A
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. fERtEStEIRARID ERRNETE @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) B E &)
Number of share options
BREZE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options*™ of options***
RZBZ-F RIBZZE BhkEz  RHAMZ
SREHRIR MA-B  FARH  EAGE FARK ZA=t+-0 BREZELEE BREZITEER ffEE"  FAARE™
HK$7 T HK$ %7
per share §&  per share &%
Directors (continueq)
ey
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, 90,000 - - (90,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Anthony, $BS, J.P. Z2-RE-AZ+ZH ZE-N\E-B-HEIERZ-ENAZNH
BxEfdL 60,000 - - (60,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
REHNES ATHT 8- )\E-HtnH “E-\5-BtNBEZS_-£\AZt)\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
- \E-AtnH “E-N\5-B-AE-F_-£\B_t/\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“&2-)\E-AthH “E_25-B-AF"F_-5\AZt)\A
60,000 - - (60,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 162
“E-N\E-AtN\A “E-NE-BtN\BEZS_-E\AZt)\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1,620 162
“E-N\E-AtN\A “525-B-AE"F_-5\AZt)\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1,620 1.62
“2-hE-A+)\A 8- -5-B-AE"F_-£\AZt)\A
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
Z22ZF-BZ1A Z2TZF-AC+AECEZSE-ATAR
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
Z22%F-BZ1A 5 -5-B-AF"5=%5-AtAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 t0 19 January 2030 0958 094
“8°%5-AC1H ZRITE-B-HECZEE-B1hH
60,000 - - - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TECEE{CACICH CECEETCACTCHECESEEI-ACT-A
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZECRETIRIECR CECCE-A-BECESRETIACL-R
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continueq)

26. fERefEstBI R AR EERNEEl @

fERetEstE (@)

Number of share options
EhRiEHR
Price of the
Exercise Company'’s
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options**
REBRE
KB RIBZZE BhREz  BHAMZ
BEEHATER MA-B  EmRH FAGR FARYK ZAS+-B BREZRGLAE BREZGRER i@ FAARE™
HKSB T HKS BT
pershare % per share B
Directors (continueq)
Bz @
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 90,000 - - (90,000) - 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0.972 0.95
BREEE “E-_£-A+=H Z3-mE-B-BEZ3°-F\AZt/\R
90,000 - - (90,000) - 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1196 119
ZZ-=£-A+1A “Z-mE-R-AEZZ-F)\AZT\H
90,000 - - (90,000) - 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“F-=£-A+1R “%-1£-F-AE"F"-F\AZT/\H
120,000 - - (120,000) - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
Z2-mE-A+iA ZE-BE-ATABEZEC-ENAZTAR
90,000 - - (90,000) - 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z-mE-A+5A “F-1F-B-AE"E_-F)\AZ+/\H
90,000 - - (90,000) - 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“2-mE-B+5E “5-E-B-RE_E_-£\A-+N\A
120,000 - - (120,000) - 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“2-15-A+nA “E-35-RthAER-E\AZtNA
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“Z-1%-AtnA “Z-E-B-REZE_-FM\ACH\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“2-15-F+hA “5-t£-B-HEZE_-F\AZT/\H
120,000 - - (120,000) - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“%-E-AZ+ZH ZE-E-AC+IHECEC-EM\AZTAA
90,000 - - (90,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z5-7NE-RItIR  IE-tE-B-HEIZZ-FNBZtNH
90,000 - - (90,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-AZfZH ZE-\¥-A-HEEZ-£M\AZtNH
60,000 - - (60,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2110 212
“Z2-\f-A+nA “2-\f-RAthBEZEZ-FNAZTNB
45,000 - - (45,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 2.12
“Z-\f£-A+nA “3-7E-B-REZE-E)\BZH\R
45,000 - - (45,000) - 19 January 2018 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
“5-\E-A+thH “%%F-F-HAE"E"-F\AZT/H
60,000 - - (60,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-NE-A+N\H Z5-NE-B+NBEZZZ-FNBZTNB
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“Z-h£-A+)\A “EZTEZF-B-AEZE-FM\ACH)\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
ZF-nE-AtN\E  IEZ-5-B-HEIRZ-£N\BZtNH
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“E_ZE-A"1H “E_EE-RTTHEC2=ZE-B1AA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“E_ZE-A1H “E_-F-A-RE"E-Z4-AtAH
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
TTTRE-ACFR CR-CE-B-AE-E-E4-A1AA
60,000 - - - 60,000 22 December 2020 2 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
TECRETCACECA CECEE+CRCYCAECRSIETCACL-H
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
CECRE{CRTHIR - 6-A-BE-¥SEE{TATH-R
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
EIEEFIACTIR TRIZE-B-HECERSEFTIACT-H
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

26. fBARTESTEI R AR ERNSHE @

fERR SR ()

240

Number of share options
BREZE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options*™ of options***
RERE
RZBZ-F RIBZZE BhkEz  RHAMZ
2EZRLTER MA-B  FARH  EAGE FARK ZA=t+-0 BREZELEE BREZITEER ffEE"  FAARE™
HK$7 T HK$ %7
per share §&  per share &%
Directors (continueq)
ey
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 120,000 = = (120,000) - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
APIRE Z2-E-AZ+ZH ZE-"E-ACTCHECERC-£/\ACHNR
90,000 - - (90,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
2 E-AZ+ZH ZE-tE-A-RAECE-EM\AZTNH
90,000 - - (90,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
2 E-AZ+ZH ZE-\E-A-RECE"_-EM\AZTNH
60,000 - - (60,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
8- \E-AtnH “E-\5-BtABEZ5_-£\BZt)\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“2-\E-AtnA “E-N\5-B-AE-F_-£\BZt)\H
45,000 - - (45,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
Z2-\E-AthA “5°25-B-AF"F_-5\AZt)\A
60,000 - - (60,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1,620 1.62
“2-hE-A+)\A “E-N\E-BtN\BEZZ_-E\BZ+)\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1,620 162
“2-hE-A+)\A “5°%25-B-AE"F_-£\AZt)\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1,620 162
“2-hE-A+)\A 5 -5-B-AE-F_-£\AZt)\A
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
Z22ZF-AZ1A ZE2IZE-AC+HAECESSE-ATAR
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 10 19 January 2030 0.958 094
“8°%5-AC1H B -5-B-AF"%=%5-AtAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 t0 19 January 2030 0.958 094
“8°%%-A”1H B "E-B-AF"E=%5-AtAA
60,000 - - - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TECEE{CACICH CECEETCACTCHECESEEI-ACT-A
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZETRETIRIECR CECCE-A-BECESREIACL-R
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZETRETIRIECR CEIZE-A-BECESREIACL-R
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continueq)

26. fERefEstBI R AR EERNEEl @

fERetEstE (@)

Number of share options
EhRiEHR
Price of the
Exercise Company'’s
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
REBRE
KB RIBZZE BhREz  BHAMZ
BEEHATER MA-B  EARY  EAGE  FARK ZAS+-A BREZRLAS BREZGRER i@ FAARE™
HK$% HK$7 T
pershare % per share B
Directors (continueq)
Bz @
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 90,000 - - (90,000) - 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
BREELL “%-Z£-A+RH  Z3-1f-P-HECEC-ENAZTAA
120,000 - - (120,000) - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“2-MmE-A+5A “E-mE-B+AAEZE_-FN\BZ+N\H
90,000 - - (90,000) - 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“Z2-mE-A+A “E-1E-B-AEZE_-EN\BZ+N\B
90,000 - - (90,000) - 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZZ-mE-A+RR ZE-AE-A-HEZEZ-EM\AZtNH
120,000 - - (120,000) - 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.26
ZF-15-AthA  ZE-RE-RTABAECEC-E)\AZTNA
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“2-15-F+hA “5-nE-B-RE_E_-£\BA_+N\A
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“2-15-A+hA “E-tE-RA-AZ-2-_-E\BZt+\H
120,000 - - (120,000) - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“2-"E-BZ+ZH  ZE-nE-ACHIREIERC-FAACTNA
90,000 - - (90,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z3-7E-BITIR  I3-tE-B-HEIZZ-FNBZtAB
90,000 - - (90,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZZ-3E-BZ+IH  ZE-\E-A-HEZEZ-E\AZtN\H
60,000 - - (60,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
“5-\E-AthH Z3-\E-B+hBEZEZ-ENEZHN\E
45,000 - - (45,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
“2-\E-A+hH “5-NE-B-RE-E_-£\BA-+N\A
45,000 - - (45,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2110 212
“5-\&-AthB  ZBIB£-P-HECF_-E\AZTN\AH
60,000 - - (60,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-NE-AtNB  ZE-hWE-BTN\REZBRC-E)\AZTAR
45,000 = = (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“2-75-A+N\A “E_EZE-B-AEZE°-E\BZ+N\H
45,000 - - (45,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
Z3-nE-BtN\E  ZBZ-F-B-HEZZZ-F\BZtAH
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
S e “ZTZE-BT+HECSSEE-BAR
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
S “ZT-F-B-AEZES%E-B1AH
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
e | “5TE-B-HECE-%%5-AtAR
60,000 - - - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZBOEETCACTCR CECBETCACTCAECER-ZETCACT-H
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TRTZETCACHCR TECCE-RA-HECBSZETCACT-H
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
ECEE{TACTIH ECZE-B-HECECEFTCACT-H
11,200,000 - - (7,250,000 3,950,000
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

242

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

26.

RERg st B BB i 22 R 52 ()

fERR SR ()

Number of share options
BREZE
Price of the
Exercise ~ Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options*™ of options***
RERE
RZBZ-F RIBZZE BhkEz  RHAMZ
2EZRLTER MA-B  FARH  EAGE FARK ZA=t+-0 BREZELEE BREZITEER ffEE"  FAARE™
HKS BT HKS 37t
pershare §%  per share &
Other employees
Ul
In aggregate A 40,000 = = (40,000) - 13 January 2012 13 January 2012 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
“E-"f-fAt=@ ZE-Z£-B+=ZAEZZ--£)\AZtNA
30,000 - - (30,000) - 13 January 2012 1 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
Z5-2%-Bt=H “2--E-B-REZC-E)\AZTNR
30,000 - - (30,000) - 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 095
“5-%-At=H “E-ME-A-HE-F_-£\A_t)\H
112,000 - - (112,000) - 15 January 2013 15 January 2013 to 28 August 2021 1196 119
“%-=F-A13A Z83-=E-B+RAECF-ENAZHN\A
110,000 - - (110,000) - 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 119 119
“2-=F-f+3A “5-mE-A-AE-F_-£\BZt)\A
288,000 - - (288,000) - 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 119 119
“2-=F-A+3A Z2-5F-A-REZEC-EN\AZTNR
15,000 - - (15,000) - 15 January 2013 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 119 119
Z5-=%-B+iRB Z5-n5-B-HEZZZ-5\BZt)\H
140,000 - - (140,000) - 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“Z-mE-A+5A ZE-ME-B+AAEZEZ-ENBZHN\H
105,000 - - (105,000) - 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
Z5-mE-AtiEH ZE-RF-B-HECEC-FNAZTAA
106,000 - - (105,000) - 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“5-mE-At5H “E-nE-B-HE-F_-£\AZt)\H
120,000 - - (120,000) - 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 10 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
Z2-15-FtNA F-RE-ATABEZEC-EN\BZTNA
90,000 - - (90,000) - 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 o 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
“E2-1%-AthH  ZF-"E-B-HECEC-E/\AZTAA
150,000 - - (150,000) - 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“Z2-1f-AtNA “E2-tF-BA-REZZC-E)\AZTNR
484,000 - - (484,000) - 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
2 3F-A+ZR - E-BCCHECEC-EN\BZTAA
438,000 - - (438,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE-7F-AZTIH  ZE-tE-B-HEIEC-EN\AZTAA
828,000 - - (828,000) - 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z2-E-AZ+ZH ZE-\E-A-BAECE-E)\AZT/\H
540,000 - - (540,000) - 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
8- \f-FtnH 8- \E-AthBEZEZ-ENAZHN\A
405,000 - - 405,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
Z2-\f-AtnA “E-hE-B-RE_E_-ENBZt)\H
405,000 - - (405,000) - 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
Z2-\f-AtNA Z2TZF-B-REEC-EN\AZTNR
1,100,000 - - (1,100,000) - 18 January 2019 18 January 201910 28 August 2021 1,620 162
“2-nf-At/\A Z-NE-ATN\BEZE_-£)\AZT/\R
825,000 - - (825,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-7F-At/\A ZECRF-RA-HECRC-F)\ACTAR
825,000 - - (825,000) - 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-NF-AtNA “EC-F-HA-BECERC-F)\AZTAR
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. FBRGHEEBIRARIDIERETE @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) fRRgREstEl (@)
Number of share options
EhRiEHR
Price of the
Exercise Company'’s
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2021 the year the year the year 2022  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
Rk
KB RIBZZE BhREz  BHAMZ
2AEHRIEN MA-B  EmRH FAGR FARYK ZAS+-B BREZRGLAE BREZGRER i@ FAARE™

HKS BT HK$E T
pershare % per share B

Other employees (continued)

HthfE8 (&
In aggregate (continved) 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
=) Z33E-BC+H  Z3IFE-AtRECE-3E-A1AR
825,000 - - - 825,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-BTH 3 -5-B-AE_ZZZE-BiAR
825,000 - - - 825,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“E_EE-A°1H “EZTCE-R-RAECZCEE-A1AR
1,120,000 - (180,000) - 940,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
TECRETCACECA CECEE+IBCICHECSSEETIACL-H
840,000 - (135,000) - 705,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
ZEIEEFIACEIR CRCIE-B-HECESEETIACT-H
840,000 - - - 840,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77

TETEE+CATHCR ZECC£-B-HECE-EETA-T-H

12,735,000 = (315,000 (7,185,000) 5,235,000

23,935,000 - (315000 (144350000 9,185,000
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

* The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or

other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

***  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at
the date of grant of the share options is the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately
prior to the date of grant of the options.

The weighted average price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$1.05 per share
(2021 Nil).

The 315,000 (2021: Nil) share options exercised during
the year resulted in the issue of 315,000 (2021: Nil)
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of
approximately HK$31,000 (2021: Nil) and share premium
of approximately HK$212,000 (2021: Nil), as further
detailed in note 25 to the financial statements. An amount
of HK$52,000 (2021: Nil) was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account upon the
exercise of the share options.
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Notes to Financial Statements

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had
4,700,000 and 4,485,000 (2021: 190,000, 795,000,
1,050,000, 960,000, 3,390,000, 3,350,000, 4,700,000,
4,700,000 and 4,800,000) share options outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme with exercise prices of
HK$0.958 and HK$0.772 (2021: HK$0.972, HK$1.196,
HK$1.580, HK$1.250, HK$1.908, HK$2.170, HK$1.620,
HK$0.958 and HK$0.772) per share, respectively,
which altogether represented approximately 1.3% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 9,185,000 (2021: 23,935,000) additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional issued share capital
of approximately HK$919,000 (2021: HK$2,394,000) and
share premium of approximately HK$7,047,000 (2021:
HK$31,161,000) (before issue expenses).

As at the date of this report, no options available for
granting by the Company and the number of share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
approximately 9,185,000, representing approximately 1.3%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this report.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 4,800,000 share
options were granted and their fair value was estimated at
approximately HK$794,000. The Group recognised a share
option expense of HK$404,000 (2021: HK$895,000) during
the year. In addition, 14,435,000 (2021: 2,400,000) share
options lapsed and the Group’s share option reserve of
HK$8,440,000 (2021: HK$700,000) was transferred to the
retained profits during the year.

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

26. fERefEstBI R AR EERNEEl @

Rl tEstE ()

RIBERR XA RBERESEER
& 2R 1718 2 BE A #4,700,0001% K2 4,485,000
3 (Z= Z—4 : 190,00017 * 795,00015
1,050,00013 ~ 960,00014 ~ 3,390,0001%
3,350,00017 * 4,700,00014 * 4,700,00015 &
4,800,00014) » M1THEE D B %S 0.958
BT K0.7728 T (CE - —F 1 0.972%
T6~1.196# 75 1.580# 7T~ 1.2508 71
1.908% 75 2.1708 7T~ 1.62058 7T ~ 0.958
BLK0.7728 ) a R EAREREHE
BTN #91.3% o IR IE A A B IR FF RS A 22
B 2mTEERTEEREREREIN
££179,185,0008% (& ——£ : 23,935,000
f%) KRBl &M@ MEEIEZEITRARE
& ERI4H BIAI919,0008 T (B - —4 !
2,394,00077T) K& #97,047,0008 7T (Z &
——£ 131,161,000 7T) CRINBREITE
) °

RAREBHR AR LEREERES
BRI R IR T s R IT BB AR R
B A% 739,185,00018 » 15X A< ¥k &5 B A3
AT EEITRAELN1.3%

BE_Z_—F=B=+—HILEFE"
4,800,000 EREBER T HATE
fHEH49794,0008 T FR» AEBEBER
FBIG R A404,0008 7T (ZE_—4%F:
895,000 7T) ° b4 > 14,435,0001p (Z &
Z—1%F 12,400,00019) BB EE LB A E
[ 55 IS HE (4 458,440,0008 7T (Z T - —F ¢
700,000 7T) BN FAERE R T o
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued)

The fair value of share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2021 was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the respective model used
for the year ended 31 March 2021:

Date of share options granted: 22 December 2020

Volatility (%): 34.626
Risk-free interest rate (%): 0.67
Expected life of options (year): 10.00
Dividend yield (%): 4.46

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

Share award scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company on 26 June 2019 (the “Adoption Date”).

The specific objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions by certain eligible participants
and to give incentives thereto in order to motivate and
retain them for the continual operation and development
of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group and to provide certain eligible
participants with a direct economic interest in attaining
a long-term relationship between the Group and certain
eligible participants.
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Notes to Financial Statements

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continued)
Share award scheme (continued)

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
select any eligible participant for participation in the Share
Award Scheme as a selected participant and determine the
number of awarded shares to be awarded to the respective
selected participants, the terms and conditions before the
awarded shares may be vested and other related matters
as expressly provided under the Share Award Scheme.
However, until so selected, no eligible participant shall be
entitled to participate in the Share Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further grant of award of
shares under the Share Award Scheme such that the total
number of shares granted under the Share Award Scheme
will exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares as of
the Adoption Date. If the relevant subscription or purchase
would result in the trustee holding in aggregate, more than
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
as of the Adoption Date, the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme (the “Trustee”) shall not subscribe or purchase any
further shares.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the scheme rules, the Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date.

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H
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26.

27.

248

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. FERGHESH S R AR 22RBIEtEI @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share award scheme (continued) i iEE =t &8 (2)
Details of the shares awarded during the year ended 31 BE_ZT__F-A=+—HIEEEKRH
March 2022 are as follows: RN FEBEWT -
Number Fair value
of share of share
award awarded
BHREIEE ROEEBZAFE
Date of shares award %17 22 &) B 7 HK$'000 +# 7T
5Jduly 2021 —E-_—F+HEHH 2,880,000 2,534
Out of the aggregate 2,880,000 awarded shares, 1,100,000 7 & $£2,880,0008% £2 @ A% 17 » 1,100,000
awarded shares are granted to the directors and employees BRREROETFTEAEAEEREALINE
who are connected persons of Group, and the remaining EREES  #7 T1,780,0008 22 B 15 1% F
1,780,000 awarded shares are granted to other employees AEBHMES -
of the Group.
No shares were awarded under the Share Award Scheme HE _Z_—F=A=+—HIEEFEEHE
for the year ended 31 March 2021. TR A (0 BB 51 245 HAERIBR D ©
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Trustee BHEZ_ZE-—F=-"A=1+-—HLEHE =
purchased a total number of 2,992,000 ordinary shares at SEAUNFERR0.64BTE0.758 T 2B
prices ranging from HK$0.64 to HK$0.75 per share at a REEE 5512,092,0001R LER  BESA
total consideration of approximately HK$2,240,000. The #92,240,0008 T - BEZERMEN ZH
amount paid on the repurchase of these shares was debited BHERKRORBEREBE TMFE R
to the shares held under the share award scheme account. 2 H0BR
RESERVES 27. (#f&

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AERRFTFERBEFEZHBHER
HEFH2INMBRRZGGEQED
*o



Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

28. COMMITMENTS 28. KIE

The Group had contracted for the following capital KEBMTINEARKETILSH !
commitments:

()  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had () MERSEFR AEER T HAREH
commitments in respect of management fees payable ERNZERAME THELI M ENE
in relation to certain land in Vietnam falling due as BEZAENT
follows:

2022 2021
S - —E T4

HK$’000 F#&J7c  HK$'000 TH 7T

Within one year —&F & 1,322 1,322

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
FE_EFLF (BEEEWE) 5,286 5,286
After five years L E% 32,916 34,238
39,524 40,846
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group paid rental expenses of HK$684,000 (2021:
HK$743,000) to Kingmaker Footwear Company
Limited, a related company of which Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen, a director and shareholder of the
Company, is also a director and shareholder.

The rental expenses were determined with reference
to the market conditions existing at the time when the
respective rental agreements were entered into.

The related party transactions above also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

29. RANKTT3Z5

(@)

PRz LR IR R EMIB TR Z
0 REBRFERNE BB AEE
BERERNMAERATZNHEEER
684,00078 75 (— & — —4 : 743,000
T0) CTMARNBEETRREEFTHL
TINAZABIEERKE

ZEMEBERNDSEILEREER
BERZMINMETE -

LHRB ARSI BN EHRAE
1AASPRER ZBRER 5 ©

KEERREEASRRM

2022 2021
—EB_C B —F
HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FE&TT

Short-term employee benefits 52 #i1& £ 127 12,331 10,713
Post-employment benefits 18 FA & @) 72 85
Equity-settled share option expense MU 45 E ~ BE ISR X 263 579
Total compensation paid to key management personnel

FTAARIREE A SNHRM S 5t 12,666 11,377

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 — & _— —F=H=+—H

30. BB ZEMTA

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHpeMTEAERBKSESHERZKRAEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T 6

follows:

Financial assets

MBEE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
HEERAHENMBEE
2022 2021
g —ET—4F

HK$’000 F#&57t  HK$'000 T# 7T

Accounts receivable FEUBRIE 213,523 191,054
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
STABMNRIEBE- e RHEMEWEREBE UHBEE 4,587 3,755
Due from an associate F& W& /A 51718 64,705 69,073
Cash and cash equivalents R4 R EERSER 304,428 377,865
587,243 641,747

Financial liabilities

MBaR

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
HEER A HENMFBEE
2022 2021
o= —=—

_— —— — =

HK$’000 F#&57t HK$'000 THE 7T

Accounts payable F& {3 BRIB 159,743 130,805
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities,
other payables and contract liabilities
STARSEE -HMEMREBERENEREZMBEAR 59,063 58,287
Bank borrowing $R1T& & 14,773 =
Lease liabilities fHE & & 4,071 930
Loans from non-controlling shareholders JE1% % J& B8 & = 32,046 32,046
269,696 222,068
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

As at 31 March 2022, payables for additions of items
of property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
of HK$14,723,000 (2021: HK$16,433,000) have not
been settled yet. There was no addition of lease in the

current year.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

31. FmERERERME

@@ FEFREXS

RIZEZ-F=B=+—8>HFEY
¥\F%7§zay1%1,é§}fﬁﬁ§15u&$ﬂ

B #h14,723,00087T (ZEZ—4 :
16,433, ooo%m) TRBN o RFE
AABEHEE

(b) REEBFIEEREZEH

Loans from
Lease non-controlling
liabilities shareholders

HEEAE FERREER
HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 87T

At 1 April 2020 (restated) R _ZEMH—H KE75) 1,320 32,046*
Changes from financing cash flows B & IR &R & 2 B E) (420) -
Interest expense F| BB 47 =
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows

DEAREREREZBENMFE 47) -
Exchange realignment 9hF& 55 %2 30 -
At 31 March 2021 R =& -_—F=H=+—H 930 32,046*
New lease FifE & 4,087 =
Changes from financing cash flows B & IR &M = 2 & E) (903) =
Interest expense | BB 30 =
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows

DEAREREREZEMNE (30) -
Exchange realignment 9B 5522 (43) -
At 31 March 2022 R _E__H=H=+—H 4,071 32,046*
* Balance represented the loans from a non-controlling * BRI FERRRER sTARSE

shareholder which are included in “non-controlling
interests” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The loans are unsecured, interest-free and

not repayable within one year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

. REHRERERME @

© FARSRERANBEENRERH

LEZEINE ©
2022 2021
—E-C —E—F

HK$’000 F+#7x  HK$'000 FE T

Within operating activities 5+ A 48 & & &) 732 806
Within financing activities 5+ A B & /& &) 903 420
1,635 1,226

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and time deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts
payable and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

32. MEAMEEEEREE

FEEZIESHMIEOERSENTERE
R-ZEEMTIAZTIEARENREE
EEXEBEE - AEEEZHAXHFEERE
EZHMBBHEERER  WEKIRE A
AW ARTE ~ R ARIBE R HAth RS BRIE S ©

FEEZEMTIAFMEENETZRABRAI
KRR EERBRMABHETAR -EFE
EERTRAEEERBERRZ R BE
ZHEN T
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

254

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
or United States dollars. Given that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy on managing
foreign currency exposures. Moreover, the majority of the
Group’s operating assets are located in Mainland China and
denominated in RMB. As the Group’s financial statements
are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation
credit/(charge) to the exchange fluctuation reserve as a
result of the RMB appreciation/(depreciation).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the RMB and Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit/(loss) before tax (due to changes in the fair values
of monetary assets and liabilities and forward currency
contracts).
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. HFERAMEEBEREEK @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) SRR (2

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in in loss

exchange rate before tax

BE = MR AIES I8

EFH(FH) @, G
%  HK$000 +#7T

2022 —_ &

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB {775 % A R #5827 & 5 (1,645)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB #7875 7 A R # FH& (5) 1,645
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND {578 70 @ #i e B 82 & 5 1,930
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND {478 7t &2 # /& & FHE (5) (1,930)
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in in profit

exchange rate before tax

fE=x FRAQ AT EF

EF (R @, Geib)
%  HK$'000 FHE7T

2021 — &~ —4

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB {8 &t 7 A R 82 (& B 1,346
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB fi# 3 7t 2 A R ¥ FHE (5) (1,346)
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND 1 7 7t 52 # 8 /& 82 {8 5 (948)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND {478 7t & # /g & FHE (5) 948
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

256

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual
basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a
trading limit and any excess to the limit must be approved
by the general manager of the operation unit. Under the
tight control of the credit term and detailed assessment of
the creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits, other
receivables and an amount due from an associate, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 50% (2021: 38%) and
66% (2021: 68%) of the Group’s accounts receivable were
due from the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continueq)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 March. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

As at 31 March 2022

32.

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —ZE - —#=F=+—H

HHERAREEBEREE @

EERE (&)

REmERFALER
TREIIN=ZB=1+—HRBEAEENE
ERRI DN EEERRERSEERR
DBEZENBHREN CRIFRFEMERE
ATRENRAERE ) REKBERDE-
FREdEEnMBEE REMBE.

R-E__=H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+Z{EAR
FHEEEE SHEMEREE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—MEE g2 F=RRE 1675 % At
HK$'000 T HK$'000 FHE7 HK$000 FH7 HK$'000 F#ET HK$000 FiH#m
Accounts receivable* & lfy 85 I5* - - - 217,565 217,565
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
SEATRMRIE B E KA MEWIRE
ZHBEE
- Normal* -IE &* 4,587 - - - 4,587
Due from an associate
FE s Bt 2 A Bl FRIE
- Normal* -IE &* 64,705 - - - 64,705
Cash and cash equivalents
ReEkERREER
- Not yet past due —f=i k%1 304,428 - - - 304,428
373,720 - - 217,565 591,285
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

258

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2021

32. MFRAMEEERRER @

EEEE &
REEBERFAER ()

RNZE—_—F=B=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZfER
BHEERE SHEREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—IEEE FIEE B BIEAE &t

HK$'000 F3# 7T HK$'000 T3 7T HK$'000 T HKS'000 FHE T HKS'000 TH7T

Accounts receivable* ffE W BRIE* - - - 196,330 196,330
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

SABNMRIE e REMEUWIRE

2HBEE

- Normal -IE &* 3,755 - - - 3,755
Due from an associate & Wi & A B 718

— Normal* -1E &* 69,073 - - - 69,073
Cash and cash equivalents

RekZEFRRETER

- Not yet past due -5 K 377,865 = = = 377,865

450,693 - - 196,330 647,023

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and an amount
due from an associate is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. WHERBEEBERER @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk MENE & RS
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBRRALEMRHESHRE TARER
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the EsEMzAR 2T AGEREESHMT
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial BRGHEE (NEWRIE) 23 BER
assets (e.g., accounts receivable) and the projected cash URREREER 2 AARERE

flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of AEBBEAERAETRERERRBITE
funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash B REEEFENERE R 2 ENTEE-o
and available banking facilities. The directors have reviewed EECBRAER ZEEEEREAHEZ
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure ER UWEEAEETNEEARDESA
requirements and determined that the Group has no % o

significant liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at KEEZHBEENREARBERLR
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual EHNRIEHZ R AFBOT ¢
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

As at 31 March 2022 AZE“H=H=+—H
Within 2to5
On demand 1 year years Total
FEE
BER —&ERX BRE a5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT THET FHET FHTT
Account payable fE{7ERIE - 159,743 - 159,743

Financial liabilities included in accrual liabilities,
other payables and contract liabilities

StARESBE HEMRBERGNEE

ZHHaR 52,126 - 6,937 59,063
Bank borrowing fR1T{EE& - 14,773 - 14,773
Lease liabilities A E & 1& - 1,633 2,721 4,354
Loans from non-controlling shareholders

FFERKRENR - - 32,046 32,046

52,126 176,149 41,704 269,979
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

260

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2021

32.

MHHERBREEBRRER @

RENBRER (B
RZE—F=HA=1—H

Within 2t05
On demand 1 year years Total
F_FE
BER —&ER FHE a5t
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FHET TR FET
Account payable f&{J8RIE - 130,805 - 130,805
Financial liabilities included in accrual liabilities,
other payables and contract liabilities
StARStEE  HMEMNRBERENEE
Pk =K 53,041 - 5,246 58,287
Lease liabilities A E & & - 941 - 941
Loans from non-controlling shareholders
FFERREE - - 32,046 32,046
53,041 131,746 37,292 222,079
Capital management BREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. Z"’ATBH IR RER
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the KABRREPERZ T HERRRER N T
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-C —E—F
HK$’000 F+#7x  HK$'000 FE T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEmEh & &
Investments in subsidiaries B AT 218 E 53,912 53,912

CURRENT ASSETS @& &

Due from subsidiaries & W i & A 5 18 432,853 385,459
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

A RIB 2 R 2RI 1,082 843
Cash and cash equivalents & R ZEFEIFELIER 187,609 245,153
Total current assets ;i £ & E AL 5B 621,544 631,455

CURRENT LIABILITIES &I & &

Accrued liabilities and other payables F& &t & 18 Kk H fth fE < BR 15 1,656 2292
NET CURRENT ASSETS R8N & E R 1E 619,888 629,243
Net assets & EFE 673,800 683,155

EQUITY %

Issued share capital B 217 &7 68,111 68,154
Reserves (note) & (FffzE) 605,689 615,001
Total equity #4228 673,800 683,155
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

262

THE COMPANY (continued)

33. " ATBFEARAE @)

Note: BT -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KN EBHARDT
Shares
Share Capital held under Share
premium redemption Contributed share award option Retained
account reserve surplus schgﬁn}; reserve profits Total
R & e R faRR1E
wEk HBERE ARG ARG s REER =H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL AT THEL AT FAT TEL TAT
At1 April 2020 RZ2Z2EFMA—H 92,806 7,071 66,982 (7,200) 9,416 450,729 619,804
Profit for the year and total comprehensive
income for the year
FREFRFERENGEESR - - - - - 27,544 27,544
Shares purchased under share award scheme
U BEE-IN ) - - - (2,240) - - (2,240)
Shares repurchased f&[R1# {3 (2,256) 289 - - - (289) (2,256)
Spe0|a| 2020 dividend declared and paid
BREGZZEZZEERAIKRE = = = = - (13,689) (13,689)
Intenm 2021 dividend paid
BRIz —FHHKE = = = = - (10,266) (10,266)
Special 2021 dividend paid
BRfiZZ2Z-FERBIRE - - - - - (4,791) (4,791)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments
BRNEREEURN 2T 2B - - - - 895 - 895
Share options lapsed B % %18 f 1 - - - - (700) 700 =
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
RZE-Z-f=A=+-HBKRZZ2--f£MA-A 90,550 7,360 66,982 (9,440) 9,611 449,938 615,001
Profit for the year and total comprehensive
income for the year
ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁré%ﬁu&mmﬁ - - - - - 20,537 20,537
Issue of shares from exercise of share option
fIfERRRREm R TR 264 - - - (52) - 212
Shares purchased under share award scheme
R Bt &1 AR - - - 2,534 - - 2,534
Shares repurchased 2]z {7 (700) 74 - - - (74) (700)
Final 2021 dividend declared and paid
BERRRTZZEZI-FEXRAKE - - - - - (10,084) (10,084)
Special 2021 dividend declared and paid
BERREGZ-ZEZ—EEHIKRE - - - - - (8,740) (8,740)
Special 2022 dividend paid
Bikfiz_B__FEEBRIRE - - - - - (13,475) (13,475)
Recogmtlon of equity-settled share-based payments
BRNE RS H RN % T 2B - - - - 404 - 404
Share options lapsed B 5% % & iR 1 - - - - (8,440) 8,440 -
At 31 March 2022 RZE_-_&=H=+—H 90,114 7,434 66,982 (6,906) 1,523 446,542 605,689

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the

excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries

acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in

September 1994, over the nominal value of the Company’s

shares issued in exchange therefor.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2022 — & _— —F=H=+—H

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

34. TEMBABFE

RIB-__F=ZRA=+—RH " ZxRFEXE

March 2022 are as follows: B AR ZEFBNT !
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
ML BRTRE b /NS
%8 a1 11 e 4K i 1th BE HMES BFRESL FEER
Directly held EiZ#5H
Ready Luck Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100  Investment holding
HEERRES US$5,000 REER
&8 MR5,000% 7T
Indirectly held BiEFHE
Discovery Star Development Hong Kong &7 Ordinary 100  Property holding
Limited HK$2 REM*
MEZERFRAT EiERETT
Kingmaker (Vietnam) Footwear Vietnam i US$15,000,000 100 Footwear
Co., Ltd. 15,000,000% 75 manufacturing
B2 58 (HrE) BRAR NEHBER
Maystar Footwear Company PRC/ Mainland China US$43,000,000 100 Footwear
Limited R E At (Note (a)) manufacturing and
FEREFRAT 43,000,0003 7T property holding
(FtzE(a)) NEEBER
REBME
Miri International Limited Hong Kong &7 Ordinary 100  Investment holding
REERBEZRNHERLE HK$2 REER
BER2ETT
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

34. FEMBATIFE @

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
B3R B#TRG PN
218 5 1 R 45 it 2 EMER HRESL FEEH
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MEHE (&
Kingmaker (Cambodia) Kingdom of Cambodia Ordinary 100 Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. TIHETE US$10,000,000 manufacturing
ik HNEHEER
10,000,000% 75
Opal Star International British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited HEERRAS US$1 BREEK
BEERERERERAS ik
17T
FEEEFEBERAT PRC/Mainland China US$9,000,000 100  Property holding
R,/ B Py (Note (a)) HEME
9,000,000% 7T
(Fi=E(a))
King Eternal Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 51  Investment holding
REEARHS US$100 REER
ZLER100E T
Star (1) Limited Hong Kong &% Ordinary 100  Trading of footwear
BENERRHE HK$300,000 products
48 %300,00078 7T BEHEER
Star (3) Limited Hong Kong & # Ordinary 100 Trading of footwear
EEQARAA HK$1 products
EBR1ETT BEHEER
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34.

35.

Notes to Financial Statements

RAFS IR R 5L

31 March 2022 —FE - —#=F=+—H
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 34. TEMBATIFE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
MR BT ERF
%18 o fif e A8 3t B HMES FRESL FEEE
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MiEHE (@)
King Riches Limited (Note (b)) British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 Trading of footwear
SEARAT (D)) Mainland China US$1 products
HBHERAREE BER1ETT BEHEER
Fp e P
Yingfeng Industrial Hong Kong &7 Ordinary 51 Investment holding
(Hongkong) Co., Limited US$20,409 REER
DEEX (FH) BRA & #M20,409% 7T
Note: MIEE -

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under the law of the PRC.

(b)  During the year, King Riches Limited was deregistered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, this presentation would
better reflect the financial performance of the Group.

35.

(@ ZENMBRBDRFEPEERFEMAN
MBERF-

) RER RBRRABSEIH-

EERD LRMIRAREBRELRE
EXERERAsEEEEFEEAS D
TRBIMBLRTE - EFRBHIE MK E
ABFEREERNBR AR

EEBHF

ETHEREHECENIE UNEEEE
2SN ZABREERR L2V
B AER M EEAY R B RIT
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36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 30 June 2022.
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Particulars of Investment Properties Held by the Group
RERREZIREYEFE

Approximate

Group’s gross floor
interest area (sq. m) Existing use  Term of lease
BEREEA

Location 3 FERZH#ER (FAHK) RERZ B
Levels 4-7 of Block A, HE 100% 35,067 Industrial Short
whole of Blocks B and C ERE I vk
situated at Kigm
No.1 Cuizhu Street, AILE
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, BHI%E
Qianshan District, ZLRIRIR
Zhuhai Gity, HifR4-718 2R AR 2R
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
Whole of composite building, HE 100% 9,225.72 Industrial Short
Levels 1-7 situated at ERE I% Sk
No. 1 Cuizhu Street, g™
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, EIfiTES
Qianshan District, BUTER
Zhuhai City, E378 2k
Guangdong Province, ERERR1-TIE
The PRC
Unit Nos. 1401, 1414, 1415 = 100% 330.18 Commercial Short
and 1416 on Level 14, ERE GES yokit
Metro Plaza, M
Nos. 183-187 A&
Tianhe North Road, Kb 183-1875%
Tianhe District, AEEEH1418
Guangzhou, 140114141415
Guangdong Province, R1416%E
The PRC
Whole of Level 20, HE 100% 851.16 Commercial Short
Asia Mansion, LEm [GES ySEG)
Nos. 663-669 Jiu Jiang Road, =91
Huangpu District, 171 #£663-66957%
Shanghai, TMAE20E2E
The PRC

EEREE@MARAT Fik 2022 267



Particulars of Investment Properties Held by the Group
REBRFBEZREYEFE

Approximate

Group’s gross floor
interest area (sq. m) Existing use  Term of lease
s
BEEEA
Location 2k FERZH#E (FHEK) RE AR L
Factory Unit 13 58 100% 726.12 Industrial Short
on 16th Floor, AR I a8
Vanta Industrial Centre, %8B
Nos. 21-33 AEHE21-335:
Tai Lin Pai Road, BEIEFRD
Kwai Chung, 161£135F TR E (L
New Territories,
Hong Kong
Whole of Level 21, ) 100% 409.79 Commercial Short
Empress Plaza, NEE [GES A
Nos. 17-19 Chatharm Road South, 27018
Tsimshatsui, RRERE17-195
Kowloon, HEES
Hong Kong A2
A parcel of land and the buildings ~ HEl 100% 58,249 Industrial Medium*
erected thereon, EBRE I# AR
No. 3047 Ming Zhu South Road,  ¥iET
Qianshan District, BiLL&E
Zhuhai City, BR %k 2%
Guangdong Province, 30475%
The PRC —RiMRAER BT
ZREEY

*

The term for which the lease was granted remaining unexpired as

at 31 March 2022 is less than 50 years but not less than 10 years.
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